
February 27, 2020   -1- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

 
 
I hereby certify that the following agenda                                
was posted at least 72 hours prior to the time                               
of the meeting so noticed below at                                          
24251 Los Alisos Boulevard, Lake Forest, California. 

 
                                                                                      
DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Secretary of the                                   
El Toro Water District and the Board of                                       
Directors thereof 

 

  
    
  
 

 

AGENDA 
 

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
February 27, 2020 

 

(Director Vergara will be teleconferencing from: 
Texas Station Gambling Hall & Hotel, 2101 Texas Star Lane,  

North Las Vegas, NV 89032) 
 

7:30 a.m. 
 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER – President Monin 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Vice President Gaskins 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Members of the public may address the Board at this time or they may reserve this 
opportunity with regard to an item on the agenda, until said item is discussed by 
the Board.  Comments on other items will be heard at the time set aside for 
“COMMENTS REGARDING NON-AGENDA ITEMS.”  The public may identify 
themselves when called on and limit their comments to three minutes. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
 
Determine need and take action to agendize items which arose subsequent to the 
posting of the Agenda. (ROLL CALL VOTE: Adoption of this recommendation requires 
a two-thirds vote of the Board members present, or, if less than two-thirds of the Board 
members are present, a unanimous vote of those members present.) 



February 27, 2020   -3- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

PRESENTATION OF AWARDS, RECOGNITIONS AND INTRODUCTIONS  

a. Service Awards  
 

There are no acknowledgements. 
 

b. Continuing Education & Training, Degree and Certification Program 
acknowledgement  
 

There are no acknowledgements. 
 

c. Special District/Employee Association/Community Award 
Acknowledgement and Employee Special Recognition 

 
There are no acknowledgements. 

 
d. Staff Department Presentations 

 
Staff will provide a presentation describing the staff roles and 
responsibilities associated with the operation and maintenance of the 
District’s Water Recycling Plant (WRP). 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

(All matters under the Consent Calendar will be approved by one motion unless a Board 
member or a member of the public requests separate action or discussion on a specific 
item) 
 
1. Approval of Minutes & Conferences (Minutes Included) 
 

a. Consider approving the minutes of the January 23, 2020 Board meeting. 
 

b. Consider approving the Directors to attend the ACWA Spring Conference on 
May 3-8, 2020 in Monterey, Ca. 

 
APPROVAL OF ITEMS REMOVED FROM TODAY’S CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
The Board will discuss items removed from today’s Consent Calendar requiring 
further discussion. 
 
Recommended Action: The Board will be requested to approve the items 
removed from today’s Consent Calendar. 
 
2. Quarterly Review of the District’s 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan 

(Reference Material Included) 
 

A HighMark representative will review and comment on the investment 
performance of the District’s 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan. 



February 27, 2020   -4- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

 
Recommended Action:   Staff recommends that the Board Receive and File 
the Quarterly review of the District’s 401(k) Retirement Savings Plan. 

 
DIRECTOR/COMMITTEE REPORTING 
 
3. Director Reports for Meetings Attended (Oral Report) 
 
GENERAL MANAGER ACTION ITEMS 
  
4. Resolution No. 20-2-1 Which Adopts Fair Political Practice Commission 

Form 806 in the Form and Content  and Authorizing and Directing the 
Posting of Said Form 806 on the District’s Website (Reference Material 
Included) 

 
Staff will review and comment on Resolution No. 20-2-1 which adopts Fair 
Political Practice Commission Form 806 in the form and content and authorizes 
and directs the posting of same on the District’s website. 

 
Recommended Action:   Staff recommends adopting Resolution No. 20-2-1 
which adopts Fair Political Practice Commission Form 806 in the form and 
content and authorizes and directs the posting of same on the District’s 
website. 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-2-1 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

ADOPTING FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICE COMMISSION 
FORM 806 IN THE FORM AND CONTENT  

ATTACHED TO THIS RESOLUTION, AND AUTHORIZING THE POSTING 
AND DIRECTING THE POSTING OF SAID FORM 806 

ON THE DISTRICT’S WEBSITE 
 
5. Nomination of a Candidate to the California Special Districts Association 

Board of Directors, Southern Network, Seat B (Reference Material Included) 
 
 Staff will comment on the potential nomination of a candidate to the California 

Special Districts Association Board of Directors, Southern Network, Seat B, and 
the requirement to submit the nomination by the March 6, 2020 deadline. 
 

 Recommended Action: The Board will consider nominating a candidate to the 
California Special Districts Association Board of Directors, Southern Network, 
Seat B, and submitting the nomination by the March 6, 2020 deadline. 

 
 
 
 
 



February 27, 2020   -5- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

6. Nomination of a Candidate to the California Special Districts Association 
Board of Directors, Seat C (Reference Material Included) 

 
 Staff will comment on the potential nomination of a candidate to the California 

Special Districts Association Board of Directors, Seat C, and submitting the 
nomination by the March 26, 2020 deadline. 
 

 Recommended Action: The Board will consider nominating a candidate to the 
California Special Districts Association Board of Directors, Seat C, and 
submitting the nomination by the March 26, 2020 deadline. 

 
GENERAL MANAGER INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
7. General Manager’s Monthly Report (Report Included) 

 
Staff will review and comment on the General Manager’s Monthly Report. 

 
8. Legislative Reports (Reference Materials Included) 
 

Staff and General Counsel will review and comment on the Legislative reports. 
 
9. Public Education and Outreach & Water Conservation Reports (Reference 

Material Included) 
 
10. SOCWA Reports (Reference Material Included)  
 

a. SOCWA Board Meeting – February 6, 2020 

b. SOCWA Engineering Committee Meeting – February 13, 2020 

c. SOCWA Finance Committee Meeting – February 20, 2020 

 
11. Municipal Water District Of Orange County (MWDOC) Report 

(Reference Material Included) 

a. MWDOC Planning & Operations – February 3, 2020 

b. MWDOC/MET Directors Workshop – February 5, 2020 

c. MWDOC Administration & Finance Committee – February 12, 2020 

d. MWDOC Public Affairs & Legislation – February 18, 2020 

e. MWDOC Board Meeting – February 19, 2020 

f. MWDOC Managers Meeting – February 20, 2020 

 

12. Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) Report  

 
a. Report on the February 12, 2020 meeting - canceled 

 



February 27, 2020   -6- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

 
13. South Orange County Watershed Management Area (SOCWMA) 
 Management and/or Executive Committee Report 
 

a. Report on the February 3, 2020 Management Committee meeting. 
 

b. Report on the February 6, 2020 SOCWMA Executive Committee 
meeting.  

 
14. ISDOC Meetings (Reference Material Included) 
 

a. Report on the February 4, 2020 ISDOC Executive Committee 

    Meeting 
 
15. WACO Meetings (Reference Material Included) 
 

a. Report on the February 7, 2020 WACO Meeting 
 

b. Report on the February 18, 2020 WACO Planning Committee meeting 
 
16. City Coordination Efforts 

Report on the February 26, 2020 meeting. 
 
COMMITTEE AND GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

17. Dates to Remember for February/March 2020 (Reference Material Included) 
 

18. Carry-Over Pending Matters  
 
COMMENTS REGARDING NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
 
ATTORNEY REPORT  
 
CLOSED SESSION 

  

At this time the Board will go into Closed Session as follows: 
 

1.  At this time the Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) to consult with legal counsel 
and staff on a matter of pending litigation.  The People of the State of 
California, acting by and through the Department of Transportation. 
Plaintiff, vs. County of Orange; Pacific and Telegraph Co.; Santa 
Margarita Water District; Laguna Hills Sanitation, Inc., California 
Corporation; and Does 1 through 50, inclusive. Defendants- Orange 
County Superior Court- Case No. 30-2020-01122114-CU-EI-CXC. 

 



February 27, 2020   -7- 
ETWD Board Agenda  

2. At this time the Board will go into Closed Session pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (2) to consult with legal counsel 
and staff on a matter of anticipated litigation (In the matter of a Claim 
filed by Donald P. Driscoll, Esq. on behalf of Anne Moell, et al). 

 
REGULAR SESSION 
 
REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION (Legal Counsel) 
 
          Mr. Granito will provide an oral report on the Closed Session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Recommended Action: The Board will be requested to take action adjourning 
today’s Board meeting to Thursday, March 26, 2020 at 7:30 a.m. at the El 
Toro Water District, 24251 Los Alisos Boulevard, Lake Forest, California. 

 
The agenda material for this meeting is available to the public at the District's Administrative Office, which is 
located at 24251 Los Alisos Blvd., Lake Forest, Ca. 92630. If any additional material related to an open session 
agenda item is distributed to all or a majority of the board of directors after this agenda is posted, such material 
will be made available for immediate public inspection at the same location. 
 
Request for Disability-Related Modifications or Accommodations 
 
If you require any disability-related accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate 
in this public meeting, please telephone the District's Recording Secretary, Polly Welsch at (949) 837-7050, 
extension 225 at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to said meeting.  If you prefer, your request may be submitted in 
writing to El Toro Water District, P.O. Box 4000, Laguna Hills, California 92654, Attention: Polly Welsch. 



January 23, 2020 

Board Mtg 1 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE 

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

January 23, 2020 

 

President Monin called the meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

ELTORO WATER DISTRICT to order at 7:30 a.m. on January 23, 2020 at the El 

Toro Water District Administrative Offices, 24251 Los Alisos Boulevard, Lake 

Forest, California. 

 Vice President Gaskins led in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag. 

Present at today’s meeting were Committee Members JOSE F. 

VERGARA, MARK MONIN, KATHRYN FRESHLEY, MIKE GASKINS, and KAY 

HAVENS. 

Also present were DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, General Manager, JUDY 

CIMORELL, Human Resources Manager, NEELY SHAHBAKHTI, Finance 

Manager/Controller, SHERRI SEITZ, Public Relations/Emergency Preparedness 

Administrator, RICK OLSON, Operations Superintendent, BOBBY YOUNG, 

Principal Engineer, GILBERT J. GRANITO, General Counsel, POLLY WELSCH, 

Recording Secretary, FERNANDO PALUDI, TCWD General Manager, RICHARD 

BABBE, CAMP Representative, and CAROL MOORE, Laguna Woods City 

Council Member. 

 



January 23, 2020 

Board Mtg 2 

Oral Communications - Public Comments 
 

President Monin stated that at this time members of the public may 

address the Board or they may reserve this opportunity with regards to an item 

on the agenda, until the Board discusses said item later in today’s meeting. 

Mr. Paludi introduced himself and stated that he wasTrabuco Canyon’s 

General Manager.    

Items Received Too Late To Be Agendized 

 President Monin asked if there are any items received too late to be 

agendized.  Mr. Cafferty replied no. 

Presentation of Awards, Recognitions and Introductions 

1. Mr. Cafferty recognized and congratulated Bobby Young, Principal 

Engineer, for 5 years of service with the District. 

Consent Calendar  

 All matters under the Consent Calendar will be approved by one motion 

unless a Board member or a member of the public requests separate action or 

discussion on a specific item. 

1. Consider approving the December 19, 2019 Board meeting minutes. 

2. Consider approving Amendment No. 1 to the General Manager’s 

Employment Agreement. 

3. Consider approving the Directors to attend the 2020 WateReuse California 

Annual Conference on March 15-17, 2020 in San Francisco, Ca. 

President Monin asked for a Motion. 



January 23, 2020 

Board Mtg 3 

Motion:  Director Vergara made a Motion, seconded by Director Freshley, 

and unanimously carried across the Board to approve the Consent Calendar. 

At approximately 7:42 a.m. Mr. Paludi left the meeting. 

CAMP Presentation 

 Mr. Babbe stated that the Fed made 3 cuts in interest rates in 2019, 

and that they are likely on hold for an extended period of time.  He further 

stated that Recession fears subsided and the Yield Curve un-inverted in the 

4th quarter. 

 Mr. Babbe stated that Treasury Yields have settled into a new lower 

range, with falling unemployment supporting improved Consumer Confidence.  

He further stated that Trade remains among many Global concerns. 

 Mr. Babbe stated that the portfolio’s maturity continues to shorten, as 

we let investment maturities roll into pooled investments per the Board 

direction.   He further stated that the shorter average duration relative to the 

benchmark hurt the portfolio’s performance relative to benchmark as interest 

rates fell sharply during 2019. 

 Mr. Babbe stated that the drop in interest rates in 2019 resulted in 

unrealized market value gains, which increased the portfolio’s market value 

return.   He further stated that with no new investments, the yield remains 

unchanged, and short-term rates fell sharply driven by cuts in the federal 

funds target rate. 

 

 



January 23, 2020 

Board Mtg 4 

 President Monin asked about the average coupon and average rating.   

Mr. Babbe stated that the average rating on the portfolio would be double A, 

and he would need to check on the average coupon. 

 Director Freshley asked about Total Performance, since inception.   

Mr. Babbe replied that the inception date is 9/30/16.    Director Freshley 

stated that ICE is remaining close to what our portfolio is doing.  Mr. Babbe 

replied that ICE is the name of the 1-3 year Treasury index. 

 Director Havens asked about the fees and if this is what’s keeping the 

portfolio down.   Mr. Babbe replied no, the fees are approximately 10 basis 

points per year. 

 President Monin asked about Mr. Babbe’s feel for interest rates in 

2020.  Mr. Babbe replied that given the current economy, the rates should 

remain, but that depends on what happens to the economy in 2020. 

 Vice President Gaskins asked what risk we would be exposed to by 

going to a more managed portfolio.   Mr. Babbe replied that any approach is a 

managed portfolio, and there is always risk involved. 

 At approximately 8:14 a.m. Mr. Babbe left the meeting. 

Director Reports for Meetings Attended 

 Director Vergara stated that he attended the WACO meeting, the 

MWDOC/MET workshop, the MWDOC Planning/Operations meeting, the 

MWDOC Admin/Finance meeting, City of Lake Forest Open House, OCWA 

luncheon, and will be attending the South Orange County Economic Coalition 

meeting and the ISDOC luncheon. 



January 23, 2020 

Board Mtg 5 

 Vice President Gaskins stated that he attended the ISDOC meeting, 

LAFCO, SOCWA Board meeting, WACO, MWDOC Public Affairs meeting, 

and will be attending the South Orange County Economic Coalition meeting, 

the ISDOC luncheon, and appeared on TV-6. 

 Director Havens stated that she attended the MWDOC/MET Directors 

meeting, an Aliso Creek Watershed Collaborative workshop, SOCWA Board 

meeting, WACO, Girl Scouts Tour, OCWA luncheon, and will be attending the 

ISDOC luncheon. 

 Director Freshley stated that she attended the MWDOC/MET Directors 

workshop, SOCWA Board meeting, WACO, OCWA luncheon, LAFCO 

meetings, and plans to attend the South Orange County Coalition meeting 

and the ISDOC luncheon. 

 President Monin stated that he attended the ISDOC meeting, Laguna 

Woods City Council meeting, WACO, MWDOC Admin/Finance meeting, and 

plans to attend the ISDOC quarterly meeting. 

General Manager Action Items 

Resolution No. 20-1-4 Establishing Date, Time, and Place of Regular Board 

Meetings and Board/Engineering & Finance/Insurance Committee Meetings 

of the Board of Directors for Calendar Year 2020 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that this Resolution modifies the schedule for the 

Board meetings to move the Engineering & Finance Committee meetings 

from Tuesday to Monday to allow the Directors to attend other meetings on 

Tuesdays. 



January 23, 2020 

Board Mtg 6 

 President Monin asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  Vice President Gaskins made a Motion, seconded by Director 

Freshley to adopt Resolution 20-1-4 establishing date, time, and place of 

regular Board meetings and Board/Engineering and Finance/Insurance 

Committee meetings of the Board of Directors for Calendar Year 2020. 

Resolution No. 20-1-5 Modifying Standing and External Organization Board 

and Staff Assignments for Calendar Year 2020 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that this Resolution changes some of the Board 

member Committee assignments. 

 President Monin asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  Director Vergara made a Motion, seconded by Director 

Havens to adopt Resolution 20-1-5 modifying Standing and External 

Organizational Board and Staff Assignments for Calendar Year 2020. 

Resolution No. 20-1-6 Amending District Meeting Rooms Use Policy 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that the Orange County Registrar of Voters has 

asked to use the District’s Multipurpose Room for a Voting Center, which 

caused a need to update the Meeting Rooms Use Policy.   He further stated 

that Trabuco Canyon Water District is also providing a room for use as a 

Voting Center. 

 President Monin asked what level of security there will be.  Mr. Cafferty 

replied that the District will have staff on-site as well as the OC Registrar’s 

staff.   

 



January 23, 2020 

Board Mtg 7 

 Director Vergara stated that the policy states that no expenses will be 

incurred.   Mr. Cafferty stated that the agreement with the Registrar’s office 

includes District staff time costs and labor requirements of approximately 

$3,000 which they agreed to pay. 

 President Monin asked for a Motion. 

 Motion:  Director Vergara made a Motion, seconded by Vice President 

Monin to adopt Resolution No. 20-1-6 amending the District’s Meeting Rooms 

Use Policy. 

General Manager Information Items 

General Manager’s Monthly Report 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that the District will be hosting a Women in Water 

breakfast meeting next month.   He further stated that the Lake Forest 

Chamber of Commerce and the State of the City event are coming up in 

March, which we sponsor by providing table centerpieces at approximately 

$1,000 total cost. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that the Lake Forest Garden Club has asked if we 

could allow them to host a Family Community Volunteer Day at the District’s 

Demo Garden, which would include pulling weeds, planting, and clipping back 

some of the plants.   

 Director Havens suggested partnering with another event instead of 

allowing the use of our Demo Garden. 

 Mr. Cafferty suggested politely declining their request.   The Board 

concurred to decline the request. 



January 23, 2020 

Board Mtg 8 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that the District now has a fully certified laboratory, 

and we are transitioning back from SOCWA’s laboratory to ours, and are 

awaiting the actual certificate. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that the Board room remodel is still on-going with 

photos and maps to come. 

Legislative Reports 

 There were no comments. 

Public Education and Outreach & Water Conservation Reports 

 Ms. Seitz stated that staff will be providing a school education program 

at Del Cerro Elementary on February 10th. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that there were two water waste complaints in the 

month of December. 

 Ms. Seitz stated that staff provided the drinking water trailer at the Elf 

Yourself event in December, and hosted a Girl Scout Tour at the Plant.  She 

further stated that Director Havens suggested providing a map of the facility 

that they could take home with them showing what happens at each station. 

 Director Havens stated that the lab showed on a TV monitor the 

microorganisms in the water.   Director Vergara suggested purchasing a 

larger monitor for the lab. 

 At approximately 8:48 a.m. Ms. Seitz left the meeting. 

 

 

 



January 23, 2020 

Board Mtg 9 

SOCWA Reports 

 Director Freshley stated that at the SOCWA Board meeting, they 

approved the Employee Manual and an MOU with the SOCWA Employee 

Association.  She further stated that during the Closed Session they 

discussed the General Manager’s performance evaluation. 

 Director Freshley stated that they need to get their meeting dates 

structured so that the Finance meetings happen before their Board meetings. 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that SOCWA uses the CPI index as part of their 

employment agreement, and it has a 2-4% range cap. 

MWDOC 

 Director Vergara stated that at the MWDOC/MET meeting there was a 

presentation by MET’s Legal Counsel regarding the San Diego County Water 

Authority/MET lawsuit and settlement offers.   

 Director Vergara stated that at the MWDOC Planning/Operations 

meeting the General Manager provided a presentation on the department 

activity updates.   He further stated that the same presentation was done at 

the MWDOC Admin/Finance meeting. 

 Vice President Gaskins stated that at the MWDOC Public Affairs 

meeting the lobbyists passed a big funding package, along with discussion on 

the single tunnel in the Delta, and a social media audit. 

 

 

 



January 23, 2020 

Board Mtg 10 

LAFCO 

 Director Freshley stated that they re-elected the Chair and Vice Chair 

for 2020.   She further stated that they discussed Commissions, Property 

lines, and Boundaries between cities. 

SOCWMA 

 Director Havens stated that there was a collaborative workshop where 

they are compiling data from MNWD on water levels decreasing, and 

planning to do a study on Aliso Creek. 

ISDOC 

 President Monin stated that they discussed the new WEROC 

representative and the quarterly meeting. 

 Vice President Gaskins stated that they also discussed a date for the  

Form 700 training they will be presenting. 

WACO 

 Director Vergara stated that at the meeting they discussed PFAS 

where are we now and where are we going.    

City Coordination Efforts 

 There were no comments. 

Committee and General Information 

 There were no comments. 

Dates to Remember for January/February 2020 

 There were no comments. 

 



January 23, 2020 

Board Mtg 11 

Carry Over Pending Matters 

 There were no comments. 

Comments Regarding Non-Agenda Items 

 Mr. Cafferty stated that staff is in the process of scheduling a Special 

Board meeting to finalize the Strategic Planning process. 

Recess 

 At approximately 9:10 a.m. the Board took a short recess. 

Regular Session 

 At approximately 9:15 a.m. the Regular Session resumed. 

Attorney Report 

 Mr. Granito reported that there is a need for a Closed Session at 

today’s meeting.    

Closed Session 

 At approximately 9:15 a.m. the Board went into Closed Session to 

discuss item #1 of today’s Closed Session agenda.  At this time, Ms. 

Shahbakhti, Ms. Cimorell, and Ms. Welsch left the meeting. 

Open Session Report 

 At approximately 9:30 a.m. the Board returned to Regular Session.  

Also at this time, Ms. Welsch returned to the meeting. 

 Mr. Granito reported that the Board did go into Closed Session to 

discuss item #1 as reflected in today’s agenda.   During this phase of the 

Closed Session, General Counsel led a discussion on a matter of potential 

litigation.   No further reportable action was taken. 



January 23, 2020 

Board Mtg 12 

Adjournment 

 There being no further business to come before the Board, the following 

motion was duly made and passed. 

 Motion:  Director Freshley made a Motion, seconded by Director Havens 

and unanimously carried that today’s meeting be adjourned at 9:30  a.m. to 

Thursday, February 27, 2020 at 7:30  a.m. at the District’s Administrative Offices 

at 24251 Los Alisos Blvd, Lake Forest, CA.  92630. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
   

POLLY WELSCH 
 Recording Secretary 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 

 __ 
MARK L. MONIN, President of  
the El Toro Water District and the 
Board of Directors thereof 
 
 
 
 _ 
DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Secretary  
of the El Toro Water District and 
the Board of Directors thereof  





Fourth Quarter 2019

El Toro Water District 401(k) Plan

keith.stribling@unionbank.com

Keith Stribling, CFA

Vice President and Senior Portfolio Manager

HighMark Capital Management

(949) 553-2591

mailto:keith.stribling@unionbank.com
mailto:keith.stribling@unionbank.com
mailto:keith.stribling@unionbank.com
mailto:keith.stribling@unionbank.com
mailto:keith.stribling@unionbank.com


Economic and Market Commentary 
First Quarter 2020 

Equity markets around the world saw strong 2019 gains and positive 10-year returns 
following the “Lost Decade” of the 2000s. Meanwhile, the “phase one” trade deal with 
China lowered trade tensions but left many details unanswered. With the 2020 
election in view, investors began assessing potential winners and losers, particularly 
in the banking and energy sectors. Manufacturing activity hit a 10-year low and 
midwestern job growth was soft, raising the possibility that the key “swing states” of 
2016 will be in play again this year. 

Key Takeaways: 

• U.S. and foreign data releases in the fourth quarter raised hopes that the
worst of the global economic slowdown may be behind us. 

• Manufacturing doldrums remain an area of concern, particularly if contagion
to the consumer sector occurs.

• The Federal Reserve’s expected pause in rate adjustments allows investors
to shift attention to politics and the potential impact of the 2020 election on
markets.

• Strong 2019 returns for many asset classes, even as fundamentals
weakened from 2018 levels, highlights the importance of avoiding short-term
market timing.

• Looking ahead to the 2020s, we expect fixed income and equity returns to
be lower than those recorded in the banner year of 2019.

• Geopolitical tensions from Iran to Ukraine to North Korea may lead to market
volatility.

Market Overview: All Systems Go 

In contrast to the third quarter’s bumpy ride, financial markets settled down in the 
fourth quarter as trade policy uncertainty de-escalated and fading economic data 
showed signs of bottoming. Reflecting an improving outlook for the global economy, 
yields on longer-dated Treasuries headed higher after approaching all-time lows in 
early September and even pushed the yield curve out of inversion. Meanwhile, global 
equites continued to rally on the heels of global central bank easing despite a  

lackluster year for corporate earnings growth as investors anticipated a reacceleration 
of positive fundamental momentum heading into an election year.  

Buoyed by a confident consumer, the domestic economy remained resilient even as 
the rest of the world showed signs of sluggishness. A third quarter U.S. GDP reading 
of 2.1% handily beat consensus expectations, which had assumed ongoing trade 
conflicts would affect U.S. economic growth by now. Employment, the linchpin of 
consumer confidence, also performed better than expected with an average of 
211,000 new jobs added in October and November1 while wage growth remained 
healthy, yet in check. Perhaps most importantly, inflation remained subdued, 
providing air cover for Federal Reserve (Fed) liquidity injections that soothed fears of 
a monetary policy that was too tight for conditions. 

The economic picture overseas was not as bright, but markets had been pricing in 
low expectations for some time. The data point most market observers have been 
keying on as the canary in the coal mine for global growth prospects, the German 
Purchasing Managers’ Index (PMI), appeared to hit a nadir in September at 41.7 (a 
level below 50 indicates contraction) after peaking at 63.3 in December of 2017. 
Other fourth quarter survey data also showed signs of improvement, which gave way 
to the optimistic view that the worst of the slowdown may be behind us. 

With the view that the global economic expansion is on track yet fragile, as evidenced 
by the need for renewed monetary intervention, investors preferred to take risk in 
financial markets that had greater perceived relative safety. Within equities, U.S. large 
cap stocks, as represented by the S&P 500 Index (S&P 500), led global markets by a 
substantial margin in 2019, continuing the trend since the end of the Great 
Recession. In the same vein, defensive sectors continued to outperform cyclical 
areas of the equity market. As shown in the chart on the following page, 2019 also 
saw solid returns for many other asset classes versus a tepid 2018. 

1 Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 
1



 
Source: Morningstar Direct 
 
The solid fourth quarter performance for global equities capped a strong year and a 
remarkable decade following the so-called “Lost Decade” of 2000 to 2010 which saw 
global stocks, as measured by the MSCI All Country World Index (MSCI ACWI), 
return less than 1% per year annualized. Coming into 2019, however, positive equity 
market returns were far from certain in the minds of many investors as the S&P 500 
flirted with bear market territory on Christmas Eve 2018.  
 
Santa Delivers 
 
Fears of a global recession brought on by a hawkish Fed policy mixed with escalating 
trade tensions between the U.S. and China swelled in 2019. The Fed’s dovish pivot 
provided some relief in the form of a “mid-cycle adjustment” that ultimately included 
three rate cuts along with an end to balance sheet run-off (or Quantitative Tightening). 
Prospects of a “phase one” trade deal between the U.S. and China added to global 
liquidity-driven positive sentiments that further dampened recession risks. Tacking on 
the improving prospects of an orderly Brexit following December’s UK elections, 
investors received just about everything they had hoped for last year. 

The 27% rally in global stocks in 2019, as measured by MSCI ACWI, capped a 
decade of significantly improved performance of 9% annualized for the 2010s. Much 
of the strong performance was attributable to the largest equity market, the U.S., 
where the S&P 500 compounded at 13.6% for the past 10 years. 
 
In spite of the equity market’s renewed mojo this year, clouds on the economic 
horizon remain. While leading economic indicators have ticked up, manufacturing 
activity remains a glaring weak spot globally. Only time will tell if thawing tensions 
between China and the U.S., combined with loosened monetary policy, will 
reinvigorate the beleaguered manufacturing sector. If unsuccessful, the risk of 
contagion into the consumer sector will be a concern to monitor closely.  
 
Investors will also be closely watching the domestic political landscape for signs of 
change. With political polarity spiking in recent years, outcomes have become more 
difficult to handicap. A change in the business-friendly climate in Washington may 
sour the optimistic mood of the markets.  
 
Keeping these risks in mind, our base case economic backdrop for equities – one that 
includes a carryforward assumption of low inflation and low, yet stable growth – 
remains positive. However, valuations appear to be fully reflecting this positive 
outlook and will limit the potential for outsized returns in the years to come. A similar 
conclusion can be drawn for fixed income, where interest rates remain low and credit 
spreads are tight. Amid such conditions while looking ahead to the 2020s, investors 
should expect lower returns across most asset classes, while maintaining durable 
diversified portfolios that can withstand episodic spikes in volatility.  
 
On to November: Visions of 2020 
 
With the Fed expected to take a pause from making rate adjustments and unlikely to 
provide excitement in 2020, investors are beginning to pay attention to politics and 
the impact of the election on markets and the economy. 
 
On the slate for November is the presidential election, as well as congressional 
elections for all 435 seats in the U.S. House of Representatives and 35 of the 100 
senatorial seats. While the last few years have seen headlines about U.S.-China 
trade relations, Democratic party candidate reveals and impeachment proceedings, 
2020 may be a year when voters demand that the candidates offer specific policies 
rather than vague wish lists. 
 
 
 

2



While it is early in the election cycle, and voters may already be fatigued, most 
observers anticipate that if the Republican party maintains the presidency, the 
administration would continue to seek increased defense spending, possibly act on 
prior infrastructure plans, and most likely continue aggressive trade policies with 
China and, potentially, Europe.  

If current trade policies continue with President Trump’s re-election, capital 
expenditure and business investment spending could suffer as a result of a spike in 
trade tensions. As shown in the chart below, the administration’s trade policies have 
led to significant uncertainty that is unlikely to recede.  

Source: “Measuring Economic Policy Uncertainty” by Scott Baker, Nicholas Bloom 
and Steven J. Davis at www.PolicyUncertainty.com. Data charts the frequency of 
articles in U.S. newspapers that discuss policy-related economic uncertainty and also 
contain one or more references to trade policy. 

The possibility of a Democratic administration also concerns investors because of the 

widely varying proposals of the Democratic hopefuls and little clarity on who the final 

candidate will be. The differences between tax changes proposed by, for example, 

candidates Sanders and Biden are dramatic, as are defense spending goals with 

Buttigieg planning to raise and Warren seeking to cut. That said, there are several 

areas where the Democratic candidates broadly agree while differing in the details: 

• roll back some or all of the 2017 Tax Cut and Jobs Act;

• increase tax rates for wealthy individuals; and

• change current banking and energy policies.

Banking and energy appear at this stage of the campaign to offer the clearest 

expectations of the potential impact of a Democratic presidency on specific market 

sectors. 

Glass-Steagall Redux? 

Two of the candidates, Sanders and Warren, would bring back the 1933 Glass-

Steagall Act which separated retail banking and investment banking. While Glass-

Steagall was repealed by Democratic President Bill Clinton in 1999, lack of Glass-

Steagall protection has often been cited by Democratic politicians as one cause of the 

Great Recession.  

Forcing banks to unwind the changes they have made to balance sheets and 

operations over the last 20 years would almost certainly result in lower profitability for 

the financial sector. 

The Democratic candidates also have plans for the oil patch, including ending new oil 

and gas leases on Federal lands, ending offshore drilling, enacting carbon taxes and, 

for Warren and Sanders, banning oil and gas extraction through fracking. These 

proposals could exacerbate current slowdowns in an energy sector already suffering 

from stubbornly low oil prices and a significant debt overhang.  

According to Moody’s Investor Services, the exploration and production sector holds 

some $93 billion in debt—nearly all of it below-investment grade—that will be coming 

3



due next year. If a fracking ban is implemented, the cash flow needed to service or 

refinance this debt, in addition to the already daunting task of refinancing below-

investment grade paper, will be even more onerous. A fracking ban could also lead to 

layoffs and lost employment in the gas and oil sector. 

Beyond banking and energy, the technology sector might also see increased 

regulatory oversight in a Democratic administration. While past administrations, in 

particular President Obama’s, welcomed the expertise—and lobbying—of tech 

heavyweight companies, a Democratic winner in November may want to follow the 

lead of several European nations which are pursuing legislative changes, antitrust 

enforcement, data privacy rules, and regulatory scrutiny of multinational technology 

and social media firms. These tech companies, which dramatically outperformed the 

U.S. stock market in 2019, may see new and unwelcome domestic pressures.  

Prospects for Legislative Success 

Perhaps heartening to investors is the likelihood that many of the more progressive 

Democratic proposals would face little chance of passage in a post-election Senate 

with a Republican majority. Even in the unlikely event of a Democratic takeover of the 

Senate majority, many of the Warren-Sanders initiatives might struggle to achieve the 

majority of votes needed to pass. 

If the Democratic party selects a moderate candidate and is successful in gaining the 

Presidency, a Democrat-led House of Representatives and a Republican Senate may 

find areas where compromise is achievable. Infrastructure spending and a solution to 

health care costs that continue to soar as the U.S. population ages may be two of the 

challenges that a divided Congress could successfully tackle. 

As the decade ended, a divided and rancorous Congress found ways to work 

together. Even in the midst of impeachment vitriol, Republicans and Democrats were 

able to pass important legislation that included a North American trade agreement 

(USMCA), prescription drug pricing, government funding, and defense spending. 

This is Now…That was Then 

Asset classes across the spectrum recorded positive returns in 2019 with nearly 

every asset class finishing in the green. From stocks to Treasuries, corporate bonds 

to REITs, investors of all persuasions recorded gains. Even Treasuries—which 

typically decline when risk assets such as stocks rally—ended the year with a gain of 

6.8%.2 What is surprising about the bumper crop of winners last year is the contrast, 

from a fundamentals perspective, between 2018 and 2019.  

In 2018, investors should have been encouraged by corporate earnings up 20%;3 

inflation-adjusted GDP growth above long-term averages at 3%; and the stimulative 

impacts of corporate tax cuts and deregulation of multiple industries and sectors. Yet 

in the midst of these buy-side signals, the S&P 500 lost 4.4% for the year. Among the 

suspects cited for lackluster market returns were trade tensions and Fed rate hikes. 

Fast forward to 2019, where corporate earnings flatlined at 0.3% according to 

FactSet; GDP growth fell to long-term averages of around 2%; and some progress, 

but no resolution was made to trade disputes with China and Europe. In the midst of 

these sell-side signals, the S&P 500 rallied to fresh highs—seemingly daily as the 

year drew to a close—and finished 2019 up 31.5%. The Fed’s dovish about-face, 

resulting in three rate cuts in 2019, have been key to understanding untethered 

animal spirits in the market. But it should be noted that the S&P 500 had already 

jumped nearly 20% even before the first rate cut following the Fed’s July 30-31 

meeting. 

If there is one lesson to take away from the divergences of 2018/2019, it is that short-

term market timing based on forecasting returns is a mug’s game where players may 

regret asset allocation shifts when market returns have proven to be irregular and 

lumpy. 

Looking Ahead 

The second half of 2019 saw data releases that helped assuage investor concerns 

over the summer that economic recession might be on the horizon. These included a 

Treasury yield curve returning from the inversion brink; a pickup in residential housing 

starts; and consumer sentiment that, while down from earlier peaks, had yet to hit 

2 As measured by the Bloomberg Barclays US Government Index. 

3 Source: FactSet Earnings Insight 
4



levels consistent with predicting an upcoming recession. Investors also cheered the 

USMCA which could add as much as 35 basis points to future GDP growth.4 

The “phase one” deal with China was also welcomed, but more as a promising start 

of a period of risk reduction and a sign of a renewed willingness on both sides to work 

together than as a resolution of numerous outstanding issues. Hopefully, “phase two” 

will supply more details that investors can use to determine the impact of a trade 

thaw. For now, “phase one” does little to resolve ongoing corporate concerns over 

global supply chain management and whether to increase capital expenditures on 

plants and equipment. 

There were a few lumps of coal left in Santa’s bag this past holiday season, including 

rising overseas tensions as North Korea—the Hermit Kingdom—resumes nuclear 

testing; potential market volatility as the impeachment process moves from the House 

to the Senate; and continuing recession in the U.S. manufacturing sector. As the year 

ended, Iran was added to the list of geopolitical hot spots. 

As shown in the chart to the right, the ISM Manufacturing Index dipped below 50 in 

August and has remained in contraction territory ever since. Meanwhile, the 

equivalent service sector gauge of growth dropped recently but continues to plot 

firmly in expansion. The PMI gauge shows manufacturing sector health is at its lowest 

point since the Great Recession a decade ago. A significant area of concern for 2020 

and beyond is whether the growing service sector and robust consumer spending can 

continue to offset manufacturing weakness.  

4 Source: International Trade Commission 

Source: FactSet, ISM - Institute for Supply Management 

The Fed Coasts: The Rise of Big Data 

The Fed’s Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) final meeting of 2019 in 

December was a rather dull affair that left rates unchanged at the current range of 

1.5% to 1.75%. The Committee also signaled that after a busy 2019 that saw three 

rate cuts, 2020 is expected to be a quiet year with no changes to rates expected and, 

possibly, one hike in 2021 and a second in 2022, although Fed Chair Powell admitted 

after the meeting that “none of us have much of a sense of what the economy will 

look like in 2021.” 

This quietude comes after a torrent of nine rate hikes over the last several years and 

might allow investors to shift their focus from Fed navel-gazing to other economic 

developments that impact bond and equity markets as the economy enters its 11th 

year of expansion and many of the summer’s recessionary warning signals fade. 

5



After the meeting, the Fed repeated its mantra that the FOMC will remain highly data- 

dependent before considering any moves, specifically noting that “The 

Committee…will take into account a wide range of information, including measures of 

labor market conditions, indicators of inflation pressures and inflation expectations, 

and readings on financial and international developments.” 

A key data point in support of the FOMC’s decision to pause adjusting rates was 

robust jobs creation. The November jobs report released by the U.S. Bureau of Labor 

Statistics (BLS) saw nonfarm payrolls surging by gains of 266,000 spread across 

most sectors and a revision that boosted the prior two months total by a further 

41,000 jobs, the largest increases since the beginning of 2019. The unemployment 

rate, meanwhile, dropped to 3.5%, matching its lowest level since 1969.  

Through the end of November, according to the BLS, 2.2 million nonfarm jobs were 

added this year with the majority of the new jobs coming in services-providing sectors 

such as education/health services; leisure/hospitality; and professional/business 

services which each added an average of 500,000 jobs. The goods producing sector 

added a net 217,000 jobs with manufacturing employment growing by only 76,000 

jobs. 

Nationwide, tepid employment growth in manufacturing reflects the ongoing recession 

in manufacturing as, after peaking in early 2018, manufacturing job growth has fallen 

back to its level just after the 2016 election.5 

Beggar thy Neighbor? 

Over the last three years, job growth and unemployment declines have seen 

dramatic, if uneven, data releases. Behind the overall numbers the benefits have 

been lumpy across the 50 states.  

Total employment since the 2016 election grew by an average of nearly 8% in the top 

five states of Arizona, Florida, Idaho, Nevada and Utah.6 Other states, including 

Texas, California, the Carolinas and Georgia, averaged around 5% growth. But 

5 Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 
6 Source: U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics 

Midwestern states—heavily reliant on manufacturing and agriculture--saw tepid job 

growth (averaging under 2% in Minnesota, Wisconsin, Michigan and Ohio). 

Job growth since the election in the manufacturing sector, while weak overall, was 

also strongest in other states, with 12 states recording growth in excess of 5%. Over 

the same period, the Midwestern swing states that were decisive in the 2016 election 

outcome and are likely to be just as critical in the next one, saw growth in the 1% to 

2% range, with Michigan actually losing manufacturing jobs.  

As shown in the chart below, over the last several months both the overall 

Midwestern economy and manufacturing declined to negative growth rates from their 

peaks in early 2018. 

Source: Federal Reserve Bank of St. Louis, Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago 

6



Charles Evans is the Chicago Federal Reserve Governor whose territory covers five 

midwestern states. The combined economy of these states is over 50% more 

concentrated in manufacturing than the nation. The five states also produce 40% of 

U.S. corn, soybeans and hogs.7 In an October speech, Governor Evans told the 

Peoria Economic Development Council: 

“An increasing number of my business contacts—particularly those in manufacturing 

or ones with a large international footprint—are telling me about delayed or canceled 

investment projects, and a few have mentioned downsizing workforce plans. And, of 

course, tariffs and other possible trade disruptions pose a threat to supply chains and 

business relationships, prompting some firms to reevaluate these elements of their 

business models.” 

The recent “phase one” trade announcement could help shore up farmer support for 

the president next year given China’s vow to purchase more agricultural products. But 

the manufacturing sector continues to be challenged and will prove difficult to boost 

through bilateral managed trade agreements. With manufacturing providing 13 million 

workers nationwide, many heavily concentrated in the Midwest, the president might 

need to convince swing state voters that he deserves another shot at delivering on his 

2016 promise to reinvigorate manufacturing in the heartland. 

7 Source: Federal Reserve Bank of Chicago 

Economic and Market Perspectives 
Q1 2020 

For more information, speak to your relationship manager or visit us at 
unionbank.com/theprivatebank 

Economic and Market Perspectives is a publication of HighMark Capital 
Management, Inc. (HighMark). This publication is for general information only and is 
not intended to provide specific advice to any individual or institution. Some 
information provided herein was obtained from third-party sources deemed to be 
reliable. HighMark and its affiliates make no representations or warranties with 
respect to the timeliness, accuracy, or completeness of this publication and bear no 
liability for any loss arising from its use. All forward-looking information and forecasts 
contained in this publication, unless otherwise noted, are the opinion of HighMark, 
and future market movements may differ significantly from our expectations. 
HighMark, an SEC-registered investment adviser, is a wholly owned subsidiary of 
MUFG Union Bank, N.A. (MUFG Union Bank). HighMark manages institutional 
separate account portfolios for a wide variety of for-profit and nonprofit organizations, 
public agencies, and public and private retirement plans. MUFG Union Bank, a 
subsidiary of MUFG Americas Holdings Corporation, provides certain services to 
HighMark and is compensated for these services. Past performance does not 
guarantee future results. Individual account management and construction will vary 
depending on each client's investment needs and objectives. The benchmarks 
referenced in this piece are used for comparative purposes only and are provided to 
represent the market conditions during the period(s) shown.  Benchmark returns do 
not reflect the deduction of advisory fees, custody fees, transaction costs, or other 
investment expenses, but the returns assume the reinvestment of dividends and other 
earnings. An investor cannot invest directly in unmanaged indices. Investments 
employing HighMark strategies: • Are NOT deposits or other obligations of, or 
guaranteed by, the Bank or any Bank affiliate • Are NOT insured by the FDIC or 
any other federal government agency • Are subject to investment risks, 
including the possible loss of principal invested. 

7

http://www.unionbank.com/theprivatebank
http://www.unionbank.com/theprivatebank


INVESTMENT POOLS - ASSET ALLOCATION
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Equity: 10% - 30% Equity: 25% - 45% Equity: 40%-60% Equity: 50% - 70%

Fixed Income: 40% - 80% Fixed Income: 30% - 70% Fixed Income: 20% - 60% Fixed Income: 15% - 35%

Alternatives: 10% - 20% Alternatives: 10% - 20% Alternatives: 10% - 20% Alternatives: 10% - 20%

Cash: 0% - 20% Cash: 0% - 20% Cash: 0% - 20% Cash: 0% - 20%

Equity: 60% - 80% Equity: 70% - 90% Equity: 75% - 95%

Fixed Income: 10% - 30% Fixed Income: 5% - 20% Fixed Income: 5% - 15%

Alternatives: 5% - 15% Alternatives: 5% - 15% Alternatives: 2% - 10%

Cash: 0% - 20% Cash: 0% - 20% Cash: 0% - 20%

55-59 years old 50-54 years old

Capital Preservation Income Income & Growth Balanced Income

65+ years old 60-64 years old

45-49 years old

Capital Appreciation

40-44 years old

Growth

< 40 years old

Balanced

Equity
20%

Fixed 
Inc

61%

Alts
14%

Cash
5%

Equity
35%

Fixed 
Inc

50%

Alts
13%

Cash
2%

Equity
50%

Fixed 
Inc

35%

Alts
13%

Cash
2%

Equity
60%

Fixed 
Inc

27%

Alts
12%

Cash
1%

Equity
70%

Fixed 
Inc

20%

Alts
9%

Cash
1%

Equity
80%

Fixed 
Inc

12%

Alts
7%

Cash
1%

Equity
85%

Fixed 
Inc
9%

Alts
5%

Cash
1%

8



INVESTMENT RETURNS - CAPITAL PRESERVATION PORTFOLIO
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Market Value Good

*Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

**Inception date: January 2006

Note: Alternatives benchmark was changed from HFRI FOF Index to Wilshire Liquid Alternatives Index as of 5/31/18

Annualized Total Rate of Return

as of December 31, 2019

(1) El Toro Cap Pres Benchmark: 12% S&P 500, 2% Russell MidCap, 2% Russell 2000, 3% MSCI EAFE, 1% MSCI Emerging Markets, 44% Barclays US Aggregate Bond, 17% Barclays 1-3 Year 

Government/Credit Bond, 14% Wilshire Liquid Alternatives, 5% ICE BofAML 3 Mo US T-Bill

2
.0

5
%

1
1

.8
0

%

1
1

.8
0

%

5
.1

1
%

3
.8

8
% 4

.8
6

%

4
.9

4
%

2
.1

8
%

1
1

.1
7

%

1
1

.1
7

%

4
.7

5
%

3
.5

2
%

3
.9

1
%

4
.2

8
%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

14.00%

4Q19* YTD* 1-Yr. 3-Yrs. 5-Yrs. 10-Yrs. ITD**

To
ta

l R
at

e 
o

f 
R

et
u

rn

Capital Preservation AA El Toro Cap Pres Benchmark(1)

9



INVESTMENT RETURNS - INCOME PORTFOLIO
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Market Value Good

*Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

**Inception date: August 2018

Note: Alternatives benchmark was changed from HFRI FOF Index to Wilshire Liquid Alternatives Index as of 5/31/18

Annualized Total Rate of Return

as of December 31, 2019

(1) El Toro Income Benchmark: 21% S&P 500, 3% Russell MidCap, 3% Russell 2000, 6% MSCI EAFE, 2% MSCI Emerging Market, 36% Barclays US Aggregate Bond, 14% Barclays 1-3 Year 

Government/Credit Bond, 13% Wilshire Liquid Alternatives, 2% ICE BofAML 3 Mo US T-Bill

3
.3

1
%

1
4

.2
1

%

1
4

.2
1

%

5
.7

5
%

3
.4

5
%

1
4

.4
1

%

1
4

.4
1

%

7
.0

2
%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

14.00%

16.00%

4Q19* YTD* 1-Yr. ITD**

To
ta

l R
at

e 
o

f 
R

et
u

rn

Income AA El Toro Income Benchmark(1)

10



INVESTMENT RETURNS - INCOME & GROWTH PORTFOLIO
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Market Value Good

*Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

**Inception date: January 2006

Note: Alternatives benchmark was changed from HFRI FOF Index to Wilshire Liquid Alternatives Index as of 5/31/18

Annualized Total Rate of Return

as of December 31, 2019

(1) El Toro Inc & Gro Benchmark: 30% S&P 500, 4% Russell MidCap, 4% Russell 2000, 9% MSCI EAFE, 3% MSCI Emerging Market, 25% Barclays US Aggregate Bond, 10% Barclays 1-3 Year 

Government/Credit Bond, 13% Wilshire Liquid Alternatives, 2% ICE BofAML 3 Mo US T-Bill

4
.6

6
%

1
7

.6
5

%

1
7

.6
5

%

6
.9

4
%

5
.1

5
% 6

.5
9

%

5
.7

9
%

4
.7

6
%

1
7

.5
0

%

1
7

.5
0

%

6
.9

9
%

5
.2

2
%

5
.9

0
%

5
.4

5
%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

14.00%

16.00%

18.00%

20.00%

4Q19* YTD* 1-Yr. 3-Yrs. 5-Yrs. 10-Yrs. ITD**

To
ta

l R
at

e 
o

f 
R

et
u

rn

Income & Growth AA El Toro Inc & Gro Benchmark(1)

11



INVESTMENT RETURNS - BALANCED INCOME PORTFOLIO
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Market Value Good

*Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

**Inception date: August 2018

Note: Alternatives benchmark was changed from HFRI FOF Index to Wilshire Liquid Alternatives Index as of 5/31/18

Annualized Total Rate of Return

as of December 31, 2019

(1) El Toro Bal Inc Benchmark: 36% S&P 500, 4% Russell MidCap, 4% Russell 2000, 12% MSCI EAFE, 4% MSCI Emerging Market, 19% Barclays US Aggregate Bond, 8% Barclays 1-3 Year 

Government/Credit Bond, 12% Wilshire Liquid Alternatives, 1% ICE BofAML 3 Mo US T-Bill

5
.5

5
%

1
9

.5
3

%

1
9

.5
3

%

6
.6

6
%

5
.6

3
%

1
9

.5
5

%

1
9

.5
5

%

7
.7

9
%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

4Q19* YTD* 1-Yr. ITD**

To
ta

l R
at

e 
o

f 
R

et
u

rn

Balanced Income AA El Toro Bal Inc Benchmark(1)

12



INVESTMENT RETURNS - BALANCED PORTFOLIO
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Market Value Good

*Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

**Inception date: January 2006

Note: Alternatives benchmark was changed from HFRI FOF Index to Wilshire Liquid Alternatives Index as of 5/31/18

Annualized Total Rate of Return

as of December 31, 2019

(1) El Toro Balanced Benchmark: 42% S&P 500, 5% Russell MidCap, 5% Russell 2000, 14% MSCI EAFE, 4% MSCI Emerging Market, 14% Barclays US Aggregate Bond, 6% Barclays 1-3 Year 

Government/Credit Bond, 9% Wilshire Liquid Alternatives, 1% ICE BofAML 3 Mo US T-Bill

6
.3

2
%

2
1

.4
6

%

2
1

.4
6

%

8
.6

1
%

6
.4

7
% 8

.0
6

%

6
.4

3
%

6
.4

4
%

2
1

.7
4

%

2
1

.7
4

%

8
.9

3
%

6
.6

3
%

7
.4

8
%

6
.3

1
%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

4Q19* YTD* 1-Yr. 3-Yrs. 5-Yrs. 10-Yrs. ITD**

To
ta

l R
at

e 
o

f 
R

et
u

rn

Balanced AA El Toro Balanced Benchmark(1)

13



INVESTMENT RETURNS - CAPITAL APPRECIATION PORTFOLIO
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Market Value Good

*Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

**Inception date: August 2018

Note: Alternatives benchmark was changed from HFRI FOF Index to Wilshire Liquid Alternatives Index as of 5/31/18

Annualized Total Rate of Return

as of December 31, 2019

(1) El Toro Cap Appr Benchmark: 48% S&P 500, 6% Russell MidCap, 6% Russell 2000, 16% MSCI EAFE, 4% MSCI Emerging Market, 8% Barclays US Aggregate Bond, 4% Barclays 1-3 year 

Government/Credit, 7% Wilshire Liquid Alternatives, 1% ICE BofAML 3 Mo US T-Bill

7
.2

1
%

2
3

.4
1

%

2
3

.4
1

%

7
.2

6
%

7
.2

8
%

2
3

.9
2

%

2
3

.9
2

%

8
.4

9
%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

4Q19* YTD* 1-Yr. ITD**

To
ta

l R
at

e 
o

f 
R

et
u

rn

Capital Appreciation AA El Toro Cap Appr Benchmark(1)

14



INVESTMENT RETURNS - GROWTH PORTFOLIO
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Market Value Good

*Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

**Inception date: January 2006

Note: Alternatives benchmark was changed from HFRI FOF Index to Wilshire Liquid Alternatives Index as of 5/31/18

Annualized Total Rate of Return

as of December 31, 2019

(1) El Toro Growth Benchmark: 51% S&P 500, 6% Russell MidCap, 6% Russell 2000, 17% MSCI EAFE, 5% MSCI Emerging Market, 6% Barclays US Aggregate Bond, 3% Barclays 1-3 year 

Government/Credit, 5% Wilshire Liquid Alternatives, 1% ICE BofAML 3 Mo US T-Bill

7
.5

9
%

2
4

.5
5

%

2
4

.5
5

%

9
.8

5
%

7
.3

4
% 8
.7

9
%

7
.0

2
%

7
.7

2
%

2
4

.9
5

%

2
4

.9
5

%

1
0

.4
4

%

7
.7

2
%

8
.7

3
%

6
.9

5
%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

4Q19* YTD* 1-Yr. 3-Yrs. 5-Yrs. 10-Yrs. ITD**

To
ta

l R
at

e 
o

f 
R

et
u

rn

Growth AA El Toro Growth Benchmark(1)

15



INVESTMENT RETURNS - FIXED INCOME FUNDS
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Ticker Name

MStar 

Rating* 3-Mos.** YTD** 1-Yr. 3-Yrs. 5-Yrs. 10-Yrs.

VFSUX Vanguard Short-Term Investment-Grade Adm 4 0.63 5.84 5.84 2.96 2.56 2.76

DODIX Dodge & Cox Income 4 0.87 9.75 9.75 4.52 3.70 4.43

DBLFX DoubleLine Core Fixed Income I 4 0.32 7.99 7.99 4.16 3.44 -

PTTRX PIMCO Total Return Instl 3 -0.30 8.26 8.26 4.31 3.25 4.19

PTRQX PGIM Total Return Bond R6 5 0.35 11.13 11.13 5.62 4.33 5.52

*Morningstar overall rating

**Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

Returns are shown net of embedded expense ratios

Source:  Morningstar Direct

Annualized Total Rate of Return (%) as of 12/31/2019

Short-Term Bond

Intermediate-Term Bond

16



INVESTMENT RETURNS - EQUITY FUNDS
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Ticker Name

MStar 

Rating* 3-Mos.** YTD** 1-Yr. 3-Yrs. 5-Yrs. 10-Yrs.

COFYX Columbia Contrarian Core Inst3 3 9.21 33.08 33.08 13.94 10.69 13.33

VGIAX Vanguard Growth & Income Adm 4 8.79 29.77 29.77 14.35 11.33 13.57

DODGX Dodge & Cox Stock 4 10.09 24.83 24.83 11.13 9.72 12.60

PKAIX PIMCO RAE US Instl 3 8.21 24.87 24.87 10.61 - -

IVE iShares S&P 500 Value ETF 4 9.88 31.71 31.71 11.31 9.35 11.97

HNACX Harbor Capital Appreciation Retirement 4 12.45 33.39 33.39 21.77 14.68 14.58

LSITX ClearBridge Large Cap Growth IS 4 9.04 32.22 32.22 18.42 14.30 14.69

VO Vanguard Mid-Cap ETF 5 6.88 31.04 31.04 12.36 9.26 13.08

DCZRX Delaware Small Cap Core R6 4 7.49 26.15 26.15 8.51 8.45 13.35

VB Vanguard Small-Cap ETF 5 8.14 27.37 27.37 10.32 8.89 12.81

*Morningstar overall rating

**Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

Returns are shown net of embedded expense ratios

Source:  Morningstar Direct

Small Blend

Large Blend

Annualized Total Rate of Return (%) as of 12/31/2019

Large Growth

Large Value

Mid Blend

17



INVESTMENT RETURNS - EQUITY FUNDS
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Ticker Name

MStar 

Rating* 3-Mos.** YTD** 1-Yr. 3-Yrs. 5-Yrs. 10-Yrs.

RSEJX Victory RS Small Cap Growth R6 4 13.46 38.38 38.38 20.10 11.83 15.11

VBK Vanguard Small-Cap Growth ETF 4 9.35 32.75 32.75 15.14 10.51 13.65

UBVFX Undiscovered Managers Behavioral Val R6 5 7.29 23.34 23.34 5.90 8.26 13.28

DODFX Dodge & Cox International Stock 3 10.61 22.78 22.78 7.67 3.68 5.76

DFALX DFA Large Cap International I 3 8.02 22.04 22.04 9.52 5.65 5.44

HEFA iShares Currency Hedged MSCI EAFE ETF 5 5.30 24.73 24.73 9.72 8.02 -

MGRDX MFS International Growth R6 4 9.03 27.31 27.31 15.47 9.70 7.79

HHHFX Hartford Schroders Emerging Mkts Eq F 4 11.32 22.32 22.32 13.40 7.05 4.19

*Morningstar overall rating

**Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

Returns are shown net of embedded expense ratios

Source:  Morningstar Direct

Small Cap Value

Diversified Emerging Markets

Small Growth

Annualized Total Rate of Return (%) as of 12/31/2019

Foreign Large Blend

Foreign Large Growth

Foreign Large Value

18



INVESTMENT RETURNS - ALTERNATIVE FUNDS
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Ticker Name

MStar 

Rating* 3-Mos.** YTD** 1-Yr. 3-Yrs. 5-Yrs. 10-Yrs.

QMNIX AQR Equity Market Neutral I 2 -2.78 -11.27 -11.27 -6.06 0.63 -

BSIKX BlackRock Strategic Income Opps K 4 1.61 7.82 7.82 4.05 3.09 4.45

BILPX BlackRock Event Driven Equity Instl 5 1.42 7.29 7.29 6.64 4.48 9.44

AQMIX AQR Managed Futures Strategy I 2 -2.59 1.93 1.93 -2.75 -2.99 -

AMFNX Natixis ASG Managed Futures Strategy N 3 -4.13 8.45 8.45 0.46 -1.09 -

ARBNX Arbitrage I 3 1.36 3.83 3.83 3.01 2.70 2.32

EGRSX Eaton Vance Glbl Macro Abs Ret Advtg R6 4 5.26 14.78 14.78 3.75 4.26 -

LAOSX Western Asset Macro Opportunities IS 5 5.96 16.80 16.80 8.37 6.62 -

BXMIX Blackstone Alternative Multi-Strategy I 4 2.14 6.77 6.77 4.07 3.41 -

QSPIX AQR Style Premia Alternative I 2 -3.71 -8.20 -8.20 -3.39 -0.49 -

ICF iShares Cohen & Steers REIT ETF 3 -1.74 25.48 25.48 8.71 7.32 11.88

*Morningstar overall rating

**Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

Returns are shown net of embedded expense ratios

Source:  Morningstar Direct

Fund of Hedge Funds

Market Neutral

Managed Futures

Merger Arbitrage

Global Macro

REITs

Annualized Total Rate of Return (%) as of 12/31/2019

19



INVESTMENT RETURNS & RANKINGS - FIXED INCOME FUNDS
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Ticker Name

Exp 

Ratio

MStar 

Rtg* Tot ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

3 Yr 

Shrp% 3 Yr SD Lipper Category

VFSUX Vanguard Short-Term Investment-Grade Adm 0.10 4 0.63 39 37 5.84 18 9 5.84 18 9 2.96 18 16 2.56 15 12 2.76 19 14 1.08 1.17 Lipper Sht Inv Grade Debt Funds

Peer Group US Fund Short-Term Bond 0.61 4.72 4.72 2.46 2.00 2.18 0.75 1.02

Index BBgBarc US Govt/Credit 1-3 Yr TR USD 0.59 4.03 4.03 2.15 1.67 1.54 0.49 0.93

DBLFX DoubleLine Core Fixed Income I 0.42 4 0.32 55 57 7.99 76 81 7.99 76 81 4.16 48 49 3.44 29 38 - - n.a. 1.14 2.13 Lipper Core Plus Bond Funds

DODIX Dodge & Cox Income 0.42 4 0.87 11 5 9.75 32 19 9.75 32 19 4.52 25 11 3.70 15 6 4.43 36 15 1.36 2.05 Lipper Core Bond Funds

PTTRX PIMCO Total Return Instl 0.71 3 -0.30 94 94 8.26 73 75 8.26 73 75 4.31 36 43 3.25 45 50 4.19 54 54 0.94 2.75 Lipper Core Plus Bond Funds

PTRQX PGIM Total Return Bond R6 0.4 5 0.35 51 52 11.13 7 13 11.13 7 13 5.62 2 3 4.33 3 6 5.52 8 n.a. 1.26 3.06 Lipper Core Plus Bond Funds

Peer Group US Fund Intermediate Core Bond 0.12 8.06 8.06 3.59 2.72 3.55 0.70 2.68

Index BBgBarc US Agg Bond TR USD 0.18 8.72 8.72 4.03 3.05 3.75 0.80 2.91

*Morningstar overall rating

**Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

Source:  Morningstar Direct; Wilshire Compass (Lipper Rankings)

Annualized Total Rate of Return (%) as of 12/31/2019

Short-Term Bond

Intermediate-Term Bond

Returns are shown net of embedded expense ratios.  Mstar Rnkg - Fund's ranking within Morningstar's category ("Peer Group"). Funds are ranked in descending order by return. For example, a Fund with a 20 ranking indicates that it is ranked in the top 20th percentile.

3-Mos** 10-Years5-Years3-Years1-YearYTD**

20



INVESTMENT RETURNS & RANKINGS - EQUITY FUNDS
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Ticker Name

Exp 

Ratio

MStar 

Rtg* Tot ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

3 Yr 

Shrp% 3 Yr SD Lipper Category

COFYX Columbia Contrarian Core Inst3 0.64 3 9.21 23 31 33.08 10 14 33.08 10 14 13.94 48 53 10.69 40 38 13.33 18 n.a. 0.96 12.72 Lipper Large-Cap Core Funds

VGIAX Vanguard Growth & Income Adm 0.23 4 8.79 47 50 29.77 51 51 29.77 51 51 14.35 41 44 11.33 22 23 13.57 7 11 1.03 12.20 Lipper Large-Cap Core Funds

Peer Group US Fund Large Blend 8.15 28.78 28.78 13.26 9.78 12.03 0.95 12.27

Index Russell 1000 TR USD 9.04 31.43 31.43 15.05 11.48 13.54 1.07 12.22

Index S&P 500 TR USD 9.07 31.49 31.49 15.27 11.70 13.56 1.10 12.10

DODGX Dodge & Cox Stock 0.52 4 10.09 6 11 24.83 58 68 24.83 58 68 11.13 31 29 9.72 13 9 12.60 10 9 0.73 13.34 Lipper Large-Cap Value Funds

PKAIX PIMCO RAE US Instl 0.40 3 8.21 35 37 24.87 57 50 24.87 57 50 10.61 40 20 - - n.a. - - n.a. 0.72 12.71 Lipper Large-Cap Core Funds

IVE iShares S&P 500 Value ETF 0.18 4 9.88 8 14 31.71 5 5 31.71 5 5 11.31 28 26 9.35 24 18 11.97 25 19 0.76 12.86 Lipper Large-Cap Value Funds

Peer Group US Fund Large Value 7.38 25.04 25.04 9.97 7.99 10.90 0.71 12.38

Index Russell 1000 Value TR USD 7.41 26.54 26.54 9.68 8.29 11.80 0.69 12.02

HNACX Harbor Capital Appreciation Retirement 0.58 4 12.45 9 5 33.39 39 51 33.39 39 51 21.77 17 20 14.68 15 n.a. 14.58 24 n.a. 1.28 15.00 Lipper Large-Cap Growth Funds

LSITX ClearBridge Large Cap Growth IS 0.65 4 9.04 59 68 32.22 49 65 32.22 49 65 18.42 47 70 14.30 19 26 14.69 21 n.a. 1.23 13.09 Lipper Large-Cap Growth Funds

Peer Group US Fund Large Growth 9.36 31.90 31.90 18.09 12.10 13.40 1.17 13.71

Index Russell 1000 Growth TR USD 10.62 36.39 36.39 20.49 14.63 15.22 1.35 13.26

VO Vanguard Mid-Cap ETF 0.04 5 6.88 55 47 31.04 13 17 31.04 13 17 12.36 11 9 9.26 17 21 13.08 8 8 0.84 12.93 Lipper Mid-Cap Core Funds

Peer Group US Fund Mid-Cap Blend 7.07 26.21 26.21 9.15 7.15 11.09 0.59 13.82

Index Russell Mid Cap TR USD 7.06 30.54 30.54 12.06 9.33 13.19 0.81 13.08

*Morningstar overall rating

**Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

Source:  Morningstar Direct; Wilshire Compass (Lipper Rankings)

YTD** 1-Year 3-Years

Large Value

Large Growth

Mid Core

5-Years 10-Years3-Mos**

Annualized Total Rate of Return (%) as of 12/31/2019

Returns are shown net of embedded expense ratios.  Mstar Rnkg - Fund's ranking within Morningstar's category ("Peer Group"). Funds are ranked in descending order by return. For example, a Fund with a 20 ranking indicates that it is ranked in the top 20th percentile.

Large Blend

21



INVESTMENT RETURNS & RANKINGS - EQUITY FUNDS
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Ticker Name

Exp 

Ratio

MStar 

Rtg* Tot ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

3 Yr 

Shrp% 3 Yr SD Lipper Category

UBVFX Undiscovered Managers Behavioral Val R6 0.8 5 7.29 69 65 23.34 30 55 23.34 30 55 5.90 19 57 8.26 8 25 13.28 1 n.a. 0.31 18.18 Lipper Small-Cap Value Funds

Peer Group US Fund Small Value 8.02 21.43 21.43 3.66 5.40 9.82 0.20 16.74

Index Russell 2000 Value TR USD 8.49 22.39 22.39 4.77 6.99 10.56 0.27 15.90

DCZRX Delaware Small Cap Core R6 0.74 4 7.49 63 60 26.15 27 26 26.15 27 26 8.51 24 23 8.45 24 n.a. 13.35 3 n.a. 0.48 16.25 Lipper Small-Cap Core Funds

VB Vanguard Small-Cap ETF 0.05 5 8.14 50 46 27.37 18 18 27.37 18 18 10.32 7 7 8.89 17 16 12.81 10 8 0.62 14.86 Lipper Small-Cap Core Funds

Peer Group US Fund Small Blend 8.02 23.75 23.75 6.84 7.12 11.17 0.40 15.72

Index Russell 2000 TR USD 9.94 25.52 25.52 8.59 8.23 11.83 0.49 15.94

RSEJX Victory RS Small Cap Growth R6 1.06 4 13.46 8 5 38.38 8 5 38.38 8 7 20.10 12 n.a. 11.83 20 n.a. 15.11 11 n.a. 1.04 17.53 Lipper Small-Cap Growth Funds

VBK Vanguard Small-Cap Growth ETF 0.07 4 9.35 49 52 32.75 27 52 32.75 27 34 15.14 39 44 10.51 41 42 13.65 36 39 0.88 15.57 Lipper Small-Cap Growth Funds

Peer Group US Fund Small Growth 9.46 27.68 27.68 13.66 9.92 12.68 0.75 16.68

Index Russell 2000 Growth TR USD 11.39 28.48 28.48 12.49 9.34 13.01 0.69 16.60

*Morningstar overall rating

**Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

Source:  Morningstar Direct; Wilshire Compass (Lipper Rankings)

Small Value

Small Growth

3-Mos** YTD** 1-Year 3-Years 5-Years 10-Years

Returns are shown net of embedded expense ratios.  Mstar Rnkg - Fund's ranking within Morningstar's category ("Peer Group"). Funds are ranked in descending order by return. For example, a Fund with a 20 ranking indicates that it is ranked in the top 20th percentile.

Small Blend

Annualized Total Rate of Return (%) as of 12/31/2019

22



INVESTMENT RETURNS & RANKINGS - EQUITY FUNDS
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Ticker Name

Exp 

Ratio

MStar 

Rtg* Tot ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

3 Yr 

Shrp% 3 Yr SD Lipper Category

DFALX DFA Large Cap International I 0.23 3 8.02 64 64 22.04 43 31 22.04 43 31 9.52 45 32 5.65 42 33 5.44 38 34 0.70 11.48 Lipper International Large-Cap Core

HEFA iShares Currency Hedged MSCI EAFE ETF 0.03 5 5.30 95 93 24.73 17 10 24.73 17 10 9.72 37 25 8.02 2 3 - - n.a. 0.82 9.85 Lipper International Multi-Cap Core

Peer Group US Fund Foreign Large Blend 8.39 21.59 21.59 9.09 5.37 5.15 0.68 11.48

Peer Group US Fund Europe Stock 9.23 24.68 24.68 9.55 5.92 5.55 0.66 12.43

Index MSCI EAFE NR USD 8.17 22.01 22.01 9.56 5.67 5.50 0.73 10.96

Index MSCI ACWI Ex USA NR USD 8.92 21.51 21.51 9.87 5.51 4.97 0.73 11.50

DODFX Dodge & Cox International Stock 0.63 3 10.61 11 6 22.78 7 48 22.78 7 48 7.67 33 63 3.68 62 68 5.76 15 18 0.48 13.96 Lipper International Large-Cap Growth 

Peer Group US Fund Foreign Large Value 8.44 17.80 17.80 6.81 3.76 4.23 0.48 11.82

Index MSCI EAFE Value NR USD 7.82 16.09 16.09 6.31 3.54 3.98 0.43 11.80

Index MSCI ACWI Ex USA Value NR USD 8.21 15.71 15.71 6.88 3.65 3.64 0.47 11.91

MGRDX MFS International Growth R6 0.76 4 9.03 58 48 27.31 60 43 27.31 60 43 15.47 18 10 9.70 12 7 7.79 21 9 1.21 10.96 Lipper International Multi-Cap Growth

Peer Group US Fund Foreign Large Growth 9.37 27.83 27.83 12.69 7.25 6.90 0.83 12.07

Index MSCI EAFE Growth NR USD 8.45 27.90 27.90 12.84 7.71 6.95 1.01 10.90

Index MSCI ACWI Ex USA Growth NR USD 9.58 27.34 27.34 12.89 7.30 6.24 0.95 11.66

HHHFX Hartford Schroders Emerging Mkts Eq F 1.07 4 11.32 42 45 22.32 30 40 22.32 30 40 13.40 18 n.a. 7.05 16 n.a. 4.19 36 n.a. 0.82 14.58 Lipper Emerging Markets Funds

Peer Group US Fund Diversified Emerging Mkts 10.33 19.25 19.25 10.49 4.84 3.75 0.66 13.79

Index MSCI EM NR USD 11.84 18.42 18.42 11.57 5.61 3.68 0.71 14.37

*Morningstar overall rating

**Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

Source:  Morningstar Direct; Wilshire Compass (Lipper Rankings)

Foreign Large Blend

Returns are shown net of embedded expense ratios.  Mstar Rnkg - Fund's ranking within Morningstar's category ("Peer Group"). Funds are ranked in descending order by return. For example, a Fund with a 20 ranking indicates that it is ranked in the top 20th percentile.

Diversified Emerging Markets

Foreign Large Growth

3-Mos** YTD** 1-Year

Foreign Large Value

10-Years

Annualized Total Rate of Return (%) as of 12/31/2019

5-Years3-Years

23



INVESTMENT RETURNS & RANKINGS - ALTERNATIVE FUNDS
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Ticker Name

Exp 

Ratio

MStar 

Rtg* Tot ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

Tot 

ROR

Mstar 

Rnkg

Lipper 

Rnkg

3 Yr 

Shrp% 3 Yr SD Lipper Category

QMNIX AQR Equity Market Neutral I 1.99 2 -2.78 87 82 -11.27 94 88 -11.27 94 88 -6.06 94 89 0.63 55 39 - - n.a. -1.32 5.81 Lipper Alt Equity Mkt Neutral

BSIKX BlackRock Strategic Income Opps K 1 4 1.61 42 36 7.82 36 46 7.82 36 46 4.05 32 42 3.09 42 n.a. 4.45 16 n.a. 1.28 1.76 Lipper Alt Credit Focus Funds

BILPX BlackRock Event Driven Equity Instl 1.28 5 1.42 34 84 7.29 13 45 7.29 13 45 6.64 1 15 4.48 - 9 9.44 - 1 1.52 3.14 Lipper Alt Event Driven Funds

AQMIX AQR Managed Futures Strategy I 1.16 2 -2.59 44 36 1.93 60 64 1.93 60 64 -2.75 84 86 -2.99 88 88 - - n.a. -0.48 8.64 Lipper Alt Managed Futures

AMFNX Natixis ASG Managed Futures Strategy N 1.36 3 -4.13 75 67 8.45 26 25 8.45 26 25 0.46 51 n.a. -1.09 56 n.a. - - n.a. -0.05 11.72 Lipper Alt Managed Futures

ARBNX Arbitrage I 1.68 3 1.36 36 87 3.83 41 89 3.83 41 89 3.01 41 62 2.70 21 64 2.32 35 86 0.73 1.75 Lipper Alt Event Driven Funds

EGRSX Eaton Vance Glbl Macro Abs Ret Advtg R6 1.26 4 5.26 2 23 14.78 4 47 14.78 4 47 3.75 37 n.a. 4.26 11 n.a. - - n.a. 0.48 4.25 Lipper Alt Global Macro Funds

LAOSX Western Asset Macro Opportunities IS 1.21 5 5.96 1 13 16.80 1 30 16.80 1 30 8.37 2 17 6.62 1 4 - - n.a. 1.01 6.46 Lipper Alt Credit Focus Funds

BXMIX Blackstone Alternative Multi-Strategy I 3.19 4 2.14 40 17 6.77 58 55 6.77 58 55 4.07 30 22 3.41 12 4 - - n.a. 0.66 3.52 Lipper Alt Multi-Strategy Funds

QSPIX AQR Style Premia Alternative I 2.24 2 -3.71 99 95 -8.20 99 98 -8.20 99 98 -3.39 96 97 -0.49 87 92 - - n.a. -0.78 6.32 Lipper Absolute Return

ICF iShares Cohen & Steers REIT ETF 0.34 3 -1.74 97 97 25.48 64 67 25.48 64 67 8.71 42 39 7.32 35 33 11.88 34 32 0.63 11.51 Lipper Real Estate Funds

*Morningstar overall rating

**Returns for periods under one year are not annualized

Source:  Morningstar Direct; Wilshire Compass (Lipper Rankings)

Market Neutral

10-Years3-Mos** YTD** 1-Year 3-Years 5-Years

Returns are shown net of embedded expense ratios.  Mstar Rnkg - Fund's ranking within Morningstar's category ("Peer Group"). Funds are ranked in descending order by return. For example, a Fund with a 20 ranking indicates that it is ranked in the top 20th percentile.

Annualized Total Rate of Return (%) as of 12/31/2019

Global Macro

Fund of Hedge Funds

REITs

Merger Arbitrage

Managed Futures

24



TARGET FUND ALLOCATIONS
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Capital 

Preservation Income

Income & 

Growth

Balanced 

Income Balanced

Capital 

Appreciation Growth

Equity 20% 34% 50% 59% 69% 79% 84% Ticker Fund Name
Large Cap Blend 3.09% 5.22% 8.18% 9.41% 10.91% 12.31% 12.36% COFYX Columbia Contrarian Core Inst3

3.04% 5.15% 8.39% 9.25% 10.67% 12.04% 12.34% VGIAX Vanguard Growth & Income Adm
Large Cap Growth 1.49% 2.52% 3.26% 4.27% 4.65% 5.58% 5.90% HNACX Harbor Capital Appreciation Retirement

1.34% 2.27% 2.91% 3.83% 4.53% 4.99% 5.69% LSITX ClearBridge Large Cap Growth IS
Large Cap Value 1.51% 2.52% 3.32% 4.06% 4.58% 5.42% 5.74% PKAIX PIMCO RAE US Instl

1.51% 2.51% 3.30% 4.04% 4.57% 5.32% 5.71% DODGX Dodge & Cox Stock
0.15% 0.25% 0.40% 0.51% 0.50% 0.99% 0.99% IVE iShares S&P 500 Value ETF

Mid Cap Blend 0.40% 0.70% 1.00% 1.20% 2.00% 3.43% 3.64% VO Vanguard Mid-Cap ETF
Small Cap Blend 0.67% 1.89% 1.66% 1.35% 1.67% 2.01% 2.16% DCZRX Delaware Small Cap Core R6

0.45% 0.70% 1.41% 1.42% 1.94% 1.96% 2.12% VB Vanguard Small-Cap ETF
Small Cap Growth 0.43% 0.65% 1.08% 1.55% 1.63% 1.84% 2.09% RSEJX Victory RS Small Cap Growth R6

0.41% 0.51% 1.01% 1.43% 1.51% 1.58% 1.77% VBK Vanguard Small-Cap Growth ETF
Small Cap Value 0.87% 1.14% 2.08% 2.99% 3.23% 3.47% 3.87% UBVFX Undiscovered Managers Behavioral Val R6
Foreign Large Blend 1.05% 1.39% 1.56% 1.86% 1.91% 2.37% 3.09% HEFA iShares Currency Hedged MSCI EAFE ETF

1.58% 2.88% 5.20% 6.13% 7.56% 7.96% 8.09% DFALX DFA Large Cap International I
Foreign Large Growth 0.51% 0.99% 1.11% 1.47% 1.65% 1.89% 2.25% MGRDX MFS International Growth R6
Foreign Large Value 0.49% 1.00% 1.10% 1.40% 1.67% 1.89% 2.25% DODFX Dodge & Cox International Stock
Emerging Markets 1.08% 1.83% 2.59% 3.06% 3.52% 3.85% 3.86% HHHFX Hartford Schroders Emerging Mkts Eq F

Alternatives 14% 12% 13% 11% 9% 7% 5% Ticker Fund Name
Global Macro 1.76% 1.50% 1.52% 1.47% 0.99% 0.78% 0.51% EGRSX Eaton Vance Glbl Macro Abs Ret Advtg R6

1.73% 1.48% 1.55% 1.29% 1.00% 0.77% 0.50% LAOSX Western Asset Macro Opportunities IS
Managed Futures 1.23% 1.23% 1.11% 1.21% 0.85% 0.68% 0.45% AQMIX AQR Managed Futures Strategy I

1.26% 1.25% 1.13% 1.23% 0.87% 0.69% 0.46% AMFNX Natixis ASG Managed Futures Strategy N
Merger/Arbitrage 0.03% 0.02% 0.03% 0.03% 0.02% 0.01% 0.01% ARBNX Arbitrage I
Market Neutral 0.63% 0.39% 0.49% 0.51% 0.32% 0.32% 0.22% QMNIX AQR Equity Market Neutral I

0.75% 0.71% 0.68% 0.50% 0.47% 0.38% 0.28% BSIKX BlackRock Strategic Income Opps K
1.24% 1.39% 1.49% 0.99% 0.92% 0.83% 0.55% BILPX BlackRock Event Driven Equity Instl

Multi-Strategy / Fund of Funds 1.74% 1.68% 1.43% 1.42% 0.93% 0.69% 0.52% BXMIX Blackstone Alternative Multi-Strategy I
0.96% 0.81% 1.14% 0.84% 0.82% 0.57% 0.39% QSPIX AQR Style Premia Alternative I

REITs 2.67% 2.02% 2.43% 1.99% 1.61% 1.43% 1.19% ICF iShares Cohen & Steers REIT ETFDJP iPath DJ AIG Comm. Index TR

Fixed Income 62% 49% 35% 26% 18% 10% 7% Ticker Fund Name
Short Term Bond 6.97% 4.47% 2.98% 3.25% 2.29% 1.02% 0.25% VFSUX Vanguard Short-Term Investment-Grade Adm
Intermediate-Term Bond 13.59% 11.15% 7.79% 5.48% 3.99% 2.13% 1.63% DBLFX DoubleLine Core Fixed Income I

13.65% 11.21% 7.82% 5.53% 4.00% 2.14% 1.64% PTTRX PIMCO Total Return Instl
13.99% 11.35% 8.01% 5.69% 4.05% 2.20% 1.68% PTRQX PGIM Total Return Bond R6
13.79% 11.31% 7.90% 5.55% 4.03% 2.16% 1.66% DODIX Dodge & Cox IncomeDJP iPath DJ AIG Comm. Index TR

Cash 4% 4% 3% 4% 4% 4% 4% Ticker Fund Name
Cash & Equivalents 3.94% 3.94% 2.96% 3.81% 4.15% 4.33% 4.17% FIGXX Fidelity Money Market Government Portfolio I

TOTAL 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Target Allocations are subject to change without notice.

25



INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO SUMMARY - CAPITAL PRESERVATION
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Account Snapshot
 Data as of: 12/31/2019

Asset Class Market Value Tax Cost Est. Annual Income Current Yield (%)
Portfolio Manager: Cash & Equivalents $133,645.00 $133,645.00 $2,003.34 1.50%
Keith Stribling, CFA Fixed Income $2,246,237.63 $2,232,797.06 $72,171.62 3.21%

Equities $680,929.69 $610,587.55 $11,684.75 1.72%
Alternatives $331,165.67 $346,392.09 $10,319.12 3.12%
Other $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

Total $3,391,977.99 $3,323,421.70 $96,178.83 2.84%

Asset Allocation Income Summary (1, 2)
3.9% Cash & Equivalents

Cash & Equivalents Income Earned YTD $966
66.2% Fixed Income Taxable Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $36,018

Tax-Exempt Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $0
20.1% Equities Equity Income Earned YTD $37,114

Alternative Income Earned YTD $8,356
9.8% Alternatives Other Income Earned YTD $0

Total $82,454

0.0% Other

Net Gain/Loss Summary (3)

Realized Unrealized

Net Short Term Gain/Loss $13,981

Net Long Term Gain/Loss $30,709

Total $44,689 $68,556

(1) As of 12/31/2019

(3) Gain/Loss information is for informational purposes only.

Yields are gross of any 

fees and reflect the 

reinvestment of 

dividends and other 

income

(2) Information is calculated on a calendar year basis and includes income, dividends, and capital 

gain distributions

26



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Capital Preservation
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE MARKET VALUE (MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

CASH EQUIVALENTS

MONEY MARKET FUNDS/CASH

n.a. n.a. CASH (4,578.9100) ($4,578.91) 1.00 ($4,578.91) -3.43% -0.13%

FPZXX n.a. CASH FUND 138,223.91 $138,223.91 1.00 $138,223.91 103.43% 4.08%

TOTAL CASH $133,645.00 $133,645.00 3.94%

FIXED INCOME

Short-Term Bond Funds
VFSUX 922031836 Vanguard Short-Term Investment-Grade Adm 22,034.68 233,549.62 10.73 236,432.06 11.24% 6.97%

Intermediate-Term Bond Funds

DBLFX 258620301 DoubleLine Core Fixed Income I 41,647.61 453,968.93 11.07 461,039.04 21.93% 13.59%

DODIX 256210105 Dodge & Cox Income 33,336.75 458,971.63 14.03 467,714.59 22.24% 13.79%

PTRQX 74440B884 PGIM Total Return Bond R6 32,902.09 479,515.92 14.42 474,448.15 22.56% 13.99%

PTTRX 693390700 PIMCO Total Return Instl 44,784.91 468,017.24 10.34 463,075.93 22.02% 13.65%

$1,860,473.72 $1,866,277.71 55.02%

TOTAL FIXED INCOME $2,094,023.34 $2,102,709.77 61.99%

EQUITY

Large Cap Blend Funds

COFYX 19766M709 Columbia Contrarian Core Inst3 3,821.90 87,860.40 27.43 104,834.83 15.40% 3.09%

VGIAX 921913208 Vanguard Growth & Income Adm 1,214.97 87,911.81 84.83 103,065.65 15.14% 3.04%

$175,772.21 $207,900.48 6.13%

Large Cap Value Funds

DODGX 256219106 Dodge & Cox Stock 263.70 49,288.31 193.76 51,094.51 7.50% 1.51%

PKAIX 72202L462 PIMCO RAE US Instl 4,431.16 48,382.37 11.59 51,357.16 7.54% 1.51%

IVE 464287408 iShares S&P 500 Value ETF 40.00 5,171.60 130.09 5,203.60 0.76% 0.15%

$102,842.28 $107,655.27 3.17%

Large Cap Growth Funds

HNACX 411512528 Harbor Capital Appreciation Retirement 669.15 45,498.12 75.7 50,654.88 7.44% 1.49%

LSITX 52469H255 ClearBridge Large Cap Growth IS 832.85 39,486.17 54.66 45,523.80 6.69% 1.34%

$84,984.29 $96,178.68 2.84%

Mid Cap Blend Funds

VO 922908629 Vanguard Mid-Cap ETF 76.00 12,359.84 178.18 13,541.68 1.99% 0.40%

27



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Capital Preservation
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE MARKET VALUE (MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

Small Cap Value Funds

UBVFX 904504479 Undiscovered Managers Behavioral Val R6 469.47 30,787.18 62.81 29,487.22 4.33% 0.87%

Small Cap Blend Funds

DCZRX 24610B826 Delaware Small Cap Core R6 955.34 22,676.19 23.69 22,631.96 3.32% 0.67%

VB 922908751 Vanguard Small-Cap ETF 93.00 13,980.94 165.64 15,404.52 2.26% 0.45%

$36,657.13 $38,036.48 1.12%

Small Cap Growth Funds

RSEJX 92647Q363 Victory RS Small Cap Growth R6 180.83 14,587.29 81.24 14,690.55 2.16% 0.43%

VBK 922908595 Vanguard Small-Cap Growth ETF 70.00 13,403.17 198.7 13,909.00 2.04% 0.41%

$27,990.46 $28,599.55 0.84%

Foreign Large Value Funds

DODFX 256206103 Dodge & Cox International Stock 379.49 15,717.14 43.6 16,545.94 2.43% 0.49%

Foreign Large Blend Funds

DFALX 233203868 DFA Large Cap International I 2,257.06 48,109.15 23.67 53,424.59 7.85% 1.58%

HEFA 46434V803 iShares Currency Hedged MSCI EAFE ETF 1,172.00 30,911.65 30.515 35,763.58 5.25% 1.05%

$79,020.80 $89,188.17 2.63%

Foreign Large Growth Funds

MGRDX 552746356 MFS International Growth R6 465.57 13,068.25 37.1 17,272.72 2.54% 0.51%

Diversified Emerging Markets

HHHFX 41665X859 Hartford Schroders Emerging Mkts Eq F 2,202.87 31,387.97 16.58 36,523.50 5.36% 1.08%

$31,387.97 $36,523.50 1.08%

TOTAL EQUITY $610,587.55 $680,929.69 20.07%

ALTERNATIVES

Market Neutral

QMNIX 00191K799 AQR Equity Market Neutral I 2,319.35 25,889.12 9.2 21,338.03 3.13% 0.63%

BILPX 09250J734 BlackRock Event Driven Equity Instl 4,346.27 43,060.79 9.69 42,115.40 6.18% 1.24%

BSIKX 09260B374 BlackRock Strategic Income Opps K 2,536.60 25,017.09 9.98 25,315.23 3.72% 0.75%

$93,967.00 $88,768.66 2.62%

Managed Futures

AQMIX 00203H859 AQR Managed Futures Strategy I 5,021.68 47,498.20 8.31 41,730.15 6.13% 1.23%

28



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Capital Preservation
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE MARKET VALUE (MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

AMFNX 63873P825 Natixis ASG Managed Futures Strategy N 4,544.08 47,230.73 9.37 42,577.99 6.25% 1.26%

$94,728.93 $84,308.14 2.49%

Merger Arbitrage

ARBNX 03875R205 Arbitrage I 66.15 863.75 13.35 883.16 0.13% 0.03%

Global Macro

EGRSX 27830W108 Eaton Vance Glbl Macro Abs Ret Advtg R6 5,690.08 57,217.32 10.47 59,575.10 8.75% 1.76%

LAOSX 95768D509 Western Asset Macro Opportunities IS 5,273.16 56,539.31 11.12 58,637.53 8.61% 1.73%

$113,756.63 $118,212.63 3.49%

Fund of Hedge Funds

BXMIX 09257V201 Blackstone Alternative Multi-Strategy I 5,538.89 58,613.44 10.68 59,155.30 8.69% 1.74%

QSPIX 00203H420 AQR Style Premia Alternative I 4,012.07 38,455.17 8.15 32,698.39 4.80% 0.96%

$97,068.61 $91,853.69 2.71%

REITs

ICF 464287564 iShares Cohen & Steers REIT ETF 775.00 84,780.89 116.99 90,667.25 13.32% 2.67%

TOTAL ALTERNATIVES $485,165.81 $474,693.53 13.99%

TOTAL - ALL ASSETS $3,323,421.70 $3,391,977.99 100.00%

29



INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO SUMMARY - INCOME
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Account Snapshot
Data as of: 12/31/2019

Asset Class Market Value Tax Cost Est. Annual Income Current Yield (%)
Portfolio Manager: Cash & Equivalents $157,903.98 $157,903.98 $2,366.98 1.50%
Keith Stribling, CFA Fixed Income $2,128,942.79 $2,090,127.55 $68,402.93 3.21%

Equities $1,365,881.95 $1,324,288.78 $23,438.53 1.72%
Alternatives $351,254.03 $360,955.51 $10,945.08 3.12%
Other $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

Total $4,003,982.75 $3,933,275.82 $105,153.52 2.63%

Asset Allocation Income Summary (1, 2)
3.9% Cash & Equivalents

Cash & Equivalents Income Earned YTD $823
53.2% Fixed Income Taxable Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $34,828

Tax-Exempt Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $0
34.1% Equities Equity Income Earned YTD $65,161

Alternative Income Earned YTD $8,452
8.8% Alternatives Other Income Earned YTD $0

Total $109,263

0.0% Other

Net Gain/Loss Summary (3)

Realized Unrealized

Net Short Term Gain/Loss $16,482

Net Long Term Gain/Loss $49,546

Total $66,029 $70,707

(1) As of 12/31/2019

(3) Gain/Loss information is for informational purposes only.

Yields are gross of any 

fees and reflect the 

reinvestment of 

dividends and other 

income

(2) Information is calculated on a calendar year basis and includes income, dividends, and capital 

gain distributions

30



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Income
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

CASH EQUIVALENTS

MONEY MARKET FUNDS/CASH

n.a. n.a. CASH (4,270.0700) ($4,270.07) 1.00 ($4,270.07) -2.70% -0.11%

FPZXX n.a. CASH FUND 162,174.05 $162,174.05 1.00 $162,174.05 102.70% 4.05%

TOTAL CASH $157,903.98 $157,903.98 3.94%

FIXED INCOME

Short-Term Bond Funds
VFSUX 922031836 Vanguard Short-Term Investment-Grade Adm 16,666.76 175,615.85 10.73 178,834.32 9.03% 4.47%

$175,615.85 $178,834.32 4.47%

Intermediate-Term Bond Funds

DBLFX 258620301 DoubleLine Core Fixed Income I 40,312.36 437,125.85 11.07 446,257.81 22.52% 11.15%

DODIX 256210105 Dodge & Cox Income 32,281.31 440,728.78 14.03 452,906.82 22.86% 11.31%

PTRQX 74440B884 PGIM Total Return Bond R6 31,510.43 451,830.46 14.42 454,380.37 22.93% 11.35%

PTTRX 693390700 PIMCO Total Return Instl 43,423.07 439,627.51 10.34 448,994.54 22.66% 11.21%

$1,769,312.60 $1,802,539.54 45.02%

TOTAL FIXED INCOME $1,944,928.45 $1,981,373.86 49.49%

EQUITY

Large Cap Blend Funds

COFYX 19766M709 Columbia Contrarian Core Inst3 7,624.83 202,688.07 27.43 209,149.17 15.31% 5.22%

VGIAX 921913208 Vanguard Growth & Income Adm 2,428.94 196,377.14 84.83 206,046.98 15.09% 5.15%

$399,065.21 $415,196.15 10.37%

Large Cap Value Funds

DODGX 256219106 Dodge & Cox Stock 519.25 102,405.41 193.76 100,610.66 7.37% 2.51%

PKAIX 72202L462 PIMCO RAE US Instl 8,723.00 99,742.83 11.59 101,099.58 7.40% 2.52%

IVE 464287408 iShares S&P 500 Value ETF 76.00 9,825.66 130.09 9,886.84 0.72% 0.25%

$211,973.90 $211,597.08 5.28%

Large Cap Growth Funds

HNACX 411512528 Harbor Capital Appreciation Retirement 1,330.40 100,353.06 75.7 100,711.51 7.37% 2.52%

LSITX 52469H255 ClearBridge Large Cap Growth IS 1,662.02 86,543.14 54.66 90,846.12 6.65% 2.27%

$186,896.20 $191,557.63 4.78%

Mid Cap Blend Funds
VO 922908629 Vanguard Mid-Cap ETF 157.00 26,350.61 178.18 27,974.26 2.05% 0.70%

31



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Income
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

Small Cap Value Funds

UBVFX 904504479 Undiscovered Managers Behavioral Val R6 725.34 49,542.25 62.81 45,558.86 3.34% 1.14%

Small Cap Blend Funds

DCZRX 24610B826 Delaware Small Cap Core R6 3,201.61 75,283.80 23.69 75,846.16 5.55% 1.89%

VB 922908751 Vanguard Small-Cap ETF 169.00 25,924.62 165.64 27,993.16 2.05% 0.70%

$101,208.42 $103,839.32 2.59%

Small Cap Growth Funds

RSEJX 92647Q363 Victory RS Small Cap Growth R6 319.27 25,120.37 81.24 25,937.66 1.90% 0.65%

VBK 922908595 Vanguard Small-Cap Growth ETF 102.00 19,530.34 198.7 20,267.40 1.48% 0.51%

$44,650.71 $46,205.06 1.15%

Foreign Large Value Funds

DODFX 256206103 Dodge & Cox International Stock 916.12 39,626.18 43.6 39,942.92 2.92% 1.00%

Foreign Large Blend Funds

DFALX 233203868 DFA Large Cap International I 4,875.31 105,432.74 23.67 115,398.68 8.45% 2.88%

HEFA 46434V803 iShares Currency Hedged MSCI EAFE ETF 1,830.00 53,479.64 30.515 55,842.45 4.09% 1.39%

$158,912.38 $171,241.13 4.28%

Foreign Large Growth Funds

MGRDX 552746356 MFS International Growth R6 1,069.26 37,209.21 37.1 39,669.51 2.90% 0.99%

Diversified Emerging Markets

HHHFX 41665X859 Hartford Schroders Emerging Mkts Eq F 4,408.93 68,853.71 16.58 73,100.03 5.35% 1.83%

$68,853.71 $73,100.03 1.83%

TOTAL EQUITY $1,324,288.78 $1,365,881.95 34.11%

ALTERNATIVES

Market Neutral

QMNIX 00191K799 AQR Equity Market Neutral I 1,691.34 17,814.92 9.2 15,560.33 1.14% 0.39%

BILPX 09250J734 BlackRock Event Driven Equity Instl 5,730.74 56,665.23 9.69 55,530.91 4.07% 1.39%

BSIKX 09260B374 BlackRock Strategic Income Opps K 2,850.95 28,036.79 9.98 28,452.51 2.08% 0.71%

$102,516.94 $99,543.75 2.49%

32



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Income
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

Managed Futures

AQMIX 00203H859 AQR Managed Futures Strategy I 5,907.05 51,306.71 8.31 49,087.56 3.59% 1.23%

AMFNX 63873P825 Natixis ASG Managed Futures Strategy N 5,352.95 52,019.98 9.37 50,157.11 3.67% 1.25%

$103,326.69 $99,244.67 2.48%

Merger Arbitrage

ARBNX 03875R205 Arbitrage I 46.52 608.24 13.35 620.99 0.05% 0.02%

Global Macro

EGRSX 27830W108 Eaton Vance Glbl Macro Abs Ret Advtg R6 5,727.83 57,962.74 10.47 59,970.36 4.39% 1.50%

LAOSX 95768D509 Western Asset Macro Opportunities IS 5,318.89 59,199.57 11.12 59,146.06 4.33% 1.48%

$117,162.31 $119,116.42 2.97%

Fund of Hedge Funds

BXMIX 09257V201 Blackstone Alternative Multi-Strategy I 6,279.77 67,915.79 10.68 67,067.96 4.91% 1.68%

QSPIX 00203H420 AQR Style Premia Alternative I 3,959.77 36,388.62 8.15 32,272.09 2.36% 0.81%

$104,304.41 $99,340.05 2.48%

REITs

ICF 464287564 iShares Cohen & Steers REIT ETF 692.00 78,236.02 116.99 80,957.08 5.93% 2.02%

TOTAL ALTERNATIVES $506,154.61 $498,822.96 12.46%

TOTAL - ALL ASSETS $3,933,275.82 $4,003,982.75 100.00%

33



INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO SUMMARY - INCOME & GROWTH
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Account Snapshot
Data as of: 12/31/2019

Asset Class Market Value Tax Cost Est. Annual Income Current Yield (%)
Portfolio Manager: Cash & Equivalents $212,028.24 $212,028.24 $3,178.30 1.50%
Keith Stribling, CFA Fixed Income $2,742,491.88 $2,734,715.29 $88,116.26 3.21%

Equities $3,552,732.66 $3,121,085.70 $60,964.89 1.72%
Alternatives $661,394.86 $705,861.73 $20,609.06 3.12%
Other $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

Total $7,168,647.64 $6,773,690.96 $172,868.52 2.41%

Asset Allocation Income Summary (1, 2)
3.0% Cash & Equivalents

Cash & Equivalents Income Earned YTD $1,162
38.3% Fixed Income Taxable Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $43,491

Tax-Exempt Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $0
49.6% Equities Equity Income Earned YTD $159,239

Alternative Income Earned YTD $15,658
9.2% Alternatives Other Income Earned YTD $0

Total $219,548

0.0% Other

Net Gain/Loss Summary (3)

Realized Unrealized

Net Short Term Gain/Loss $26,685

Net Long Term Gain/Loss $125,625

Total $152,310 $394,957

(1) As of 12/31/2019

(3) Gain/Loss information is for informational purposes only.

Yields are gross of any 

fees and reflect the 

reinvestment of 

dividends and other 

income

(2) Information is calculated on a calendar year basis and includes income, dividends, and capital 

gain distributions

34



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Income & Growth
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

CASH EQUIVALENTS

MONEY MARKET FUNDS/CASH

n.a. n.a. CASH (5,501.8300) ($5,501.83) 1.00 ($5,501.83) -2.59% -0.08%

FPZXX n.a. CASH FUND 217,530.07 $217,530.07 1.00 $217,530.07 102.59% 3.03%

TOTAL CASH $212,028.24 $212,028.24 2.96%

FIXED INCOME

Short-Term Bond Funds
VFSUX 922031836 Vanguard Short-Term Investment-Grade Adm 19,934.67 211,594.73 10.73 213,899.01 8.65% 2.98%

$211,594.73 $213,899.01 2.98%

Intermediate-Term Bond Funds

DBLFX 258620301 DoubleLine Core Fixed Income I 50,449.00 550,461.60 11.07 558,470.47 22.57% 7.79%

DODIX 256210105 Dodge & Cox Income 40,380.78 557,655.90 14.03 566,542.27 22.90% 7.90%

PTRQX 74440B884 PGIM Total Return Bond R6 39,832.69 582,673.20 14.42 574,387.42 23.22% 8.01%

PTTRX 693390700 PIMCO Total Return Instl 54,241.41 573,184.61 10.34 560,856.16 22.67% 7.82%

$2,263,975.31 $2,260,256.32 31.53%

TOTAL FIXED INCOME $2,475,570.04 $2,474,155.33 34.51%

EQUITY

Large Cap Blend Funds

COFYX 19766M709 Columbia Contrarian Core Inst3 21,382.51 476,561.04 27.43 586,522.36 16.51% 8.18%

VGIAX 921913208 Vanguard Growth & Income Adm 7,086.38 509,112.33 84.83 601,137.95 16.92% 8.39%

$985,673.37 $1,187,660.31 16.57%

Large Cap Value Funds

DODGX 256219106 Dodge & Cox Stock 1,221.75 224,745.27 193.76 236,726.09 6.66% 3.30%

PKAIX 72202L462 PIMCO RAE US Instl 20,532.35 221,139.66 11.59 237,969.96 6.70% 3.32%

IVE 464287408 iShares S&P 500 Value ETF 219.00 28,320.60 130.09 28,489.71 0.80% 0.40%

$474,205.53 $503,185.76 7.02%

Large Cap Growth Funds

HNACX 411512528 Harbor Capital Appreciation Retirement 3,086.00 201,071.59 75.7 233,610.12 6.58% 3.26%

LSITX 52469H255 ClearBridge Large Cap Growth IS 3,814.88 176,031.09 54.66 208,521.23 5.87% 2.91%

$377,102.68 $442,131.35 6.17%

Mid Cap Blend Funds

VO 922908629 Vanguard Mid-Cap ETF 402.00 65,086.48 178.18 71,628.36 2.02% 1.00%

35



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Income & Growth
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

Small Cap Value Funds

UBVFX 904504479 Undiscovered Managers Behavioral Val R6 2,374.68 150,846.22 62.81 149,153.65 4.20% 2.08%

Small Cap Blend Funds

DCZRX 24610B826 Delaware Small Cap Core R6 5,025.10 118,758.46 23.69 119,044.67 3.35% 1.66%

VB 922908751 Vanguard Small-Cap ETF 612.00 91,863.49 165.64 101,371.68 2.85% 1.41%

$210,621.95 $220,416.35 3.07%

Small Cap Growth Funds

RSEJX 92647Q363 Victory RS Small Cap Growth R6 950.69 76,691.45 81.24 77,234.30 2.17% 1.08%

VBK 922908595 Vanguard Small-Cap Growth ETF 365.00 69,887.98 198.7 72,525.50 2.04% 1.01%

$146,579.43 $149,759.80 2.09%

Foreign Large Value Funds

DODFX 256206103 Dodge & Cox International Stock 1,809.07 74,305.28 43.6 78,875.54 2.22% 1.10%

Foreign Large Blend Funds

DFALX 233203868 DFA Large Cap International I 15,758.42 333,224.09 23.67 373,001.73 10.50% 5.20%

HEFA 46434V803 iShares Currency Hedged MSCI EAFE ETF 3,658.00 93,758.47 30.515 111,623.87 3.14% 1.56%

$426,982.56 $484,625.60 6.76%

Foreign Large Growth Funds

MGRDX 552746356 MFS International Growth R6 2,149.80 59,204.03 37.1 79,757.43 2.24% 1.11%

Diversified Emerging Markets

HHHFX 41665X859 Hartford Schroders Emerging Mkts Eq F 11,190.50 150,478.17 16.58 185,538.51 5.22% 2.59%

$150,478.17 $185,538.51 2.59%

TOTAL EQUITY $3,121,085.70 $3,552,732.66 49.56%

ALTERNATIVES

Market Neutral

QMNIX 00191K799 AQR Equity Market Neutral I 3,789.95 42,643.65 9.2 34,867.49 0.98% 0.49%

BILPX 09250J734 BlackRock Event Driven Equity Instl 11,003.80 109,532.91 9.69 106,626.83 3.00% 1.49%

BSIKX 09260B374 BlackRock Strategic Income Opps K 4,855.09 47,917.82 9.98 48,453.77 1.36% 0.68%

$200,094.38 $189,948.09 2.65%

36



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Income & Growth
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

Managed Futures

AQMIX 00203H859 AQR Managed Futures Strategy I 9,538.14 93,117.74 8.31 79,261.96 2.23% 1.11%

AMFNX 63873P825 Natixis ASG Managed Futures Strategy N 8,629.39 91,577.31 9.37 80,857.36 2.28% 1.13%

$184,695.05 $160,119.32 2.23%

Merger Arbitrage

ARBNX 03875R205 Arbitrage I 138.17 1,806.23 13.35 1,844.53 0.05% 0.03%

Global Macro

EGRSX 27830W108 Eaton Vance Glbl Macro Abs Ret Advtg R6 10,411.38 105,508.41 10.47 109,007.14 3.07% 1.52%

LAOSX 95768D509 Western Asset Macro Opportunities IS 9,970.83 105,719.02 11.12 110,875.64 3.12% 1.55%

$211,227.43 $219,882.78 3.07%

Fund of Hedge Funds

BXMIX 09257V201 Blackstone Alternative Multi-Strategy I 9,572.36 100,707.77 10.68 102,232.76 2.88% 1.43%

QSPIX 00203H420 AQR Style Premia Alternative I 9,986.36 99,840.71 8.15 81,388.83 2.29% 1.14%

$200,548.48 $183,621.59 2.56%

REITs

ICF 464287564 iShares Cohen & Steers REIT ETF 1,490.00 166,635.41 116.99 174,315.10 4.91% 2.43%

TOTAL ALTERNATIVES $965,006.98 $929,731.41 12.97%

TOTAL - ALL ASSETS $6,773,690.96 $7,168,647.64 100.00%

37



INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO SUMMARY -BALANCED INCOME
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Account Snapshot
Data as of: 12/31/2019

Asset Class Market Value Tax Cost Est. Annual Income Current Yield (%)
Portfolio Manager: Cash & Equivalents $193,594.61 $193,594.61 $2,901.98 1.50%
Keith Stribling, CFA Fixed Income $1,462,236.89 $1,421,893.39 $46,981.67 3.21%

Equities $3,008,840.58 $2,925,050.38 $51,631.70 1.72%
Alternatives $417,523.08 $430,476.44 $13,010.02 3.12%
Other $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

Total $5,082,195.16 $4,971,014.82 $114,525.38 2.25%

Asset Allocation Income Summary (1, 2)
3.8% Cash & Equivalents

Cash & Equivalents Income Earned YTD $529
28.8% Fixed Income Taxable Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $23,422

Tax-Exempt Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $0
59.2% Equities Equity Income Earned YTD $131,469

Alternative Income Earned YTD $10,734
8.2% Alternatives Other Income Earned YTD $0

Total $166,153

0.0% Other

Net Gain/Loss Summary (3)

Realized Unrealized

Net Short Term Gain/Loss $19,051

Net Long Term Gain/Loss $95,145

Total $114,196 $111,180

(1) As of 12/31/2019

(3) Gain/Loss information is for informational purposes only.

Yields are gross of any 

fees and reflect the 

reinvestment of 

dividends and other 

income

(2) Information is calculated on a calendar year basis and includes income, dividends, and capital 

gain distributions

38



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Balanced Income
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

CASH EQUIVALENTS

MONEY MARKET FUNDS/CASH

n.a. n.a. CASH (2,909.1800) ($2,909.18) 1.00 ($2,909.18) -1.50% -0.06%

FPZXX n.a. CASH FUND 196,503.79 $196,503.79 1.00 $196,503.79 101.50% 3.87%

TOTAL CASH $193,594.61 $193,594.61 3.81%

FIXED INCOME

Short-Term Bond Funds
VFSUX 922031836 Vanguard Short-Term Investment-Grade Adm 15,414.98 162,930.65 10.73 165,402.76 12.76% 3.25%

$162,930.65 $165,402.76 3.25%

Intermediate-Term Bond Funds

DBLFX 258620301 DoubleLine Core Fixed Income I 25,170.48 270,097.57 11.07 278,637.22 21.50% 5.48%

DODIX 256210105 Dodge & Cox Income 20,114.10 271,521.53 14.03 282,200.81 21.77% 5.55%

PTRQX 74440B884 PGIM Total Return Bond R6 20,036.32 283,465.30 14.42 288,923.66 22.29% 5.69%

PTTRX 693390700 PIMCO Total Return Instl 27,187.31 272,336.03 10.34 281,116.80 21.69% 5.53%

$1,097,420.43 $1,130,878.49 22.25%

TOTAL FIXED INCOME $1,260,351.08 $1,296,281.25 25.51%

EQUITY

Large Cap Blend Funds

COFYX 19766M709 Columbia Contrarian Core Inst3 17,433.52 468,652.92 27.43 478,201.54 15.89% 9.41%

VGIAX 921913208 Vanguard Growth & Income Adm 5,542.84 451,640.37 84.83 470,199.29 15.63% 9.25%

$920,293.29 $948,400.83 18.66%

Large Cap Value Funds

DODGX 256219106 Dodge & Cox Stock 1,058.42 216,667.99 193.76 205,078.88 6.82% 4.04%

PKAIX 72202L462 PIMCO RAE US Instl 17,789.94 206,477.43 11.59 206,185.36 6.85% 4.06%

IVE 464287408 iShares S&P 500 Value ETF 200.00 25,863.56 130.09 26,018.00 0.86% 0.51%

$449,008.98 $437,282.24 8.60%

Large Cap Growth Funds

HNACX 411512528 Harbor Capital Appreciation Retirement 2,864.25 213,248.05 75.7 216,823.88 7.21% 4.27%

LSITX 52469H255 ClearBridge Large Cap Growth IS 3,557.87 180,409.68 54.66 194,473.39 6.46% 3.83%

$393,657.73 $411,297.27 8.09%

Mid Cap Blend Funds

VO 922908629 Vanguard Mid-Cap ETF 341.00 54,828.61 178.18 60,759.38 2.02% 1.20%

39



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Balanced Income
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

Small Cap Value Funds

UBVFX 904504479 Undiscovered Managers Behavioral Val R6 2,415.69 165,518.31 62.81 151,729.30 5.04% 2.99%

Small Cap Blend Funds

DCZRX 24610B826 Delaware Small Cap Core R6 2,893.11 72,104.43 23.69 68,537.80 2.28% 1.35%

VB 922908751 Vanguard Small-Cap ETF 437.00 63,369.94 165.64 72,384.68 2.41% 1.42%

$135,474.37 $140,922.48 2.77%

Small Cap Growth Funds

RSEJX 92647Q363 Victory RS Small Cap Growth R6 968.29 77,915.09 81.24 78,663.88 2.61% 1.55%

VBK 922908595 Vanguard Small-Cap Growth ETF 365.00 69,887.98 198.7 72,525.50 2.41% 1.43%

$147,803.07 $151,189.38 2.97%

Foreign Large Value Funds

DODFX 256206103 Dodge & Cox International Stock 1,631.99 72,462.26 43.6 71,154.68 2.36% 1.40%

Foreign Large Blend Funds

DFALX 233203868 DFA Large Cap International I 13,156.61 278,379.10 23.67 311,416.91 10.35% 6.13%

HEFA 46434V803 iShares Currency Hedged MSCI EAFE ETF 3,094.00 92,364.36 30.515 94,413.41 3.14% 1.86%

$370,743.46 $405,830.32 7.99%

Foreign Large Growth Funds

MGRDX 552746356 MFS International Growth R6 2,015.29 70,074.26 37.1 74,767.30 2.48% 1.47%

Diversified Emerging Markets

HHHFX 41665X859 Hartford Schroders Emerging Mkts Eq F 9,379.22 145,186.04 16.58 155,507.40 5.17% 3.06%

$145,186.04 $155,507.40 3.06%

TOTAL EQUITY $2,925,050.38 $3,008,840.58 59.20%

ALTERNATIVES

Market Neutral

QMNIX 00191K799 AQR Equity Market Neutral I 2,833.71 30,799.46 9.2 26,070.09 0.87% 0.51%

BILPX 09250J734 BlackRock Event Driven Equity Instl 5,197.37 51,676.83 9.69 50,362.49 1.67% 0.99%

BSIKX 09260B374 BlackRock Strategic Income Opps K 2,566.79 25,104.92 9.98 25,616.55 0.85% 0.50%

$107,581.21 $102,049.13 2.01%

40



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Balanced Income
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

Managed Futures

AQMIX 00203H859 AQR Managed Futures Strategy I 7,386.64 64,480.18 8.31 61,382.96 2.04% 1.21%

AMFNX 63873P825 Natixis ASG Managed Futures Strategy N 6,682.49 65,010.13 9.37 62,614.95 2.08% 1.23%

$129,490.31 $123,997.91 2.44%

Merger Arbitrage

ARBNX 03875R205 Arbitrage I 95.58 1,249.80 13.35 1,276.01 0.04% 0.03%

Global Macro

EGRSX 27830W108 Eaton Vance Glbl Macro Abs Ret Advtg R6 7,125.42 71,918.63 10.47 74,603.18 2.48% 1.47%

LAOSX 95768D509 Western Asset Macro Opportunities IS 5,911.50 64,518.76 11.12 65,735.91 2.18% 1.29%

$136,437.39 $140,339.09 2.76%

Fund of Hedge Funds

BXMIX 09257V201 Blackstone Alternative Multi-Strategy I 6,776.62 72,672.50 10.68 72,374.32 2.41% 1.42%

QSPIX 00203H420 AQR Style Premia Alternative I 5,212.26 49,216.93 8.15 42,479.89 1.41% 0.84%

$121,889.43 $114,854.21 2.26%

REITs

ICF 464287564 iShares Cohen & Steers REIT ETF 863.00 95,370.61 116.99 100,962.37 3.36% 1.99%

TOTAL ALTERNATIVES $592,018.75 $583,478.72 11.48%

TOTAL - ALL ASSETS $4,971,014.82 $5,082,195.16 100.00%

41



INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO SUMMARY - BALANCED
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Account Snapshot

Data as of: 12/31/2019
Asset Class Market Value Tax Cost Est. Annual Income Current Yield (%)

Portfolio Manager: Cash & Equivalents $56,571.14 $56,571.14 $848.00 1.50%
Keith Stribling, CFA Fixed Income $283,838.66 $281,400.32 $9,119.74 3.21%

Equities $937,231.14 $822,867.28 $16,082.89 1.72%
Alternatives $86,477.49 $92,158.87 $2,694.64 3.12%
Other $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

Total $1,364,118.43 $1,252,997.61 $28,745.26 2.11%

Asset Allocation Income Summary (1, 2)
4.1% Cash & Equivalents

Cash & Equivalents Income Earned YTD $234
20.8% Fixed Income Taxable Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $4,509

Tax-Exempt Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $0
68.7% Equities Equity Income Earned YTD $38,700

Alternative Income Earned YTD $1,929
6.3% Alternatives Other Income Earned YTD $0

Total $45,372

0.0% Other

Net Gain/Loss Summary (3)

Realized Unrealized

Net Short Term Gain/Loss $4,667

Net Long Term Gain/Loss $28,965

Total $33,633 $111,121

(1) As of 12/31/2019

(3) Gain/Loss information is for informational purposes only.

Yields are gross of any 

fees and reflect the 

reinvestment of 

dividends and other 

income

(2) Information is calculated on a calendar year basis and includes income, dividends, and capital 

gain distributions

42



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Balanced
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

CASH EQUIVALENTS

MONEY MARKET FUNDS/CASH

n.a. n.a. CASH (561.3800) ($561.38) 1.00 ($561.38) -0.99% -0.04%

FPZXX n.a. CASH FUND 57,132.52 $57,132.52 1.00 $57,132.52 100.99% 4.19%

TOTAL CASH $56,571.14 $56,571.14 4.15%

FIXED INCOME

Short-Term Bond Funds
VFSUX 922031836 Vanguard Short-Term Investment-Grade Adm 2,910.71 30,778.62 10.73 31,231.96 12.47% 2.29%

$30,778.62 $31,231.96 2.29%

Intermediate-Term Bond Funds

DBLFX 258620301 DoubleLine Core Fixed Income I 4,912.83 53,487.02 11.07 54,384.97 21.72% 3.99%

DODIX 256210105 Dodge & Cox Income 3,917.36 53,915.47 14.03 54,960.56 21.95% 4.03%

PTRQX 74440B884 PGIM Total Return Bond R6 3,833.64 55,925.25 14.42 55,281.15 22.08% 4.05%

PTTRX 693390700 PIMCO Total Return Instl 5,275.59 55,313.04 10.34 54,549.62 21.78% 4.00%

$218,640.78 $219,176.30 16.07%

TOTAL FIXED INCOME $249,419.40 $250,408.26 18.36%

EQUITY

Large Cap Blend Funds

COFYX 19766M709 Columbia Contrarian Core Inst3 5,426.93 119,431.33 27.43 148,860.64 15.88% 10.91%

VGIAX 921913208 Vanguard Growth & Income Adm 1,715.80 123,508.72 84.83 145,551.57 15.53% 10.67%

$242,940.05 $294,412.21 21.58%

Large Cap Value Funds

DODGX 256219106 Dodge & Cox Stock 321.90 59,645.53 193.76 62,371.93 6.65% 4.57%

PKAIX 72202L462 PIMCO RAE US Instl 5,388.13 57,786.78 11.59 62,448.45 6.66% 4.58%

IVE 464287408 iShares S&P 500 Value ETF 52.00 6,723.93 130.09 6,764.68 0.72% 0.50%

$124,156.24 $131,585.06 9.65%

Large Cap Growth Funds

HNACX 411512528 Harbor Capital Appreciation Retirement 837.77 55,071.43 75.7 63,419.11 6.77% 4.65%

LSITX 52469H255 ClearBridge Large Cap Growth IS 1,131.03 52,414.07 54.66 61,822.26 6.60% 4.53%

$107,485.50 $125,241.37 9.18%

Mid Cap Blend Funds

VO 922908629 Vanguard Mid-Cap ETF 153.00 24,549.93 178.18 27,261.54 2.91% 2.00%

43



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Balanced
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

Small Cap Value Funds

UBVFX 904504479 Undiscovered Managers Behavioral Val R6 701.08 44,643.42 62.81 44,035.02 4.70% 3.23%

Small Cap Blend Funds

DCZRX 24610B826 Delaware Small Cap Core R6 961.13 22,845.65 23.69 22,769.26 2.43% 1.67%

VB 922908751 Vanguard Small-Cap ETF 160.00 23,136.76 165.64 26,502.40 2.83% 1.94%

$45,982.41 $49,271.66 3.61%

Small Cap Growth Funds

RSEJX 92647Q363 Victory RS Small Cap Growth R6 272.97 21,982.58 81.24 22,176.33 2.37% 1.63%

VBK 922908595 Vanguard Small-Cap Growth ETF 104.00 19,913.29 198.7 20,664.80 2.20% 1.51%

$41,895.87 $42,841.13 3.14%

Foreign Large Value Funds

DODFX 256206103 Dodge & Cox International Stock 522.59 21,341.12 43.6 22,784.75 2.43% 1.67%

Foreign Large Blend Funds

DFALX 233203868 DFA Large Cap International I 4,358.43 91,305.58 23.67 103,163.97 11.01% 7.56%

HEFA 46434V803 iShares Currency Hedged MSCI EAFE ETF 856.00 22,153.37 30.515 26,120.84 2.79% 1.91%

$113,458.95 $129,284.81 9.48%

Foreign Large Growth Funds

MGRDX 552746356 MFS International Growth R6 606.81 16,557.70 37.1 22,512.50 2.40% 1.65%

Diversified Emerging Markets

HHHFX 41665X859 Hartford Schroders Emerging Mkts Eq F 2,895.12 39,856.09 16.58 48,001.09 5.12% 3.52%

$39,856.09 $48,001.09 3.52%

TOTAL EQUITY $822,867.28 $937,231.14 68.71%

ALTERNATIVES

Market Neutral

QMNIX 00191K799 AQR Equity Market Neutral I 479.25 5,377.88 9.2 4,409.10 0.47% 0.32%

BILPX 09250J734 BlackRock Event Driven Equity Instl 1,296.40 12,916.95 9.69 12,562.07 1.34% 0.92%

BSIKX 09260B374 BlackRock Strategic Income Opps K 638.13 6,302.42 9.98 6,368.56 0.68% 0.47%

$24,597.25 $23,339.73 1.71%

44



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Balanced
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

Managed Futures

AQMIX 00203H859 AQR Managed Futures Strategy I 1,398.92 13,500.33 8.31 11,625.03 1.24% 0.85%

AMFNX 63873P825 Natixis ASG Managed Futures Strategy N 1,266.10 13,375.01 9.37 11,863.36 1.27% 0.87%

$26,875.34 $23,488.39 1.72%

Merger Arbitrage

ARBNX 03875R205 Arbitrage I 16.57 216.00 13.35 221.17 0.02% 0.02%

Global Macro

EGRSX 27830W108 Eaton Vance Glbl Macro Abs Ret Advtg R6 1,285.61 12,825.57 10.47 13,460.36 1.44% 0.99%

LAOSX 95768D509 Western Asset Macro Opportunities IS 1,223.16 12,852.93 11.12 13,601.48 1.45% 1.00%

$25,678.50 $27,061.84 1.98%

BXMIX 09257V201 Blackstone Alternative Multi-Strategy I 1,181.67 12,388.21 10.68 12,620.28 1.35% 0.93%

QSPIX 00203H420 AQR Style Premia Alternative I 1,372.07 13,432.93 8.15 11,182.36 1.19% 0.82%

$25,821.14 $23,802.64 1.74%

REITs

ICF 464287564 iShares Cohen & Steers REIT ETF 188.00 20,951.56 116.99 21,994.12 2.35% 1.61%

TOTAL ALTERNATIVES $124,139.79 $119,907.89 8.79%

TOTAL - ALL ASSETS $1,252,997.61 $1,364,118.43 100.00%

45



INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO SUMMARY - CAPITAL APPRECIATION
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Account Snapshot
Dateaas of: 12/31/2019

Asset Class Market Value Tax Cost Est. Annual Income Current Yield (%)
Portfolio Manager: Cash & Equivalents $22,273.98 $22,273.98 $333.89 1.50%
Keith Stribling, CFA Fixed Income $59,582.69 $57,713.62 $1,914.39 3.21%

Equities $406,036.73 $393,085.86 $6,967.59 1.72%
Alternatives $26,859.39 $27,657.86 $836.94 3.12%
Other $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

Total $514,752.79 $500,731.32 $10,052.81 1.95%

Asset Allocation Income Summary (1, 2)
4.3% Cash & Equivalents

Cash & Equivalents Income Earned YTD $87
11.6% Fixed Income Taxable Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $910

Tax-Exempt Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $0
78.9% Equities Equity Income Earned YTD $16,429

Alternative Income Earned YTD $566
5.2% Alternatives Other Income Earned YTD $0

Total $17,992

0.0% Other

Net Gain/Loss Summary (3)

Realized Unrealized

Net Short Term Gain/Loss $1,065

Net Long Term Gain/Loss $12,006

Total $13,071 $14,021

(1) As of 12/31/2019

(3) Gain/Loss information is for informational purposes only.

Yields are gross of any 

fees and reflect the 

reinvestment of 

dividends and other 

income

(2) Information is calculated on a calendar year basis and includes income, dividends, and capital 

gain distributions

46



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Capital Appreciation
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

CASH EQUIVALENTS

MONEY MARKET FUNDS/CASH

n.a. n.a. CASH (112.9900) ($112.99) 1.00 ($112.99) -0.51% -0.02%

FPZXX n.a. CASH FUND 22,386.97 $22,386.97 1.00 $22,386.97 100.51% 4.35%

TOTAL CASH $22,273.98 $22,273.98 4.33%

FIXED INCOME

Short-Term Bond Funds
VFSUX 922031836 Vanguard Short-Term Investment-Grade Adm 490.04 5,157.20 10.73 5,258.12 10.58% 1.02%

$5,157.20 $5,258.12 1.02%

Intermediate-Term Bond Funds

DBLFX 258620301 DoubleLine Core Fixed Income I 990.61 10,587.38 11.07 10,966.00 22.07% 2.13%

DODIX 256210105 Dodge & Cox Income 793.66 10,664.95 14.03 11,134.99 22.41% 2.16%

PTRQX 74440B884 PGIM Total Return Bond R6 784.32 11,035.15 14.42 11,309.84 22.76% 2.20%

PTTRX 693390700 PIMCO Total Return Instl 1,065.03 10,622.70 10.34 11,012.39 22.17% 2.14%

$42,910.18 $44,423.22 8.63%

TOTAL FIXED INCOME $48,067.38 $49,681.34 9.65%

EQUITY

Large Cap Blend Funds

COFYX 19766M709 Columbia Contrarian Core Inst3 2,310.27 61,526.32 27.43 63,370.60 15.61% 12.31%

VGIAX 921913208 Vanguard Growth & Income Adm 730.46 59,065.60 84.83 61,964.84 15.26% 12.04%

$120,591.92 $125,335.44 24.35%

Large Cap Value Funds

DODGX 256219106 Dodge & Cox Stock 141.33 28,631.22 193.76 27,383.71 6.74% 5.32%

PKAIX 72202L462 PIMCO RAE US Instl 2,406.52 27,579.48 11.59 27,891.58 6.87% 5.42%

IVE 464287408 iShares S&P 500 Value ETF 39.00 5,042.95 130.09 5,073.51 1.25% 0.99%

$61,253.65 $60,348.80 11.72%

Large Cap Growth Funds

HNACX 411512528 Harbor Capital Appreciation Retirement 379.48 28,173.73 75.7 28,726.56 7.07% 5.58%

LSITX 52469H255 ClearBridge Large Cap Growth IS 470.24 23,728.29 54.66 25,703.21 6.33% 4.99%

$51,902.02 $54,429.77 10.57%

Mid Cap Blend Funds

VO 922908629 Vanguard Mid-Cap ETF 99.00 16,813.07 178.18 17,639.82 4.34% 3.43%

47



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Capital Appreciation
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

Small Cap Value Funds

UBVFX 904504479 Undiscovered Managers Behavioral Val R6 284.01 19,633.64 62.81 17,838.54 4.39% 3.47%

Small Cap Blend Funds

DCZRX 24610B826 Delaware Small Cap Core R6 435.95 10,751.75 23.69 10,327.56 2.54% 2.01%

VB 922908751 Vanguard Small-Cap ETF 61.00 9,012.13 165.64 10,104.04 2.49% 1.96%

$19,763.88 $20,431.60 3.97%

Small Cap Growth Funds

RSEJX 92647Q363 Victory RS Small Cap Growth R6 116.56 9,402.43 81.24 9,469.01 2.33% 1.84%

VBK 922908595 Vanguard Small-Cap Growth ETF 41.00 7,850.42 198.7 8,146.70 2.01% 1.58%

$17,252.85 $17,615.71 3.42%

Foreign Large Value Funds

DODFX 256206103 Dodge & Cox International Stock 222.69 9,744.06 43.6 9,709.24 2.39% 1.89%

Foreign Large Blend Funds

DFALX 233203868 DFA Large Cap International I 1,730.76 36,671.14 23.67 40,967.07 10.09% 7.96%

HEFA 46434V803 iShares Currency Hedged MSCI EAFE ETF 399.00 11,811.63 30.515 12,175.49 3.00% 2.37%

$48,482.77 $53,142.56 10.32%

Foreign Large Growth Funds

MGRDX 552746356 MFS International Growth R6 261.67 9,077.43 37.1 9,708.11 2.39% 1.89%

Diversified Emerging Markets

HHHFX 41665X859 Hartford Schroders Emerging Mkts Eq F 1,196.45 18,570.57 16.58 19,837.14 4.89% 3.85%

$18,570.57 $19,837.14 3.85%

TOTAL EQUITY $393,085.86 $406,036.73 78.88%

ALTERNATIVES

Market Neutral

QMNIX 00191K799 AQR Equity Market Neutral I 177.66 1,884.29 9.2 1,634.50 0.40% 0.32%

BILPX 09250J734 BlackRock Event Driven Equity Instl 440.56 4,376.65 9.69 4,268.99 1.05% 0.83%

BSIKX 09260B374 BlackRock Strategic Income Opps K 193.47 1,891.78 9.98 1,930.86 0.48% 0.38%

$8,152.72 $7,834.35 1.52%

48



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Capital Appreciation
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

Managed Futures

AQMIX 00203H859 AQR Managed Futures Strategy I 420.46 3,660.53 8.31 3,494.00 0.86% 0.68%

AMFNX 63873P825 Natixis ASG Managed Futures Strategy N 380.52 3,702.22 9.37 3,565.43 0.88% 0.69%

$7,362.75 $7,059.43 1.37%

Merger Arbitrage

ARBNX 03875R205 Arbitrage I 4.78 62.49 13.35 63.80 0.02% 0.01%

Global Macro

EGRSX 27830W108 Eaton Vance Glbl Macro Abs Ret Advtg R6 383.63 3,872.70 10.47 4,016.60 0.99% 0.78%

LAOSX 95768D509 Western Asset Macro Opportunities IS 355.57 3,881.76 11.12 3,953.89 0.97% 0.77%

$7,754.46 $7,970.49 1.55%

Fund of Hedge Funds

BXMIX 09257V201 Blackstone Alternative Multi-Strategy I 330.69 3,545.83 10.68 3,531.76 0.87% 0.69%

QSPIX 00203H420 AQR Style Premia Alternative I 359.58 3,358.65 8.15 2,930.54 0.72% 0.57%

$6,904.48 $6,462.30 1.26%

REITs

ICF 464287564 iShares Cohen & Steers REIT ETF 63.00 7,067.20 116.99 7,370.37 1.82% 1.43%

TOTAL ALTERNATIVES $37,304.10 $36,760.74 7.14%

TOTAL - ALL ASSETS $500,731.32 $514,752.79 100.00%

49



INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO SUMMARY - GROWTH
El Toro Water District - 401(k) Plan

Account Snapshot
Data as of: 12/31/2019

Asset Class Market Value Tax Cost Est. Annual Income Current Yield (%)
Portfolio Manager: Cash & Equivalents $73,135.05 $73,135.05 $1,096.29 1.50%
Keith Stribling, CFA Fixed Income $143,183.86 $141,715.86 $4,600.50 3.21%

Equities $1,473,146.86 $1,330,602.37 $25,279.20 1.72%
Alternatives $66,451.94 $70,392.06 $2,070.64 3.12%
Other $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

Total 1,755,918$     1,615,845$     33,047$      1.88%

Asset Allocation Income Summary (1, 2)
4.2% Cash & Equivalents

Cash & Equivalents Income Earned YTD $349
8.2% Fixed Income Taxable Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $2,313

Tax-Exempt Fixed Income Income Earned YTD $0
83.9% Equities Equity Income Earned YTD $58,623

Alternative Income Earned YTD $1,268
3.8% Alternatives Other Income Earned YTD $0

Total $62,553

0.0% Other

Net Gain/Loss Summary (3)

Realized Unrealized

Net Short Term Gain/Loss $21,515

Net Long Term Gain/Loss $124,926

Total $146,441 $140,072

(1) As of 12/31/2019

(3) Gain/Loss information is for informational purposes only.

Yields are gross of any 

fees and reflect the 

reinvestment of 

dividends and other 

income

(2) Information is calculated on a calendar year basis and includes income, dividends, and capital 

gain distributions

50



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Growth
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

CASH EQUIVALENTS

MONEY MARKET FUNDS/CASH

n.a. n.a. CASH (271.8900) ($271.89) 1.00 ($271.89) -0.37% -0.02%

FPZXX n.a. CASH FUND 73,406.94 $73,406.94 1.00 $73,406.94 100.37% 4.18%

TOTAL CASH $73,135.05 $73,135.05 4.17%

FIXED INCOME

Short-Term Bond Funds
VFSUX 922031836 Vanguard Short-Term Investment-Grade Adm 414.23 4,395.99 10.73 4,444.69 3.69% 0.25%

$4,395.99 $4,444.69 0.25%

Intermediate-Term Bond Funds

DBLFX 258620301 DoubleLine Core Fixed Income I 2,589.68 28,139.04 11.07 28,667.78 23.78% 1.63%

DODIX 256210105 Dodge & Cox Income 2,072.41 28,511.49 14.03 29,075.88 24.12% 1.66%

PTRQX 74440B884 PGIM Total Return Bond R6 2,050.59 29,870.23 14.42 29,569.57 24.53% 1.68%

PTTRX 693390700 PIMCO Total Return Instl 2,784.37 29,054.95 10.34 28,790.38 23.88% 1.64%

$115,575.71 $116,103.61 6.61%

TOTAL FIXED INCOME $119,971.70 $120,548.30 6.87%

EQUITY

Large Cap Blend Funds

COFYX 19766M709 Columbia Contrarian Core Inst3 7,911.40 183,605.04 27.43 217,009.56 14.73% 12.36%

VGIAX 921913208 Vanguard Growth & Income Adm 2,555.15 187,732.77 84.83 216,753.20 14.71% 12.34%

$371,337.81 $433,762.76 24.70%

Large Cap Value Funds

DODGX 256219106 Dodge & Cox Stock 517.15 97,544.76 193.76 100,203.37 6.80% 5.71%

PKAIX 72202L462 PIMCO RAE US Instl 8,692.69 94,824.18 11.59 100,748.32 6.84% 5.74%

IVE 464287408 iShares S&P 500 Value ETF 133.00 17,197.74 130.09 17,301.97 1.17% 0.99%

$209,566.68 $218,253.66 12.43%

Large Cap Growth Funds

HNACX 411512528 Harbor Capital Appreciation Retirement 1,368.51 93,990.25 75.7 103,596.36 7.03% 5.90%

LSITX 52469H255 ClearBridge Large Cap Growth IS 1,826.62 87,180.22 54.66 99,843.10 6.78% 5.69%

$181,170.47 $203,439.46 11.59%

Mid Cap Blend Funds

VO 922908629 Vanguard Mid-Cap ETF 359.00 57,288.65 178.18 63,966.62 4.34% 3.64%

51



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Growth
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

Small Cap Value Funds

UBVFX 904504479 Undiscovered Managers Behavioral Val R6 1,080.89 70,526.42 62.81 67,890.70 4.61% 3.87%

Small Cap Blend Funds

DCZRX 24610B826 Delaware Small Cap Core R6 1,600.47 37,920.96 23.69 37,915.09 2.57% 2.16%

VB 922908751 Vanguard Small-Cap ETF 225.00 33,291.69 165.64 37,269.00 2.53% 2.12%

$71,212.65 $75,184.09 4.28%

Small Cap Growth Funds

RSEJX 92647Q363 Victory RS Small Cap Growth R6 451.37 36,352.65 81.24 36,669.54 2.49% 2.09%

VBK 922908595 Vanguard Small-Cap Growth ETF 156.00 29,869.93 198.7 30,997.20 2.10% 1.77%

$66,222.58 $67,666.74 3.85%

Foreign Large Value Funds

DODFX 256206103 Dodge & Cox International Stock 905.59 37,751.41 43.6 39,483.85 2.68% 2.25%

Foreign Large Blend Funds

DFALX 233203868 DFA Large Cap International I 5,998.45 128,666.96 23.67 141,983.41 9.64% 8.09%

HEFA 46434V803 iShares Currency Hedged MSCI EAFE ETF 1,777.00 47,014.12 30.515 54,225.15 3.68% 3.09%

$175,681.08 $196,208.56 11.17%

Foreign Large Growth Funds

MGRDX 552746356 MFS International Growth R6 1,064.49 32,443.13 37.1 39,492.73 2.68% 2.25%

Diversified Emerging Markets

HHHFX 41665X859 Hartford Schroders Emerging Mkts Eq F 4,089.13 57,401.49 16.58 67,797.69 4.60% 3.86%

$57,401.49 $67,797.69 3.86%

TOTAL EQUITY $1,330,602.37 $1,473,146.86 83.90%

ALTERNATIVES

Market Neutral

QMNIX 00191K799 AQR Equity Market Neutral I 427.47 4,720.84 9.2 3,932.74 0.27% 0.22%

BILPX 09250J734 BlackRock Event Driven Equity Instl 1,000.32 9,946.77 9.69 9,693.12 0.66% 0.55%

BSIKX 09260B374 BlackRock Strategic Income Opps K 485.06 4,791.51 9.98 4,840.88 0.33% 0.28%

$19,459.12 $18,466.74 1.05%

52



HOLDINGS REPORT
El Toro Water District 401(k) - Growth
As of Fourth Quarter 2019

TICKER CUSIP ASSET NAME SHARES/UNITS COST BASIS PRICE

MARKET VALUE 

(MV)

MV AS % OF 

ASSET TYPE

MV AS % OF 

TOTAL

Managed Futures

AQMIX 00203H859 AQR Managed Futures Strategy I 943.79 9,016.08 8.31 7,842.90 0.53% 0.45%

AMFNX 63873P825 Natixis ASG Managed Futures Strategy N 854.05 8,874.29 9.37 8,002.48 0.54% 0.46%

$17,890.37 $15,845.38 0.90%

Merger Arbitrage

ARBNX 03875R205 Arbitrage I 11.50 150.77 13.35 153.50 0.01% 0.01%

Global Macro

EGRSX 27830W108 Eaton Vance Glbl Macro Abs Ret Advtg R6 856.53 8,533.23 10.47 8,967.88 0.61% 0.51%

LAOSX 95768D509 Western Asset Macro Opportunities IS 793.78 8,419.42 11.12 8,826.80 0.60% 0.50%

$16,952.65 $17,794.68 1.01%

Fund of Hedge Funds

BXMIX 09257V201 Blackstone Alternative Multi-Strategy I 859.04 9,058.94 10.68 9,174.59 0.62% 0.52%

QSPIX 00203H420 AQR Style Premia Alternative I 837.84 8,350.48 8.15 6,828.39 0.46% 0.39%

$17,409.42 $16,002.98 0.91%
REITs

ICF 464287564 iShares Cohen & Steers REIT ETF 178.00 20,273.89 116.99 20,824.22 1.41% 1.19%

TOTAL ALTERNATIVES $92,136.22 $89,087.50 5.07%

TOTAL - ALL ASSETS $1,615,845.34 $1,755,917.71 100.00%

53



DISCLOSURES

HighMark Capital Management, Inc. (HighMark), an SEC-registered investment adviser, is a subsidiary of MUFG Union Bank, N.A. (MUB). HighMark 

manages institutional separate account portfolios for a wide variety of for-profit and nonprofit organizations, public agencies, public and private 

retirement plans, and personal trusts of all sizes. It may also serve as sub-adviser for mutual funds, common trust funds, and collective investment trusts. 

MUB, a subsidiary of MUFG Americas Holdings Corporation, provides certain services to HighMark and is compensated for these services. Past 

performance does not guarantee future results. Individual account management and construction will vary depending on each client's investment needs 

and objectives.  Investments employing HighMark strategies are NOT insured by the FDIC or by any other Federal Government Agency, are NOT Bank 

deposits, are NOT guaranteed by the Bank or any Bank affiliate, and MAY lose value, including possible loss of principal. 

Some information provided herein was obtained from third party sources deemed to be reliable; HighMark and its affiliates make no representations or 

warranties with respect to the timeliness, accuracy, or completeness of the information provided.  Any information provided is subject to change without 

notice. 

Benchmark returns do not reflect the deduction of advisory fees, custody fees, transaction costs, or other expenses of investing. An investor cannot invest 

directly in an index. The unmanaged S&P 500 Index is generally representative of the performance of large companies in the U.S. stock market. The MSCI 

EAFE Index (Europe, Australasia, Far East) is a free float-adjusted market capitalization index that is designed to measure developed market equity 

performance, excluding the U.S. & Cananda. The Russell 2000 Index measures the performance of the 2,000 smallest companies in the Russell 3000 

Index, which represents approximately 8% of the total market capitalization of the Russell 3000 Index. The unmanaged Barclays Capital (BC) U.S. 

Aggregate Bond Index is generally representative of the U.S. taxable bond market as a whole. The unmanaged BC 1-3 Year U.S. Government/Credit Index 

is a subset of the BC U.S. Government/Credit Index with maturities ranging from 1-3 years. The unmanaged Citigroup 3-month T-bill Index tracks the yield 

of the 3-month U.S. Treasury bill. Total returns assume the reinvestment of dividends and other earnings. Results for periods greater than one year are 

annualized.

   

© HighMark Capital Management, Inc. 2017.  All rights reserved. 

54



1 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 20-2-1 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE EL TORO WATER DISTRICT 

ADOPTING FAIR POLITICAL PRACTICE COMMISSION 

FORM 806 IN THE FORM AND CONTENT ATTACHED 

TO THIS RESOLUTION, AND AUTHORIZING & DIRECTING THE 

POSTING OF SAID FORM 806 ON THE DISTRICT’S WEBSITE 

 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Fair Political Practice Commission (“FPPC”) has provided a form 

(“Form 806”) to report additional compensation that officials receive when appointing 

themselves to a standing or ad hoc committee of the public agency of which the official is a 

member (see FPPC Regulation 18705.5 amended 12/13/2012); and 

 WHEREAS, on January 23, 2020, the Board of Directors of the El Toro Water District 

(“District”) confirmed the appointment of Directors to various Organizations and Standing 

Committees of the District; and 

 WHEREAS, Form 806 attached hereto marked Exhibit “A”, sets forth each appointed 

position for which compensation is paid, the stipend for each appointed position, the name of the 

public official who has been appointed to the position and the name of the public official, if any, 

who has been appointed as an alternate and the term of the position. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 

District hereby ratifies and confirms the adoption as set forth of the FPPC Form 806 in the form 

and content set forth in Exhibit “A” to this Resolution; 



2 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER that the General Manager of the District or his designee is 

hereby authorized and directed to post Exhibit “A” to this Resolution (FPPC Form 806) on the 

District’s website. 

 ADOPTED, SIGNED, AND APPROVED this 27th day of February 2020. 

 

 

       _________________________________ 

       MARK L. MONIN, President 

       El Toro Water District and the 

       Board of Directors thereof 

 

 

 

(SEAL) 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

DENNIS P. CAFFERTY, Secretary 

El Toro Water District and the 

Board of Directors thereof 

 

 



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

Comment: 

A Public Document

Appt Date and  
Length of Term

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments

2. Appointments

3. Verification
I have read and understand FPPC Regulation 18702.5. I have verified that the appointment and information identified above is true to the best of my information and belief.

Signature of Agency Head or Designee Print Name Title (Month, Day, Year)

Agency Boards and  
Commissions Name of Appointed Person Per Meeting/Annual Salary/Stipend

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

Other

Other

California
Form

1. Agency Name

Designated Agency Contact (Name,Title)

E-mail

Division, Department, or Region (If Applicable)

806
For Official Use Only

Area Code/Phone Number 

(Month, Day, Year)

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

Page _____ of _____

Date Posted: 



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

Background
This form is used to report additional compensation that officials 
receive when appointing themselves to positions on committees, 
boards, or commissions of another public agency or to a 
committee or position of the agency of which the public official is 
a member.

This form is required pursuant to FPPC Regulation 18702.5. 
Each agency must post on its website a single Form 806 which 
lists all the paid appointed positions to which an official will vote 
to appoint themselves. When there is a change in compensation 
or a new appointment, the Form 806 is updated to reflect the 
change.  The form must be updated promptly as changes occur.

Instructions 
This form must be posted prior to a vote (or consent item) to 
appoint a governing board member if the appointee will participate 
in the decision and the appointment results in additional 
compensation to the appointee. 

FPPC Regulation 18702.5 provides that as long as the public 
is informed prior to a vote, an official may vote to hold another 
position even when the vote results in additional compensation.

Part 1. Agency Identification
Identify the agency name and information on who should be 
contacted for information.  

Part 2.  Appointments
Identify the name of the other agency, board or commission.  List 
the name of the official, and an alternate, if any.  

List the appointment date and the length of term the agency 
official will serve.  Disclose the stipend provided per meeting and 
the estimated annual payment.  The annual salary is an estimate 
as it will likely vary depending upon the number of meetings.  It 
is not necessary to revise the estimate at the end of the calendar 
year.

Part 3.  Verification
The agency head or his/her designee must sign the verification.  

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
1. When does an agency need to complete the Form 806?

� A Form 806 is required when an agency’s board members
vote to appoint a board member to serve on another
governmental agency or position of the agency of which the
official is a member and will receive additional compensation.

�
2. The city council votes to serve as the city’s housing authority,

a separate entity.  Will the Form 806 be required?

� If the council members receive additional compensation for
serving on the housing authority, the Form 806 is required.

3. Are appointments made by a governing board to appoint
one of its members to serve as an officer of that board for
additional pay (e.g., mayor) required to be disclosed on Form
806?

No. FPPC Regulation 18702.5(b)(6) exempts from this 
requirement decisions to fill a position on the body of which 
the official is a member (such as a councilmember being 
appointed as mayor) despite an increase in compensation.

4. In determining the income, must the agency include mileage
reimbursements, travel payments, health benefits, and other
compensation?

� No.  FPPC Regulation 18702.5 requires only the amount of
the stipend or salary to be reported.

�
5. Which agency must post the Form 806?

� The agency that is voting to appoint a public official must post
the Form 806 on its website.  The agency that the official will
serve as a member is not required to post the Form 806.  The
form is not sent to the FPPC.

�
6. When must the Form 806 be updated?
� The Form 806 should be amended promptly upon any of

the following circumstances: (1) the number of scheduled
meetings is changed, (2) there is a change in the
compensation paid to the members, (3) there is a change in
membership on the board or commission, or (4) there is a
new appointment to a new agency.

�
7. If officials choose to recuse themselves from the decision

and leave the room when a vote is taken to make an
appointment, must the Form 806 be completed?

� No.  The Form 806 is only required to identify those officials
that will vote on an appointment in which the official will also
receive additional compensation.

�
Privacy Information Notice
Information requested by the FPPC is used to administer and 
enforce the Political Reform Act.  Failure to provide information 
may be a violation subject to penalties.  All reports are public 
records available for inspection and reproduction.  Direct 
questions to FPPC’s General Counsel, Fair Political Practices 
Commission, 1102 Q Street, Suite 3000, Sacramento, CA 
95811.

California
Form 806

A Public Document

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

A Public Document

Appt Date and  
Length of Term

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments 
Continuation Sheet

2. Appointments
Agency Boards and  

Commissions Name of Appointed Person Per Meeting/Annual Salary/Stipend

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

Other

Other

California
Form

1. Agency Name

806

(Month, Day, Year)
Date Posted: 

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

Page _____  of  _____



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

Comment: 

A Public Document

Appt Date and  
Length of Term

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments

2. Appointments

3. Verification
I have read and understand FPPC Regulation 18702.5. I have verified that the appointment and information identified above is true to the best of my information and belief.

Signature of Agency Head or Designee Print Name Title (Month, Day, Year)

Agency Boards and  
Commissions Name of Appointed Person Per Meeting/Annual Salary/Stipend

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

Other

Other

California
Form

1. Agency Name

Designated Agency Contact (Name,Title)

E-mail

Division, Department, or Region (If Applicable)

806
For Official Use Only

Area Code/Phone Number 

(Month, Day, Year)

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

Page _____ of _____

Date Posted: 



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

Background
This form is used to report additional compensation that officials 
receive when appointing themselves to positions on committees, 
boards, or commissions of another public agency or to a 
committee or position of the agency of which the public official is 
a member.

This form is required pursuant to FPPC Regulation 18702.5. 
Each agency must post on its website a single Form 806 which 
lists all the paid appointed positions to which an official will vote 
to appoint themselves. When there is a change in compensation 
or a new appointment, the Form 806 is updated to reflect the 
change.  The form must be updated promptly as changes occur.

Instructions 
This form must be posted prior to a vote (or consent item) to 
appoint a governing board member if the appointee will participate 
in the decision and the appointment results in additional 
compensation to the appointee. 

FPPC Regulation 18702.5 provides that as long as the public 
is informed prior to a vote, an official may vote to hold another 
position even when the vote results in additional compensation.

Part 1. Agency Identification
Identify the agency name and information on who should be 
contacted for information.  

Part 2.  Appointments
Identify the name of the other agency, board or commission.  List 
the name of the official, and an alternate, if any.  

List the appointment date and the length of term the agency 
official will serve.  Disclose the stipend provided per meeting and 
the estimated annual payment.  The annual salary is an estimate 
as it will likely vary depending upon the number of meetings.  It 
is not necessary to revise the estimate at the end of the calendar 
year.

Part 3.  Verification
The agency head or his/her designee must sign the verification.  

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
1. When does an agency need to complete the Form 806?

� A Form 806 is required when an agency’s board members
vote to appoint a board member to serve on another
governmental agency or position of the agency of which the
official is a member and will receive additional compensation.

�
2. The city council votes to serve as the city’s housing authority,

a separate entity.  Will the Form 806 be required?

� If the council members receive additional compensation for
serving on the housing authority, the Form 806 is required.

3. Are appointments made by a governing board to appoint
one of its members to serve as an officer of that board for
additional pay (e.g., mayor) required to be disclosed on Form
806?

No. FPPC Regulation 18702.5(b)(6) exempts from this 
requirement decisions to fill a position on the body of which 
the official is a member (such as a councilmember being 
appointed as mayor) despite an increase in compensation.

4. In determining the income, must the agency include mileage
reimbursements, travel payments, health benefits, and other
compensation?

� No.  FPPC Regulation 18702.5 requires only the amount of
the stipend or salary to be reported.

�
5. Which agency must post the Form 806?

� The agency that is voting to appoint a public official must post
the Form 806 on its website.  The agency that the official will
serve as a member is not required to post the Form 806.  The
form is not sent to the FPPC.

�
6. When must the Form 806 be updated?
� The Form 806 should be amended promptly upon any of

the following circumstances: (1) the number of scheduled
meetings is changed, (2) there is a change in the
compensation paid to the members, (3) there is a change in
membership on the board or commission, or (4) there is a
new appointment to a new agency.

�
7. If officials choose to recuse themselves from the decision

and leave the room when a vote is taken to make an
appointment, must the Form 806 be completed?

� No.  The Form 806 is only required to identify those officials
that will vote on an appointment in which the official will also
receive additional compensation.

�
Privacy Information Notice
Information requested by the FPPC is used to administer and 
enforce the Political Reform Act.  Failure to provide information 
may be a violation subject to penalties.  All reports are public 
records available for inspection and reproduction.  Direct 
questions to FPPC’s General Counsel, Fair Political Practices 
Commission, 1102 Q Street, Suite 3000, Sacramento, CA 
95811.

California
Form 806

A Public Document

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

A Public Document

Appt Date and  
Length of Term

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments 
Continuation Sheet

2. Appointments
Agency Boards and  

Commissions Name of Appointed Person Per Meeting/Annual Salary/Stipend

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

Other

Other

California
Form

1. Agency Name

806

(Month, Day, Year)
Date Posted: 

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

Page _____  of  _____



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

Comment: 

A Public Document

Appt Date and  
Length of Term

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments

2. Appointments

3. Verification
I have read and understand FPPC Regulation 18702.5. I have verified that the appointment and information identified above is true to the best of my information and belief.

Signature of Agency Head or Designee Print Name Title (Month, Day, Year)

Agency Boards and  
Commissions Name of Appointed Person Per Meeting/Annual Salary/Stipend

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

Other

Other

California
Form

1. Agency Name

Designated Agency Contact (Name,Title)

E-mail

Division, Department, or Region (If Applicable)

806
For Official Use Only

Area Code/Phone Number 

(Month, Day, Year)

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

Page _____ of _____

Date Posted: 



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

Background
This form is used to report additional compensation that officials 
receive when appointing themselves to positions on committees, 
boards, or commissions of another public agency or to a 
committee or position of the agency of which the public official is 
a member.

This form is required pursuant to FPPC Regulation 18702.5. 
Each agency must post on its website a single Form 806 which 
lists all the paid appointed positions to which an official will vote 
to appoint themselves. When there is a change in compensation 
or a new appointment, the Form 806 is updated to reflect the 
change.  The form must be updated promptly as changes occur.

Instructions 
This form must be posted prior to a vote (or consent item) to 
appoint a governing board member if the appointee will participate 
in the decision and the appointment results in additional 
compensation to the appointee. 

FPPC Regulation 18702.5 provides that as long as the public 
is informed prior to a vote, an official may vote to hold another 
position even when the vote results in additional compensation.

Part 1. Agency Identification
Identify the agency name and information on who should be 
contacted for information.  

Part 2.  Appointments
Identify the name of the other agency, board or commission.  List 
the name of the official, and an alternate, if any.  

List the appointment date and the length of term the agency 
official will serve.  Disclose the stipend provided per meeting and 
the estimated annual payment.  The annual salary is an estimate 
as it will likely vary depending upon the number of meetings.  It 
is not necessary to revise the estimate at the end of the calendar 
year.

Part 3.  Verification
The agency head or his/her designee must sign the verification.  

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
1. When does an agency need to complete the Form 806?

� A Form 806 is required when an agency’s board members
vote to appoint a board member to serve on another
governmental agency or position of the agency of which the
official is a member and will receive additional compensation.

�
2. The city council votes to serve as the city’s housing authority,

a separate entity.  Will the Form 806 be required?

� If the council members receive additional compensation for
serving on the housing authority, the Form 806 is required.

3. Are appointments made by a governing board to appoint
one of its members to serve as an officer of that board for
additional pay (e.g., mayor) required to be disclosed on Form
806?

No. FPPC Regulation 18702.5(b)(6) exempts from this 
requirement decisions to fill a position on the body of which 
the official is a member (such as a councilmember being 
appointed as mayor) despite an increase in compensation.

4. In determining the income, must the agency include mileage
reimbursements, travel payments, health benefits, and other
compensation?

� No.  FPPC Regulation 18702.5 requires only the amount of
the stipend or salary to be reported.

�
5. Which agency must post the Form 806?

� The agency that is voting to appoint a public official must post
the Form 806 on its website.  The agency that the official will
serve as a member is not required to post the Form 806.  The
form is not sent to the FPPC.

�
6. When must the Form 806 be updated?
� The Form 806 should be amended promptly upon any of

the following circumstances: (1) the number of scheduled
meetings is changed, (2) there is a change in the
compensation paid to the members, (3) there is a change in
membership on the board or commission, or (4) there is a
new appointment to a new agency.

�
7. If officials choose to recuse themselves from the decision

and leave the room when a vote is taken to make an
appointment, must the Form 806 be completed?

� No.  The Form 806 is only required to identify those officials
that will vote on an appointment in which the official will also
receive additional compensation.

�
Privacy Information Notice
Information requested by the FPPC is used to administer and 
enforce the Political Reform Act.  Failure to provide information 
may be a violation subject to penalties.  All reports are public 
records available for inspection and reproduction.  Direct 
questions to FPPC’s General Counsel, Fair Political Practices 
Commission, 1102 Q Street, Suite 3000, Sacramento, CA 
95811.

California
Form 806

A Public Document

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

A Public Document

Appt Date and  
Length of Term

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments 
Continuation Sheet

2. Appointments
Agency Boards and  

Commissions Name of Appointed Person Per Meeting/Annual Salary/Stipend

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

Other

Other

California
Form

1. Agency Name

806

(Month, Day, Year)
Date Posted: 

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

Page _____  of  _____



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

Comment: 

A Public Document

Appt Date and  
Length of Term

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments

2. Appointments

3. Verification
I have read and understand FPPC Regulation 18702.5. I have verified that the appointment and information identified above is true to the best of my information and belief.

Signature of Agency Head or Designee Print Name Title (Month, Day, Year)

Agency Boards and  
Commissions Name of Appointed Person Per Meeting/Annual Salary/Stipend

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

Other

Other

California
Form

1. Agency Name

Designated Agency Contact (Name,Title)

E-mail

Division, Department, or Region (If Applicable)

806
For Official Use Only

Area Code/Phone Number 

(Month, Day, Year)

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

Page _____ of _____

Date Posted: 



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

Background
This form is used to report additional compensation that officials 
receive when appointing themselves to positions on committees, 
boards, or commissions of another public agency or to a 
committee or position of the agency of which the public official is 
a member.

This form is required pursuant to FPPC Regulation 18702.5. 
Each agency must post on its website a single Form 806 which 
lists all the paid appointed positions to which an official will vote 
to appoint themselves. When there is a change in compensation 
or a new appointment, the Form 806 is updated to reflect the 
change.  The form must be updated promptly as changes occur.

Instructions 
This form must be posted prior to a vote (or consent item) to 
appoint a governing board member if the appointee will participate 
in the decision and the appointment results in additional 
compensation to the appointee. 

FPPC Regulation 18702.5 provides that as long as the public 
is informed prior to a vote, an official may vote to hold another 
position even when the vote results in additional compensation.

Part 1. Agency Identification
Identify the agency name and information on who should be 
contacted for information.  

Part 2.  Appointments
Identify the name of the other agency, board or commission.  List 
the name of the official, and an alternate, if any.  

List the appointment date and the length of term the agency 
official will serve.  Disclose the stipend provided per meeting and 
the estimated annual payment.  The annual salary is an estimate 
as it will likely vary depending upon the number of meetings.  It 
is not necessary to revise the estimate at the end of the calendar 
year.

Part 3.  Verification
The agency head or his/her designee must sign the verification.  

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
1. When does an agency need to complete the Form 806?

� A Form 806 is required when an agency’s board members
vote to appoint a board member to serve on another
governmental agency or position of the agency of which the
official is a member and will receive additional compensation.

�
2. The city council votes to serve as the city’s housing authority,

a separate entity.  Will the Form 806 be required?

� If the council members receive additional compensation for
serving on the housing authority, the Form 806 is required.

3. Are appointments made by a governing board to appoint
one of its members to serve as an officer of that board for
additional pay (e.g., mayor) required to be disclosed on Form
806?

No. FPPC Regulation 18702.5(b)(6) exempts from this 
requirement decisions to fill a position on the body of which 
the official is a member (such as a councilmember being 
appointed as mayor) despite an increase in compensation.

4. In determining the income, must the agency include mileage
reimbursements, travel payments, health benefits, and other
compensation?

� No.  FPPC Regulation 18702.5 requires only the amount of
the stipend or salary to be reported.

�
5. Which agency must post the Form 806?

� The agency that is voting to appoint a public official must post
the Form 806 on its website.  The agency that the official will
serve as a member is not required to post the Form 806.  The
form is not sent to the FPPC.

�
6. When must the Form 806 be updated?
� The Form 806 should be amended promptly upon any of

the following circumstances: (1) the number of scheduled
meetings is changed, (2) there is a change in the
compensation paid to the members, (3) there is a change in
membership on the board or commission, or (4) there is a
new appointment to a new agency.

�
7. If officials choose to recuse themselves from the decision

and leave the room when a vote is taken to make an
appointment, must the Form 806 be completed?

� No.  The Form 806 is only required to identify those officials
that will vote on an appointment in which the official will also
receive additional compensation.

�
Privacy Information Notice
Information requested by the FPPC is used to administer and 
enforce the Political Reform Act.  Failure to provide information 
may be a violation subject to penalties.  All reports are public 
records available for inspection and reproduction.  Direct 
questions to FPPC’s General Counsel, Fair Political Practices 
Commission, 1102 Q Street, Suite 3000, Sacramento, CA 
95811.

California
Form 806

A Public Document

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

A Public Document

Appt Date and  
Length of Term

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments 
Continuation Sheet

2. Appointments
Agency Boards and  

Commissions Name of Appointed Person Per Meeting/Annual Salary/Stipend

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

Other

Other

California
Form

1. Agency Name

806

(Month, Day, Year)
Date Posted: 

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

Page _____  of  _____



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

Comment: 

A Public Document

Appt Date and  
Length of Term

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments

2. Appointments

3. Verification
I have read and understand FPPC Regulation 18702.5. I have verified that the appointment and information identified above is true to the best of my information and belief.

Signature of Agency Head or Designee Print Name Title (Month, Day, Year)

Agency Boards and  
Commissions Name of Appointed Person Per Meeting/Annual Salary/Stipend

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

Other

Other

California
Form

1. Agency Name

Designated Agency Contact (Name,Title)

E-mail

Division, Department, or Region (If Applicable)

806
For Official Use Only

Area Code/Phone Number 

(Month, Day, Year)

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

Page _____ of _____

Date Posted: 



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

Background
This form is used to report additional compensation that officials 
receive when appointing themselves to positions on committees, 
boards, or commissions of another public agency or to a 
committee or position of the agency of which the public official is 
a member.

This form is required pursuant to FPPC Regulation 18702.5. 
Each agency must post on its website a single Form 806 which 
lists all the paid appointed positions to which an official will vote 
to appoint themselves. When there is a change in compensation 
or a new appointment, the Form 806 is updated to reflect the 
change.  The form must be updated promptly as changes occur.

Instructions 
This form must be posted prior to a vote (or consent item) to 
appoint a governing board member if the appointee will participate 
in the decision and the appointment results in additional 
compensation to the appointee. 

FPPC Regulation 18702.5 provides that as long as the public 
is informed prior to a vote, an official may vote to hold another 
position even when the vote results in additional compensation.

Part 1. Agency Identification
Identify the agency name and information on who should be 
contacted for information.  

Part 2.  Appointments
Identify the name of the other agency, board or commission.  List 
the name of the official, and an alternate, if any.  

List the appointment date and the length of term the agency 
official will serve.  Disclose the stipend provided per meeting and 
the estimated annual payment.  The annual salary is an estimate 
as it will likely vary depending upon the number of meetings.  It 
is not necessary to revise the estimate at the end of the calendar 
year.

Part 3.  Verification
The agency head or his/her designee must sign the verification.  

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
1. When does an agency need to complete the Form 806?

� A Form 806 is required when an agency’s board members
vote to appoint a board member to serve on another
governmental agency or position of the agency of which the
official is a member and will receive additional compensation.

�
2. The city council votes to serve as the city’s housing authority,

a separate entity.  Will the Form 806 be required?

� If the council members receive additional compensation for
serving on the housing authority, the Form 806 is required.

3. Are appointments made by a governing board to appoint
one of its members to serve as an officer of that board for
additional pay (e.g., mayor) required to be disclosed on Form
806?

No. FPPC Regulation 18702.5(b)(6) exempts from this 
requirement decisions to fill a position on the body of which 
the official is a member (such as a councilmember being 
appointed as mayor) despite an increase in compensation.

4. In determining the income, must the agency include mileage
reimbursements, travel payments, health benefits, and other
compensation?

� No.  FPPC Regulation 18702.5 requires only the amount of
the stipend or salary to be reported.

�
5. Which agency must post the Form 806?

� The agency that is voting to appoint a public official must post
the Form 806 on its website.  The agency that the official will
serve as a member is not required to post the Form 806.  The
form is not sent to the FPPC.

�
6. When must the Form 806 be updated?
� The Form 806 should be amended promptly upon any of

the following circumstances: (1) the number of scheduled
meetings is changed, (2) there is a change in the
compensation paid to the members, (3) there is a change in
membership on the board or commission, or (4) there is a
new appointment to a new agency.

�
7. If officials choose to recuse themselves from the decision

and leave the room when a vote is taken to make an
appointment, must the Form 806 be completed?

� No.  The Form 806 is only required to identify those officials
that will vote on an appointment in which the official will also
receive additional compensation.

�
Privacy Information Notice
Information requested by the FPPC is used to administer and 
enforce the Political Reform Act.  Failure to provide information 
may be a violation subject to penalties.  All reports are public 
records available for inspection and reproduction.  Direct 
questions to FPPC’s General Counsel, Fair Political Practices 
Commission, 1102 Q Street, Suite 3000, Sacramento, CA 
95811.

California
Form 806

A Public Document

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

A Public Document

Appt Date and  
Length of Term

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments 
Continuation Sheet

2. Appointments
Agency Boards and  

Commissions Name of Appointed Person Per Meeting/Annual Salary/Stipend

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

Other

Other

California
Form

1. Agency Name

806

(Month, Day, Year)
Date Posted: 

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

Page _____  of  _____



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

Comment: 

A Public Document

Appt Date and  
Length of Term

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments

2. Appointments

3. Verification
I have read and understand FPPC Regulation 18702.5. I have verified that the appointment and information identified above is true to the best of my information and belief.

Signature of Agency Head or Designee Print Name Title (Month, Day, Year)

Agency Boards and  
Commissions Name of Appointed Person Per Meeting/Annual Salary/Stipend

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

Other

Other

California
Form

1. Agency Name

Designated Agency Contact (Name,Title)

E-mail

Division, Department, or Region (If Applicable)

806
For Official Use Only

Area Code/Phone Number 

(Month, Day, Year)

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

Page _____ of _____

Date Posted: 



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

Background
This form is used to report additional compensation that officials 
receive when appointing themselves to positions on committees, 
boards, or commissions of another public agency or to a 
committee or position of the agency of which the public official is 
a member.

This form is required pursuant to FPPC Regulation 18702.5. 
Each agency must post on its website a single Form 806 which 
lists all the paid appointed positions to which an official will vote 
to appoint themselves. When there is a change in compensation 
or a new appointment, the Form 806 is updated to reflect the 
change.  The form must be updated promptly as changes occur.

Instructions 
This form must be posted prior to a vote (or consent item) to 
appoint a governing board member if the appointee will participate 
in the decision and the appointment results in additional 
compensation to the appointee. 

FPPC Regulation 18702.5 provides that as long as the public 
is informed prior to a vote, an official may vote to hold another 
position even when the vote results in additional compensation.

Part 1. Agency Identification
Identify the agency name and information on who should be 
contacted for information.  

Part 2.  Appointments
Identify the name of the other agency, board or commission.  List 
the name of the official, and an alternate, if any.  

List the appointment date and the length of term the agency 
official will serve.  Disclose the stipend provided per meeting and 
the estimated annual payment.  The annual salary is an estimate 
as it will likely vary depending upon the number of meetings.  It 
is not necessary to revise the estimate at the end of the calendar 
year.

Part 3.  Verification
The agency head or his/her designee must sign the verification.  

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
1. When does an agency need to complete the Form 806?

� A Form 806 is required when an agency’s board members
vote to appoint a board member to serve on another
governmental agency or position of the agency of which the
official is a member and will receive additional compensation.

�
2. The city council votes to serve as the city’s housing authority,

a separate entity.  Will the Form 806 be required?

� If the council members receive additional compensation for
serving on the housing authority, the Form 806 is required.

3. Are appointments made by a governing board to appoint
one of its members to serve as an officer of that board for
additional pay (e.g., mayor) required to be disclosed on Form
806?

No. FPPC Regulation 18702.5(b)(6) exempts from this 
requirement decisions to fill a position on the body of which 
the official is a member (such as a councilmember being 
appointed as mayor) despite an increase in compensation.

4. In determining the income, must the agency include mileage
reimbursements, travel payments, health benefits, and other
compensation?

� No.  FPPC Regulation 18702.5 requires only the amount of
the stipend or salary to be reported.

�
5. Which agency must post the Form 806?

� The agency that is voting to appoint a public official must post
the Form 806 on its website.  The agency that the official will
serve as a member is not required to post the Form 806.  The
form is not sent to the FPPC.

�
6. When must the Form 806 be updated?
� The Form 806 should be amended promptly upon any of

the following circumstances: (1) the number of scheduled
meetings is changed, (2) there is a change in the
compensation paid to the members, (3) there is a change in
membership on the board or commission, or (4) there is a
new appointment to a new agency.

�
7. If officials choose to recuse themselves from the decision

and leave the room when a vote is taken to make an
appointment, must the Form 806 be completed?

� No.  The Form 806 is only required to identify those officials
that will vote on an appointment in which the official will also
receive additional compensation.

�
Privacy Information Notice
Information requested by the FPPC is used to administer and 
enforce the Political Reform Act.  Failure to provide information 
may be a violation subject to penalties.  All reports are public 
records available for inspection and reproduction.  Direct 
questions to FPPC’s General Counsel, Fair Political Practices 
Commission, 1102 Q Street, Suite 3000, Sacramento, CA 
95811.

California
Form 806

A Public Document

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments



FPPC Form 806 (1/18) 
FPPC Toll-Free Helpline: 866/ASK-FPPC (866/275-3772)

A Public Document

Appt Date and  
Length of Term

Agency Report of:  
Public Official Appointments 
Continuation Sheet

2. Appointments
Agency Boards and  

Commissions Name of Appointed Person Per Meeting/Annual Salary/Stipend

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

Other

Other

California
Form

1. Agency Name

806

(Month, Day, Year)
Date Posted: 

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Alternate, if any 

Alternate, if any 

(Last, First)

(Last, First)

Name 

Name 

 $0-$1,000

 $0-$1,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $1,001-$2,000

 $2,001-$3,000

 $2,001-$3,000

Other

Other

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 ____/____/____
Appt Date

 
Length of Term

 
Length of Term

 Estimated Annual:

 Estimated Annual:

$  Per Meeting:

$  Per Meeting:

Page _____  of  _____



Item No. 5 

 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO:     BOARD OF DIRECTORS                         MEETING DATE:  February 27, 2020 
 
FROM:      Dennis Cafferty, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: California Special Districts Association (CSDA) 2020-2022 Board of 

Directors Call for Nominations – Southern Network Region, Seat B 
 

 
 
The leadership of CSDA is elected from its six geographical networks. Each of the six 
networks has three seats on the board with staggered three year terms. The CSDA 
Elections and Bylaws Committee is looking for independent special district Board 
Members or their General Managers from the Southern Network who are interested in 
leading the direction of the California Special Districts Association for the remainder of 
the 2020-2022 term, Seat B. Candidates must be affiliated with an independent special 
district that is a CSDA Regular Member in good standing and located within the Southern 
Network (see attached CSDA Network Map).  
 
Seat B is currently vacant.  Kathy Tiegs from Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) 
had been elected to this seat in 2018 for the 2020-2022 term.  Kathy Tiegs was not 
reelected to the CVWD Board and is therefore ineligible to serve on the CSDA Board of 
Directors. 
 
Details regarding the Commitment and Expectations can be found in the attached CSDA 
Candidate Information Sheet. The Seat B Nomination Form is also attached for reference. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommended Action at the February 27, 2020 Board Meeting: 
 
The Board will consider nominating a candidate to the California Special Districts 
Association Board of Directors, Southern Network, Seat B, and submitting the nomination 
by the March 6, 2020 deadline. 

















Item No. 6 

 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

TO:     BOARD OF DIRECTORS                         MEETING DATE:  February 27, 2020 
 
FROM:      Dennis Cafferty, General Manager 
 
SUBJECT: California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Board of Directors 

Call for Nominations – Southern Network Region, Seat C 
 

 
 
The leadership of CSDA is elected from its six geographical networks. Each of the six 
networks has three seats on the board with staggered three year terms. The CSDA 
Elections and Bylaws Committee is looking for independent special district Board 
Members or their General Managers from the Southern Network who are interested in 
leading the direction of the California Special Districts Association for the 2021-2023 term, 
Seat C. Candidates must be affiliated with an independent special district that is a CSDA 
Regular Member in good standing and located within the Southern Network (see attached 
CSDA Network Map).  
 
The incumbent for Seat C, Arlene Schafer (Director from the Costa Mesa Sanitary District) 
is running for re-election. 
 
Details regarding the Commitment and Expectations can be found in the attached CSDA 
Call for Nominations and Candidate Information Sheet. The Seat C Nomination Form is 
also attached for reference. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommended Action at the February 27, 2020 Board Meeting: 
 
The Board will consider nominating a candidate to the California Special Districts 
Association Board of Directors, Seat C, and submitting the nomination by the March 26, 
2020 deadline. 















 
 

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT 
 

February 2020 
 

 
 I. OFFICE OF THE GENERAL MANAGER 

 

 Attended MWDOC Managers Meeting 

 Attended Chair/GM Meetings 

 Attended South Orange County Agencies Meeting 

 Attended SOCWMA Management Committee Meeting 

 Attended RRC Meeting 

 Attended Lunch Meeting with Dan Ferons, SMWD General Manager 

 Attended SOCWA Board Meeting 

 Attended MWDOC Water Policy Forum Dinner 

 Attended CAG Meeting 

 Attended OCWA Luncheon 

 Attended Agenda Review Meeting 

 Attended SOCWA Finance Committee Meeting 

 Attended Engineering/Finance Committee Meeting 

 Attended Regular Board Meeting 

 Attended Meeting with Brian Thomas of PFM 

 Attended Special Board Meeting 

 Attended SOCWMA Executive Committee Meeting 

 Attended District All Employee Meeting 

 Attended Project Engineer Position Interviews 

 Attended Raftelis Financial Model Review Meeting 

 

 

II. DOMESTIC AND RECYCLED WATER SALES  

 
Actual domestic sales for the year-to-date as of December 31, 2019 are 3,964.14 acre-feet. This compares to year-to-
date budgeted domestic sales of 3,972.49 acre-feet. The year-to-date variation in actual to budgeted sales reflects a 
decrease of 8.35 acre-feet.  Actual sales are 73.89 acre-feet lower than last year-to-date actual sales for the same 
period.   

 
Actual recycled sales for the year-to-date as of December 31, 2019 are 841.61 acre-feet. This compares to year-to-
date budgeted recycled sales of 980.56 acre-feet. The year-to-date variation in actual to budgeted sales reflects a 
decrease of 138.95 acre-feet.  Actual sales are 6.16 acre-feet lower than last year-to-date actual sales for the same 
period.   

 
 



4,389.94

4,364.96

(24.98)

1,450.00

1,030.11

855.39

(174.72)

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

A
c
re

 F
e
e
t

F.Y. 2019-2020

POTABLE WATER SALES

Budget

Actual

0

50

100

150

200

250

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

A
c

re
 F

e
e

t

F.Y. 2019-2020

RECYCLED WATER SALES

Budget

Actual

Year to Date:

Total Budget  
7,050.00 AF

YTD Budget
4,389.94 AF

Actual
4,364.96 AF      

Under Budget
24.98 AF

Year to Date:

Total Budget  
1,450.00 AF

YTD Budget
1,030.11 AF

Actual
855.39 AF      

Under Budget
174.72 AF 



JAN 2020

Customer Service Activity Report

Regular Service Calls JAN 2020 JAN 2019 Telephone Calls JAN 2020 JAN 2019

Serviceman Dispatched to Read, 

Connect/Disconnect Service 75 70

Change of Service:                               

Connections and Disconnections
58 102

Field Investigations: Billing / Payments & Graph Inquires 236 367

Check for leaks - calls to CS 

Office:(irrigation,meter,street leaks)

Assistance with online payments and 

ETWD's portal (cc, e-checks, other.)
49 122

  Customer Responsible 18 23

  District Responsible 9 5 Variance / Adjustment Inquiries 20 50

  None found/other
15 14

Variance / Adjustment Requests 

Processed
12 10

High Reads Checked - High Consumption 

(Billing Dept.) 36 9

Ordinance Infraction / Water Waste 

Complaints
0 0

   Cust Leaks: _12_   No Leaks: _24_

Check Stopped Slowed Meters-Low 

Consumption (Billing) 24 8 Outside Utility Districts
80 72

Re-Check Read 15 13

Phone calls Transfer to other 

Departments within ETWD
77 140

Ordinance Infraction 0 1 Phone calls for the Board of Directors 0 4

Recycled Water 0 0 Recycled Water 4 0

Water Quality:  Taste / Odor / Color  3 2 Water Quality Taste - Odor - Color 5 3

Phone response: _2_  Field response: _1_ Leaks / Breaks 29 13

Flooding (Hydrant) Meters issued 1 0 Flooding Meter calls (Hydrant) 3 1

Sewer - Odor/Stoppage/ Manhole Covers 4 0 Sewer Problems (odor / spills) 4 5

Meter Box:  Lids / Covers  Replaced 11 33

Meter Box Clean, Digout 1 7
Backflow / Cross Connection 

(questions or yearly testing forms)
1 3

Raised Meter Box 0 1

ETWD facilities inquiries: 

Boxes/Covers/Lids/Hydrants/Pump 

Stations/Graffiti/ "Gen. Maint"
12 8

Trim Bushes / Meter Obstruction 4 16

General Maintenance Response 0 8
Tyco (ADT) Calls                            

(Alarms to ETWD facilities)
3 0

Fire Hydrants:  Hit / Leaks / Caps 0 0 ATT Calls (access to tower sites) 0 2

Pressure(psi) Checks / Reads 2 5 SCE Calls (access to tower sites) 0 2

CSSOV (Angle Meter/Ball Valve/Gate 

Valve/Globe Valve) chk,repair,replaced
2 8

Pager Calls specifically for Pump 

Stations - SCADA
1 0

AMS angle-meter-stop replace/repair 1 0

Bees Removed 0 1

Backflow / Cross Connection 1 5 Payment Extensions 47 90

Fogged Registers 2 46

Delinquent Payment Calls to Customer 

's prior to shut off per billing calendar 

(automatic courtesy dialer)  
70 65

OMCOP: Old Meter Change - Out Program 1 0

Return Calls from customers left on 

our voice mail system. Ext 500
10 11

Other: (uncommon non-maintenance calls) 4 5 Email Correspondence: 67 113

On-Call After Hrs. CS  Response 16 23
Maintenance Service Order Requests 

(bees, psi, fogged-dirty registers)
5 1

# 48/24 Hr. Door Hangers Hung 144 178
Misc. (other: employment, deliveries, 

sales calls)
36 35

# Locked Off For Non-Pay (Disconnect) 21 10

Removed Meter 0 0

New Meter 17 19

Unread Meters 15 15
Total Field Investigations 442 525 Total Telephone Calls 829 1219

 

Uncollectible Accounts: Credit Card Payments JAN 2020 JAN 2019

Budget YTD 11,667.00$ 11,667.00$  REGULAR 929 $96,105.16 718 $77,598.96

Actual YTD 4,907.00$   399.00$       DISCONNECTS



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

5 / A

RES-3

5 / A

RES-4

5 / A

RES-1

5 / A

RES-2

5 / A

5 / A

5 / A

5 / A
5 / A

5 / A

5 / A

5 / A5 / A

5 / A

5 / A

5 / A5 / A

5 / A

R-15

5 / A

R-14

5 / A

RES-6 OUTLET

5 / A

R-13

5 / A

OC-77

5 / A

5 / A

R-11

5 / A

R-10

R-16R-3
R-17

R-2

R-18

R-19

R-4 R-5

R-6 R-7 R-8
R-9

R-12

MPR

1 / A

ALISO CREEK RD

EL TORO RD

MICROBIOLOGICAL MONITORING

SAMPLE POINT

# TESTS / RESULT

A = ABSENCE
P = PRESENCE (POSITIVE)

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND
DATA LEGEND

January 2020



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY
I-5  FR

EEW
A

Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

mg/L

RES-3

mg/L

RES-4

mg/L

RES-1

mg/L

RES-2

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L
mg/L

/          /
mg/L

mg/L

mg/Lmg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/Lmg/L

mg/L

R-15

mg/L

R-14

mg/L

RES-6 OUTLET

mg/L

R-13

mg/L

OC-77

mg/L

mg/L

R-11

mg/L

R-10

R-16R-3
R-17

R-2

R-18

R-19

R-4 R-5

R-6 R-7 R-8
R-9

R-12

MPR

mg/L

RES-5

mg/L1.98 2.09 2.28

/          /

/          /

/          /
/          / /          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /
/          / /          /

/          / /          / /          /
/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

/          /

1.88

1.44 1.44 1.45

2.03 2.48 2.99
1.70 1.77 1.87

1.42 1.66 1.89

1.70 1.82 1.89

1.66 1.95 2.22

0.87 1.07 1.29

0.65 1.05 1.26

0.39 1.07 1.39

1.21 1.66 1.86
0.44 1.15 1.44

1.21 1.35 1.61 1.12 1.32 1.55 1.63 1.79 1.94
1.86 2.05 2.23

1.39 1.89 2.19

1.87 2.04 2.24

1.55 1.74 1.87

1.81 2.02 2.19
0.60 1.37 2.39

1.29 1.67 2.08

1.36 1.59 1.91
0.42 0.46 0.50

0.39 0.53 0.72

0.45 0.50 0.55

LOS ALISOS BLVD

mg/L

BAKER (MNWD)

/          /2.04 2.16 2.22

CHLORINE RESIDUAL MONITORING

DATA LEGEND
SAMPLE POINT

MIN / AVG / MAX
mg/L

MCL 4.0 mg/L
MIN 0.2 mg/L

January 2020

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

RD

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L
mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/Lmg/L

mg/L

R-15

mg/L

R-14

mg/L

R-13

mg/L

MPR

mg/L

mg/L

R-11

mg/L

R-10

R-16R-3
R-17

R-2

R-18

R-19

R-4

R-5

R-6 R-7 R-8
R-9

R-12

0.68

0.79

0.73

0.68

0.70

0.77

0.82
0.93

0.90

0.85

0.84

0.88

0.85

0.88

0.80

0.85

0.70

0.72

0.72

0.85

FLUORIDE  MONITORING

SAMPLE POINT

TOTAL
mg/L

DATA LEGEND

OPTIMUM LEVEL

0.7 - 1.3
mg/L

January 2020

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND



EL TORO RD

P
K

W
Y

SANTA

R
D

M
U

IRLAN
DS

LAKE FOREST D
R

TRABUCO

JERONIMO RD

A
LI

C
IA

EL TORO R
D

LA PAZ RD

ALISO CREEK RD

C
A

B
O

T

EL TORO RD

PKWY

ALIC
IA

P
K

W
Y

BLVD

TORO

EL

M
O

U
L

T
O

N

PKWY

MARGARITA PKW
Y

M
A

R
G

U
E

R
IT

E

R
D

HWY 241

M
O

U
LTO

N

P
K

W
Y

ALIS
O

 C
REEK

A
LI

SO

CREEK

LAKE FOREST

LAGUNA HILLS

MISSION VIEJO

LAGUNA HILLS

LAGUNA WOODS

ALISO VIEJO

I-5  FREEW
AY

I-5  FREEWAY

I-5  FR
EEW

A
Y

LAKE FOREST

MISSION VIEJO

RAILRO
AD

R
A

ILR
O

A
D

R-1

mg/L

RES-3

mg/L

RES-4

mg/L

RES-1

mg/L

RES-2

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

mg/L

R-15

mg/L

RES-6 OUTLET

mg/L

R-13

mg/L

R-11

mg/L

R-16

R-2

R-5

OC-77

mg/L

MPR

mg/L

mg/L

R-17

RES-5

mg/L0.0040.003 0.004 0.006

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         //         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /

/         /
/         /

0.000 0.004 0.007

0.003 0.005 0.007

0.001 0.006 0.013

0.003 0.006 0.013

0.004 0.005 0.007

0.001 0.004 0.006

0.040 0.046 0.057

0.056 0.081 0.115

0.015 0.020 0.028

0.005 0.007 0.009

0.002 0.005 0.008

0.003 0.004 0.004

0.005 0.009 0.014
0.070 0.095 0.130

RD

LOS ALISOS BLVD

mg/L

BAKER (MNWD)

0.002 0.004 0.007/         /

NITRITE  MONITORING

DATA LEGEND
SAMPLE POINT
MIN / AVG / MAX

mg/L

ACTION  LEVEL
0.03
mg/L
MCL
1.0

mg/L

January 2020

GRAVITY
570

SHENANDOAH
894

CHERRY
770-815

LOW 1
484

LOW 2
465

LOW 3
409

SPARTAN
620-710

REDUCED HIGH
537

HIGH
645-720

MID
630

ULTRA HIGH
800-920

R-6
620

PRESSURE ZONE LEGEND



Wednesday, February 19, 2020

Weekly Water Quality System Status
Generated On:2/19/2020 12:20:56 PM

THE METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA No violations of State or Federal regulations were recorded during the current period.

0.06^

100^
260^

22~

1.9^
5.4**

0.05
51
420
15~
3.7*

1.9**

2.0**

1.2*

32~

328

74
0.04

0.05

74
329

18~

2.1*

2.3**

0.05

100
235
18~

3.4*

2.4**

1.1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0
0

0

ND
ND

573
ND

260
ND

2

283

3

ND

313

3

221

ND

4
251

ND

ND

1.6

OOS OOS

0.005

OOS

2.51

WATER QUALITY INFORMATION LINE: (800) 354-4420
VISIT MWD ON THE WEB AT http://www.mwdh2o.com

Bromate values are from sample date 2/10/2020.

NOTES AND COMMENTS

**Bromate maximum contaminant level is an RAA of 10 µg/L.

~THM values are from sample dates 1/28/2020 (Diemer, Skinner, Mills) and 2/4/2020 (Jensen, Weymouth).

^The Jensen plant is scheduled to be out of service from February 18 to 22, 2020.

MWD water quality goals meet or exceed all State and Federal regulations.

TOT. Cl  < 1.8 (mg/L)

TOT. Cl  < 1.8 (mg/L)

TOT. Cl  < 1.8 (mg/L)

CASTAIC LAKE
(JENSEN INF)

2

2

2

Tiers 2A & 3B

Tiers 8 & 9

Tiers 3 & 4

Twr. 2

Tier 4

Lwr. Twr.
OOS OOS OOS

2-MIB (ng/L)

(µg/L)



43%

50%

WY

CO

UT

AZ
NM

This report is produced by the Water Resource Management Group and contains information from various federal, state, and local agencies. 

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California  cannot guarantee the accuracy or completeness of this information. 

Readers should refer to the relevant state, federal, and local agencies for additional or for the most up to date water supply information. 

Reservoirs, lakes, aqueducts, maps, watersheds, and all other visual representations on this report are not drawn to scale.

http://www.mwdh2o.com/WSCR

This report is best printed double sided on legal size paper (8.5" x 14") and folded in quarters. Questions? Email mferreira@mwdh2o.com

1.8

1.1 1.0

1.7

2.4

2.7

2.3

1.2 0.9
1.3

2.5 2.5

3.1

0

1

2

3

4

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Calendar Year

MWD Storage Reserve Levels

Potential Storage Balance

Storage Balance

Emergency Storage

250

350

450

550

650

750

850

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Diamond Valley Lake Storage

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Lake Shasta Reservoir Storage

2018-2019 2019-2020

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

W
a

te
r 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

(i
n

)

Southern Sierra Snowpack

2018-2019 2019-2020 Normal

98%

76%

Statewide

60%

2020 SWP Allocation

286,725 AF

15% of Table A

Flip Over for CRA Data Turn page for more SWP Data

2.24 MAF
OROVILLE

237 TAF
CASTAIC

796 TAF

DVL

TOT:  1.54 MAF
SAN LUIS

SWP:  962 TAF

63%

73%

Average EOM 

%

Capacity

Current Storage 

(% Capacity)

%

As of: 02/09/2020

Turn page for more CRA Data                         Flip Over for SWP Data 

12.2 MAF
POWELL

11.3 MAF

MEAD

1095.09 FT

43%

50%

Upper
Colorado River 

Basin

117%

2020 Colorado River 

988,000 AF

79% of full CRA

0

10

20

30

96%

12.0"

426 TAF more in 

storage than this 

time last year

9.8 in.     

56% of 

normal

No Data

Less than 50

50 - 80

81 - 120

121 - 150

Greater than 150

Snow Water Equivalent

(% of Normal)

Snowpack
% of Normal

0
15
30
45
60
75
90

59%

WY Avg

8 STA: 17.8"

0

15

30

45

60

75

50%

WY Avg

5 STA: 11.1"

0

6

12

18

94%

WY Avg 

LA: 7.3"

0

6

12

18

127%

WY Avg

SD: 7.2"

Record Low: 587 TAF (08/01/1977)

Record Low

810 TAF

325 TAF

2.04 MAF

3.5 MAF

24.3 MAF

26.1 MAF

% Normal  

WY to Date

WY Avg

%

Rainfall to Date (in)

Capacity: 4.55 MAF

Capacity: 810 TAF

Does not include storage 

withdrawals 

120%

120% 123%

128%

120%

106%

107%

138%
107%

108%

100%

Southern 
Sierra
56%

Northern 
Sierra

64%

Water Supply Conditions 

Report

Water Supply Conditions 

Report

As of: 02/09/2020

93 TAF more in 

storage than this 

time last year

Highlights

 Precipitation at the 8-Station is at 59%  of normal

 Snow in the Northern Sierra is at 64% of normal

 Precipitation and snow in the Upper Colorado River Basin are 

respectively at  96% and 117% of normal

Total Capacity 810 TAF



Colorado River Resources As of: 02/09/2020

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

W
a

te
r 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

(i
n

)

Northern Sierra Snowpack

2018-2019 2019-2020 Normal

3%

45%

106%

53%

1%

0

4

8

12

16

20

24

P
re

c
ip

it
a

ti
o

n
 (

in
)

8 Station Index Precip

Average Monthly Precip Actual Precip to Date

0

5

10

15

20

25

W
a

te
r 

C
o

n
te

n
t 

(i
n

)

Upper Colorado Basin Snowpack

2018-2019 2019-2020 Normal

0.8

1.3

1.8

2.3

2.8

3.3

3.8

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Oroville Reservoir Storage

2018-2019 2019-2020

Enhanced Flood Pool (Wet Index) Original Flood Boundaries

Record Low: 882 TAF (9/7/1977)

0.0

0.3

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.5

1.8

2.1

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

San Luis Reservoir Storage

Total storage 2019-2020 SWP storage 2019-2020

Total storage 2018-2019

SWP storage 2018-2019

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Lake Powell Storage

8

10

12

14

16

18

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Lake Mead Storage

Surplus

Shortage Trigger

0%

69%

103%

18% 0%
0

4

8

12

16

20

P
re

c
ip

it
a

ti
o

n
 (

in
)

5 Station Index Precip

Average Monthly Precip Actual Precip to Date

68%

89%

113%
94%

44%

0

2

4

6

P
re

c
ip

it
a

ti
o

n
 (

in
)

Average Monthly Precip Actual Precip to Date

Upper Colorado Basin Precip

Lake Mead Shortage/Surplus Outlook

Likelihood based on results from the August 2019 CRSS model run. Includes DCP 
Contributions. (Revised December 2019).

17.8 in.  

Water Year 

to Date

2.70 MAF more in 

storage than this 

time last year

685 TAF more in 

storage than this 

time last year

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Water Year

Sacramento River Runoff

0

3

5

8

10

13

15

18

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Water Year

Powell Unregulated Inflow

Long Term 

Average

Long Term 

Average

Colorado River Resources As of: 02/09/2020

11.1 in.   

Water Year 

to Date

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Shortage 0% 4% 24% 33% 37%

Surplus 0% 0% 7% 12% 19%
17 TAF less in SWP 

storage than this 

time last year

Other SWP Contract Supplies for 2020 (AF)

Article 21 TBD

Carryover TBD

Article 14b TBD

12.0 in.   

Water Year 

to Date

806 TAF more in 

storage than this 

time last year

12.3 in     

117% of 

normal

13.8 in.      

64% of 

normal

2020 Colorado River Ag Use 

2.75

2.85

2.95

3.05

3.15

J F M A M J J A S O N D

M
ill

io
n

 A
c

re
-F

e
e

t

Date of Forecast

IID/CVWD (QSA Priority 3a)

WY 2020

of normal

Capacity: 3.5 MAF Capacity: 24.3 MAF

Capacity: 26.1 MAF
Capacity: 2.04 MAF

80%

State Water Project Resources
As of: 02/09/2020

WY 2020              

of normal 65%

SWP Capacity 1.06 MAF

Total Capacity 2.04 MAF

(Forecast)(Forecast)

400

420

440

460

480

J F M A M J J A S O N D

Th
o

u
sa

n
d

  
A

c
re

-F
e

e
t

Date of Forecast

PVID/Yuma (QSA Priority 1 & 2)

R
e

la
tiv

e
 to

  Q
S
A

 Th
re

sh
o

ld

+20

0

-20

+40

+60

Forecast (as of February 2020)Forecast (as of February 2020)

Chart Pending



Jan.20

Flow, Units G.C. Irrigation Main Distribution WRP Irrigation/Utility Total, Production

Avg. Daily Q MGD 0.066 0.124 0.088 0.278

Total Q MG 2.059 3.833 2.720 8.612

Total Acre Feet 6.319 11.763 8.347 26.429

*No Potable Water Was Used to Supplement the Recycled Water Total Production this Month.

Total Recycled Water Production

(WRP) Tertiary Treatment Plant



ETWD WATER SAVINGS COMPARED TO 2013

22%
24%

31%

24% 23%

27%

23%

9%

36% 36%

29%
27%

24%

28%
30%

26%

23%

28%

34%

32%

26%

23%23%

26%

16%

20%

29%

10%

20%

11%

29%

23%

28%

22%

17%

20%

25%

17%

23%

25%

23%

38%

43%

24%

46%

25%

18%

23%
25%

11%

19%

34%

14%

24%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

‐9% ‐5%



ETWD WATER SAVINGS COMPARED TO 2013

19%18%

25%

17%18%

24%
21%

3%

31%
28%

18%
14%

10%
14%

18%
16%15%

25%

34%
31%

18%

10% 9%
14%

2%
6%

17% 11%

4%

25%

10%

17%

10%

2%
5%

12%
8%

13%

23%
20%

37%
40%

12%

39%

15%

4%
8%

12%11%

32%

11%
15%

3% 6%

6%

7% 5%

4%

3%

7%

5%
9%

11%

12%

14%

13%

12%

10%
9%

3%

1%
1%

8%

13%14%

12%

15%

14%

12%

13%

9%

7%

4%

12%

10%

12%

15%

15%

12%

9%

10%

2%

3%

1%

3%

12%

7%

10%

14%

15%

13%

9%

2%

2%

9%

0%
5%

10%
15%
20%
25%
30%
35%
40%
45%
50%

Potable Water Recycled Water

‐22%

10% 13%
‐18%

14%

‐3%



ETWD WATER SAVINGS COMPARED TO 2013

21%
17%

6%

17%

4%
8%

12% 11%

32%

11%
15%

7%
10%

12%

9%

14%

15%
13%

9%

2%

2%

9%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

2015‐16 2016‐17 2017‐18 2018‐19 Jul‐19 Aug‐19 Sept‐19 Oct‐19 Nov‐19 Dec‐19 Jan‐20 TOTAL
SAVINGS

Potable Water Recycled Water

14%

‐3%



 
 
 
 

 

DATE: February 7, 2020 

TO: Member Agencies – MWDOC Division Five 

FROM:  Sat Tamaribuchi, Director – Division Five 

SUBJECT: Monthly Water Usage Data, Tier 2 Projection & Water Supply Information 

 
The attached figures show the recent trend of water consumption in Orange County (OC), 
an estimate of Imported Water Sales for MWDOC, and selected water supply information.   
 

 OC Water Usage, Monthly by Supply   OCWD Groundwater was the main supply 

in December.     

 OC Water Usage, Monthly, Comparison to Previous Years    Water usage in 
December 2019 was below average compared to the last 5 years.  We are 
projecting a slight increase in overall water usage compared to FY 2018-19.  It has 
been 34 months since all mandatory water restrictions were lifted by the California 
State Water Resources Control Board.  

 Historical OC Water Consumption Orange County M & I water consumption is 
estimated to be 524,000 AF in FY 2019-20 (this includes ~15 TAF of agricultural 

usage and non-retail water agency usage). This is about 8,000 AF more than FY 

2018-19 and is about 17,000 AF less than FY 2017-18. Water usage per person is 

projected to be slightly higher in FY 2019-20 for Orange County at 143 gallons per 

day (This includes recycled water).  Although OC population has increased 20% 
over the past two decades, water usage has not increased, on average.   A long-
term decrease in per-capita water usage is attributed mostly to Water Use Efficiency 
(water conservation) efforts.  O.C. Water Usage for the last four Fiscal Years is 

the lowest since the 1982-83 Fiscal Year (FY 1982-83 was the third wettest year 
on record).   

 
Water Supply Information Includes data on Rainfall in OC; the OCWD Basin overdraft; 
Northern California and Colorado River Basin hydrologic data; the State Water Project 
(SWP) Allocation, and regional storage volumes.  The data have implications for the 
magnitude of supplies from the three watersheds that are the principal sources of water for 
OC.  Note that a hydrologic year is Oct. 1st through Sept. 30th. 
 

 Orange County’s accumulated precipitation through early February was average for 

this period.  Water year to date rainfall in Orange County is 6.75 inches, which is 

99% of normal.   

 Memorandum 



  

 Northern California accumulated precipitation through early February was 64% of 

normal for this period. Water Year 2019 was 137% of normal while water year 

2018 was 82% of normal. The Northern California snowpack was 73% of normal 

as of February 3rd. As of late January, 0.00% of California is experiencing 

moderate drought conditions while 34.28% of the state is experiencing abnormally 
dry conditions. The State Water Project Contractors Table A Allocation was 
increased to 15% in January 2020.  
 

 Colorado River Basin accumulated precipitation through early February was 92% of 

normal for this period.  The Upper Colorado Basin snowpack was 104% of 

normal as of February 3rd.  Lake Mead and Lake Powell combined have about 

68% of their average storage volume for this time of year and are at 46.8% of 

their total capacity. If Lake Mead’s level falls below a “trigger” limit 1,075 ft. at 

the end of a calendar year, then a shortage will be declared by the US Bureau of 
Reclamation (USBR), impacting Colorado River water deliveries to the Lower Basin 
states. As of late December, Lake Mead levels were 19.79’ above the “trigger” 

limit.  The USBR predicts that the start of 2020 will not hit the “trigger” level but 

there is a 4% chance that the trigger level will be hit in 2021 and a 24% chance 

in 2022. 
 

 
 
 
 

 



6,000        IRWD&Serrano for IL 

6,000       

[1]  

[2]  GW for consumptive use only.  Excludes In-Lieu water deliveries and  CUP water extraction that are counted with Import.  BPP in FY '19-20 is 77%.
[3]  
[4]  Total water usage includes IRWD groundwater agricultural use and usage by non-retail water agencies.

Imported water for consumptive use.  Includes "In-Lieu" deliveries and CUP water extraction.  Excludes "Direct Replenishment" deliveries of spreading water and deliveries into 
Irvine Lake.

MWDOC's estimate of monthly demand is based on the projected  5 Year historical retail water demand and historical monthly demand patterns.

0.0

2.0

4.0

6.0

8.0

10.0

12.0

14.00

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

Ju
l-1

9

A
ug

-1
9

S
ep

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
o

v-
19

D
e

c-
19

Ja
n-

20

F
eb

-2
0

M
ar

-2
0

A
p

r-
2

0

M
a

y-
2

0

Ju
n-

20

R
a

in
fa

ll 
(I

n
ch

e
s)

A
C

R
E

-F
E

E
T

Fig. 1  OC Water Usage, Monthly by Supply
with projection to end of fiscal year

Surface Water Non-OCWD Groundwater
Recycled (Non Potable) Import [1]
projected [3] OCWD Basin [2]
Rainfall



6,000        IRWD&Serrano for IL 

6,000       

[1]  Sum of Imported water for consumptive use (includes "In-Lieu" deliveries;  excludes "Direct Replenishment "and "Barrier Replenishment") and Local water for consumptive use 
(includes recycled and non-potable water and excludes GWRS production)  Recent months numbers include some estimation.

50

55

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000
Ju

l-1
9

A
ug

-1
9

S
ep

-1
9

O
ct

-1
9

N
o

v-
19

D
e

c-
19

Ja
n-

20

F
eb

-2
0

M
ar

-2
0

A
p

r-
2

0

M
a

y-
2

0

Ju
n-

20

A
ve

ra
g

e
 H

ig
h

 T
e

m
p

e
ra

tu
re

 (
F

)

A
C

R
E

-F
E

E
T

Fig. 1B  OC Water Usage, Monthly by Supply
with projection to end of fiscal year

Surface Water Non-OCWD Groundwater
Recycled (Non Potable) Import [1]
OCWD Basin [2] projected [3]Projected FY 17‐18

 ‐

 100,000

 200,000

 300,000

 400,000

 500,000

 600,000

 700,000

'69
‐70

'71
‐72

'73
‐74

'75
‐76

'77
‐78

'79
‐80

'81
‐82

'83
‐84

'85
‐86

'87
‐88

'89
‐90

'91
‐92

'93
‐94

'95
‐96

'97
‐98

'99
‐00

'01
‐02

'03
‐04

'05
‐06

'07
‐08

'09
‐10

 11
‐12

 13
‐14

 15
‐16

 17
‐18

 19
‐20

 21
‐22

 23
‐24

 25
‐26

 27
‐28

 29
‐30

 31
‐32

 33
‐34

 35
‐36

 37
‐38

 39
‐40

O
.C
. A

nn
ua
l W

at
er
 U
sa
ge
 (A

F)

Fiscal Year

Fig. 1B O.C. Historical Water Usage

Hi, Avg and Low 
from O.C. Water 
Reliability Study

 -

 10,000

 20,000

 30,000

 40,000

 50,000

 60,000

 70,000

Ju
l

A
ug

S
ep O
ct

N
o

v

D
e

c

Ja
n

F
eb

M
ar

A
pr

M
ay Ju
n

A
C

R
E

-F
E

E
T

Fig. 2  OC Monthly Water Usage [1]:  Comparison to Last 4 Fiscal
Years

FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20

December 2019

0

100,000

200,000

300,000

400,000

500,000

600,000

700,000

A
C

R
E

-F
E

E
T

YTD Totals

Partial Year 
Subtotals



Accumulated Precipitation
for the Oct.‐Sep.  water year, early February 2020

* The date of maximum snowpack accumulation (April 1st in Northern Calif. ,  April 15th in the 
Upper Colorado Basin) is used for year to year comparison.  

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

ORANGE 
COUNTY 

(SANTA ANA)

RIVERSIDE 
(AIRPORT)

N. SIERRAS 8‐
STATION 
INDEX

NORTHERN 
CALIF. 

SNOWPACK

UPPER BASIN 
COLORADO 
PRECIP.

UPPER BASIN 
COLORADO 
SNOWPACK

99% 75%
64% 73%

92%
104%

In
ch
es

This Year to date Average to date Average End of Year

CA Snowpack 
on 2/3/2020

Colorado
Snowpack

on
2/3/2020

% = Percent of Average to Date



prepared by the Municipal Water District of Orange County
*Number are Subuject to Change

0

5

10

15

20

25

50% 76%M
ill
io
n 
 A
cr
e‐
Fe
et

Lake Powell

0.0
0.5
1.0
1.5
2.0
2.5

75% 94%

M
ill
io
n 
 A
cr
e‐
Fe
et

San Luis Resv.

0.0
0.5
1.0 98%

Diamond Valley

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

77%
113%

M
ill
io
n 
 A
cr
e‐
Fe
et

Lake Shasta

0.0
1.0
2.0
3.0
4.0

63% 95%

M
ill
io
n 
 A
cr
e‐
Fe
et

Lake Oroville

State Water Project, Colorado River, and MWD Reservoir Storage  
as of February 2, 2020

0

5

10

15

20

25

44% 61%M
ill
io
n 
 A
cr
e‐
Fe
et

Lake Mead

% of Capacity 
% of Historical Avg. 

0.0
0.5
1.0 79%
Lake Mathews



Final 2017:  ???

10%
10%

15%
30%

45%

60% 60% 60%

20%
20%

45%

60%

60%

85% 85% 85%

15%
15%

15%
20% 20%

30%
35% 35%

10%

10%
15%

35%

70% 70% 70%
75%

10% 10%
15%

Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun.

SWP TABLE A ALLOCATION
FOR STATE WATER PROJECT CONTRACTORS

Water Year 2016 Water Year 2017 Water Year 2018 Water Year 2019 Water Year 2020

Final  2016:   60%
1.15 MAF to MWD

Final  2017:   85%
1.62 MAF to MWD

Final 2018:  35%
0.67 MAF to MWD

Final 2020:  ???

Final 2019: 75%
1.43 MAF to MWD



Jul‐18 Aug‐18 Sep‐18 Oct‐18 Nov‐18 Dec‐18 Jan‐19 Feb‐19 Mar‐19 Apr‐19 May‐19 Jun‐19
AO (AF) 285,494     296,106     308,748     312,758     312,782     305,367     289,860     267,879     251,876     243,604     234,048     236,005    

AO w/CUP removed (AF) 285,494     296,106     308,748     312,758     312,782     305,367     289,860     267,879     251,876     243,604     234,048     236,005    
Jul‐19 Aug‐19 Sep‐19 Oct‐19 Nov‐19 Dec‐19 Jan‐20 Feb‐20 Mar‐20 Apr‐20 May‐20 Jun‐20

AO (AF) 244,057     256,239     258,445     261,464     261,645     248,909    
AO w/CUP removed (AF) 244,057     256,239     258,446     261,464     261,645     248,909    

* Source ~ OCWD Monthly Board of Directors Packet

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

450,000

500,000

550,000 Jul‐13
Sep‐13
N
ov‐13

Jan‐14
M
ar‐14

M
ay‐14

Jul‐14
Sep‐14
N
ov‐14

Jan‐15
M
ar‐15

M
ay‐15

Jul‐15
Sep‐15
N
ov‐15

Jan‐16
M
ar‐16

M
ay‐16

Jul‐16
Sep‐16
N
ov‐16

Jan‐17
M
ar‐17

M
ay‐17

Jul‐17
Sep‐17
N
ov‐17

Jan‐18
M
ar‐18

M
ay‐18

Jul‐18
Sep‐18
N
ov‐18

Jan‐ 19
M
ar‐19

M
ay‐19

Jul‐19
Sep‐19
N
ov‐19

Ac
re
 F
ee
t

Accumulated Overdraft of the OCWD Groundwater Basin as of December 2019

Accumulated Overdraft (AO) AO with CUP Removed
Threshold for Mitigation Against Increasing AO Bottom of Basin Operating Range

Full

Recommended Target Overdraft 

Source of data = OCWD monthly Water Resources Report in Board meeting packet



49%

172%

43%

147%

98%

5%24%

48%

76%

173%

127%

88%

107%

48%

144%

119%
103%

84%
98%

Average = 28 Inches

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2020201920182017201620152014201320122011201020092008200720062005200420032002

Sn
ow

 W
at
er
 E
qu

iv
al
en

t (
In
ch
es
)

Historical Northern California April 1st Peak Snow Water Equivalent



61%

128%

74%

108%

79%

54%

105%

78%

53%

132%

90%

112%

126%

78%

112%
120%

84%85%

51%

Average = 20 Inches

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

2020201920182017201620152014201320122011201020092008200720062005200420032002

Sn
ow

 W
at
er
 E
qu

iv
al
en

t (
In
ch
es
)

Historical Colorado Basin April 15th Peak Snow Water Equivalent



Spillway Elevation = 3,715 ft

3,530

3,555

3,580

3,605

3,630

3,655

3,680

3,705

El
ev
at
io
n 
(F
t)

Lake Powell Levels:  Historical and Projected
projection per USBR 24‐Month Study

Historical Projected



Shortage Trigger = 1,075 ft

Spillway Elevation = 1,221 ft

Surplus Trigger = 1,145 ft

1,030

1,055

1,080

1,105

1,130

1,155

1,180

1,205

1,230

El
ev
at
io
n 
(F
t)

Lake Mead Levels:  Historical and Projected
projection per USBR 24‐Month Study

Historical Projected



Historic Peak July 1983 @ 1,225 Feet

Historical Low (Since Filled) June 2016 
@ 1,071 Feet

Shortage Trigger 1,075 Feet

Dead Pool 895 Feet

675

725

775

825

875

925

975

1,025

1,075

1,125

1,175

1,225

El
ev
at
io
n 
Ab

ov
e 
Se
a 
Le
ve
l (
Fe
et
)

Lake Mead Historical Water Elevation Level

Hoover Dam

Intake Tower



EL TORO WATER DISTRICT
COLLECTION SYSTEM ACTIVITY REPORT

MONTH ENDING: 2020
NUMBER

0

FOOTAGE
CHEMICAL

USED
CHEMICAL

COST COMMENTS:

0

FOOTAGE

0

FOOTAGE

32,298

25,962
58,260

58,260

FOOTAGE

6,001

6,001

3
Number

WATER TANK FILLS  54,000

Wet Wells
Flow Meter/Sampling

Other
TOTAL

MATHIS,WESTLINE,FREEWAY

New World
Private System

Outside Laguna Woods Village
Laguna Woods Village

COMBINED TOTALS:

TV INSPECTIONS   COMMENTS:

ETWD TOTALS:
SANTA MARGARITA TOTALS:

Private System
Hot Spots

Laguna Woods Village
New World

HYDRO-CLEANING   COMMENTS:
Outside Laguna Woods Village

New World
TOTAL

Outside Laguna Woods Village
Laguna Woods Village

Other
TOTAL

ROOT CUTTING

New World

Other:  WRP
TOTAL

  COMMENTS:

New World

ROOT FOAMING
Outside Laguna Woods Village
Laguna Woods Village

January
ODOR COMPLAINTS LOCATION, ORIGIN, ACTION: 
Outside Laguna Woods Village

Private System

Outside Laguna Woods Village
Laguna Woods Village



The quality and safety of drinking water in the U.S. is regulated by the federal government through the U.S.

Environmental Protection agency (USEPA).  In California, those standards are enforced by the California

Department of Public Health (CDPH).  Water Quality parameters must meet both primary and secondary

water quality standards as established by the CDPH.

PRIMARY STANDARDS -  are intended to protect public health against substances in the

water that may be harmful to humans if consumed for long periods of time.

SECONDARY STANDARDS -  are to ensure esthetic qualities of water such as taste, odor

or clarity.  Rather than its healthfulness, these standards govern substances that may

influence consumer acceptance of water.

Given that 100% of ETWD's potable water resource is fully treated and delivered by Metropolitan Water 

District of southern California (MWDSC) through an enclosed and protected conveyance system, the majority

of the State and federal primary and secondary source water quality monitoring requirements are performed

by MWDSC.  The District's physical responsibility for water quality monitoring is associated with the distribution

system.  To monitor the distribution system water quality the District utilizes both in house and outside lab

services.  Routine distribution analysis conforming to CDPH requirements is conducted for the following

constituents:

1)  Microbiological - The number of microbiological samples and the frequency of analysis during the month

is based on the population and/or service connections served.  Utilizing a population of

50,000, the CDPH requires that 20 "representative" samples be collected and analyzed

for coliform bacteria.  The objective is to maintain water quality that is absent of coliform

bacteria which is a general indicator for the existence of fecal coliform.

2)  Chlorine  - The chlorine residual monitoring is performed in conjunction with the microbiological 

     Residual monitoring.  The CDPH requirement for treated surface water mandates that the distri-

bution system maintain a "detectable" residual.  The number of and frequency of sampling

is determined utilizing the same formula applied to microbiological requirements.  At a 

minimum, we are obligated to collect and analyze for chlorine residual each time we collect

the representative microbiological samples.  Per EPA Disinfectants & Disinfection Byproduct 

Rule (D/DBP), which was effective January 2002, requires quarterly reporting for all sampling.

3) TTHM & HAA5 The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) published the Stage 2 Disinfectants and

Stage 2 DBPR Disinfection Byproducts Rule (Stage 2 DBPR) on January 4, 2006. The Stage 2 DBPR builds

Compliance on existing regulations by requiring water systems to meet disinfection byproduct (DBP)*

maximum contaminant levels (MCLs) at each monitoring site in the distribution system to

better protect public health.  The Stage 2 DBP rule is intended to reduce potential cancer and

reproductive and developmental health risks from disinfection byproducts (DBPs) in drinking

water, which form when disinfectants are used to control microbial pathogens.

This final rule strengthens public health protection for customers of systems that deliver

disinfected water by requiring such systems to meet maximum contaminant levels as an  

average at each compliance monitoring location (instead of as a system-wide average as in

previous rules) for two groups of DBPs, trihalomethanes (TTHM) and five haloacetic acids (HAA5).

The rule targets systems with the greatest risk and builds incrementally on existing rules.

This regulation will reduce DBP exposure and related potential health risks and provide more

equitable public health protection.  The Stage 2 DBPR is being released simultaneously with the 

Long Term 2 Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule to address concerns about risk tradeoffs 

between pathogens and DBPs. 

         EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

          MONTHLY POTABLE WATER QUALITY REPORT



The mandatory requirement under the Stage 2 DBP rule, known as an Initial Distribution System 

Evaluation (IDSE) was completed by ETWD in 2008 and a Stage 2 monitoring plan has been 

approved by CDPH.  Full Stage 2 compliance begins in 2012.  The IDSE identified the locations

with high disinfection byproduct concentrations.  These locations will then be used by the  

District as the 8 sampling sites for Stage 2 DBP rule compliance monitoring.  Compliance with 

the maximum contaminant levels for two groups of disinfection byproducts (TTHM and HAA5) 

will be calculated for each monitoring location in the distribution system.  This approach, 

referred to as the locational running annual average (LRAA), differs from current requirements,  

which determine compliance by calculating the running annual average of samples from all   

monitoring locations across the system.  The Stage 2 DBP rule also requires each system to 

determine if they have exceeded an operational evaluation level, which is identified using their 

compliance monitoring results. The operational evaluation level provides an early warning of  

possible future MCL violations, which allows the system to take proactive steps to remain in  

compliance.  A system that exceeds an operational evaluation level is required to review their 

operational practices and submit a report to the state that identifies actions that may be taken  

to mitigate future high DBP levels, particularly those that may jeopardize their compliance with 

the DBP MCLs.

4)  Physical  - Physical Quality analysis is associated with the esthetic qualities of the finished water.

     Quality Primarily, we are performing analysis for taste, odor and Turbidity (Clarity).  In accordance

with CDPH requirements, the District collects a minimum of 15 samples per month.

5)  Nitrites  - Although the chloramine disinfection process has been effective in controlling TTHM levels,

it requires increased monitoring and adjustment as a result of its susceptibility to the 

Nitrification process.  Nitrification is a biological process caused by naturally occurring

ammonia oxidizing bacteria.  Nitrification in chloraminated drinking water can have various

adverse impacts on water quality, the most serious of which is the loss of total chlorine

residual which is required by the CDPH and the subsequent potential to increase bacteria-

iological activity within the finished or treated water system.  MWD has developed an 

effective nitrification monitoring and prevention program which ETWD staff have adopted

and incorporated into the District's daily water quality monitoring and action plan.  The

number and frequency of this type of monitoring is not currently regulated by CDPH.  

Staff monitor the level of nitrites in source water, reservoirs and the distribution system

daily and weekly in conjunction with the microbiological and chlorine sampling program.

A nitrite level of between 0.015 and 0.030 would signal an alert.  > 0.030 would require 

action such as the addition of chlorine to produce a chloramine residual.

EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

MONTHLY POTABLE WATER QUALITY ANALYSIS

MONTH: January  YEAR :  2020

CONSTITUENT                INSIDE LAB            OUTSIDE LAB

ANALYSIS MCL NO.    RESULTS NO.   RESULTS

1  Microbiological    Pres/Absence 148(A) Pres/Absence Average

2  Chlorine (ppm)  Detectable Resid 209 Average =  1.38 ppm 

3  TTHM (ppb)       (Stage 2)  80 ppb  N/A

3  HAA5   (ppb)       (Stage 2) 60 ppb  N/A

4  Physical Quality: RANGE

Turbidity (ppm) 5 NTU 20  0.01 to 0.05

Odor 3 Units 20 ND<1

Color 15 Units 20 ND<5

Temperature No standard 20 55.0°F To 64.0°F

5 Nitrite (Alert/Action level)ppm  0.015 to 0.030 ppm 75  0.000 to 0.013 Res.

To ensure water quality compliance, the District annually performs approximately 8,750 water quality 

analytical evaluations of the samples collected from the distribution system.



Abbreviations:

RES Indicates that the nitrification was isolated to a reservoir and treated

ND None detected

Pres/Absence Presence (P) or Absence (A) related to a positive or negative bacteriological result

MCL Maximum Contaminant Level

NTU Nephelometric Turbidity Units, a measure of the suspended material in the water

ppm Parts per million

ppb Parts per billion

Total Coliform No more than 5% of the monthly samples may be total coliform-positive

N/A Not available



ND = New Development TI = Tenant Improvement  

WILL SERVE REQUEST STATUS REPORT 
(January 2020) 

All projects subject to previously issued Will Serve Letters are either Complete or the Will Serve Letter has Expired 

 (Will Serve Letters Expire One Year from Date of Issuance) 

 

 
Date 

Requested 

 
Applicant 

 
Project Description 

 
Type 

 
Location 

 
Status 

 
Date 

Issued 

3/8/19 Target Corporation Target Mission Viejo Redevelopment ND 24500 Alicia Pkwy. Issued 7/3/19 

8/16/19 Burgertown USA Burgertown Sewer Connection TI 24418 Muirlands Issued 11/20/19 

8/29/19 Merlone Geier Partners Hunter Court Utility Relocations TI 24322 Rockfield Blvd Issued 12/9/19 

11/15/19 Kiddie Academy New Daycare at previous Restaurant TI 25521 Muirlands Blvd Issued 1/7/20 

       

       

       



EL TORO WATER DISTRICT

UNAUTHORIZED DISCHARGE SUMMARY

 YEAR OF 2020

PREVIOUS 

MAINTENANCE

SPILL VOLUME (PUBLIC)                

Gallons

SPILL VOLUME (PRIVATE)                        

Gallons

CLEANING TV CONTAINED SPILLED CONTAINED SPILLED

January 23, 2020 Private PLSD 23645 El Toro Rd.
Debris in 

private lateral

No longer spilling when 

ETWD staff arrived. Shut 

water service off to prevent 

additional discharge until 

line was clear

N/A N/A
Spoke to Property 

Management Company
N/A Parking Lot N/A N/A 5 5

Communicated with City 

of Lake Forest, Water 

Quality Inspector, and 

Orange County 

Environmental Health

LEGEND 0 0 5 5

S.DC  = San Diego Creek RES. =  Residential                               

S.D.    =  Storm Drain C.      =  Commercial     

A.C.   =  Aliso Creek        S.B.   =  Siphon

G.B.   =  Grease Blockage P.F.   =  Power Failure

POST-INCIDENT PREVENTIVE 

MEASURES
RWQCB

DISCHARGED 

TO

REGULATORY NOTIFICATION 

AND RESPONSE

IMMEDIATE CORRECTIVE 

MEASURES
 REASONLOCATIONDATE

SPILL 

TYPE

PUBLIC / 

PRIVATE 

R.S.  =  Rocks

C.W.D. = Calcium Water Deposits

B.P,  =  Broken Pipe

U.W.  =  Untreated  Water



BILLING PERIOD
PEAK 

REDUCTION
PEAK 

INCURRED
BILL      

SAVINGS
NET       

SAVINGS

07/15/2019 ‐ 08/13/2019 67 kW 1,032 kW $3,703.97 $2,113.97
08/13/2019 ‐ 09/12/2019 9 kW 1,070 kW $4,593.03 $3,003.03
09/12/2019 ‐ 10/11/2019 ‐45 kW 988 kW $1,646.72 $56.72
10/11/2019 ‐ 11/13/2019 ‐45 kW 949 kW ($471.94) ($2,061.94)
11/13/2019 ‐ 12/13/2019 28 kW 834 kW $178.21 ($1,411.79)
12/13/2019 ‐ 01/14/2020 ‐225 kW 904 kW ($2,136.00) ($3,726.00)
01/14/2020 ‐ 02/12/2020 91 kW 641 kW $989.24 ($600.76)

TOTAL $8,503.23 ($2,626.77)

WRP BATTERY STORAGE SYSTEM

MONTHLY REPORT

JANUARY, 2020















































ETWD Public Education and Outreach Report 
February 27, 2020 
 

The following provides an update on the education and outreach ETWD is developing or has 

completed. 
 

Drought Log  

Customer Service continues to update the drought response log.  This includes phone calls, 

walk-ins and emails regarding water waste complaints and ETWD’s permanent mandatory 

conservation measure inquiries.  There were no water waste complaints for the month of 

January. 

Messaging/Materials 

Bill Message 

The customer February/March bill message: Help make water conservation a California way 

of life.  Using a broom instead of hosing down your driveway, sidewalk or patio saves 8 – 18 

gallons of water per minute. 

Laguna Woods Village TV-6 

Director Freshley is scheduled for TV-6 on February 28th, 2020.  Topic is to be determined. 

Community Events/Outreach 

Women in Water Meeting 

ETWD hosted the February 21st, 2020 Women in Water Meeting at the District.  This group is 

an ad hoc group of water professionals in and around Orange County.  The February meeting 

focused on a roundtable discussion of all attenees and updates on their current projects to 

foster networking, collaboration and coordination.  Over 40 water professionals attended. 

OC Vote Center 

ETWD has partnered with the Orange County Registrar of Voters and be one of five vote 

centers located in Lake Forest for the upcoming primary election.  ETWD will be a 4-day vote 

center and is open to all residents in Orange County.  Attendees can either vote in person or 

drop off their ballot at the ETWD Vote Center during the following dates and times: 

Vote Center Dates Vote Center Hours 

Saturday, 02/29/20 8:00 am – 8:00 pm 

Sunday, 03/01/20 8:00 am – 8:00 pm 

Monday, 03/02/20 8:00 am – 8:00 pm 

Tuesday, 03/03/20 7:00 am – 8:00 pm 



ETWD’s 60th Anniversary 

ETWD will celebrate it’s 60th anniversary on August 12, 2020.  ETWD staff is working on a 

plan to celebrate the occasion.  Tentative plans are to hold an open house, tour and elected 

officials ceremony on a Saturday in August.  ETWD will also celebrate anniversary at the 

August CAG meeting. 

MWDOC Water Awareness Poster Contest 

MWDOC’s 2020 Water Awareness Poster Contest is open to Orange County students in 

grades K – 12.  Students are encouraged to submit hand-drawn posters that reflect the 

theme: Water is Life.  Entries are due April 3, 2020.  40 winners will be selected and one 

grand prize winner in 4 grade levels will receive and iPad Mini.  Teachers who submit their 

students’ artwork are entering into a drawing for a class pizza party.  All winners are invited to 

a special awards ceremony with Ricky-the-Raindrop at he Discovery Science Center. 

Water Education School Program 

MWDOC coordinates the water education school program and ETWD participates in the 

program as part of the choice program.  The program is broken down into three education 

programs: 

1. Shows that Teach 

a. Grades K -2  

b. Assembly-style; performance and role-play 

c. Topics covered: The journey of water, aqueducts and reservoirs, how water 

gets to the tap, water cycle, evaporation, states of water, aquifers, value of 

water, location of the Sierra Nevada Mountains and reasons to conserve water. 

d. ETWD targets 5 large assembly presentations for 20/21. 

2. Discovery Cube 

a. Grades 3 – 8 

b. Assembly style: student keypad response (3-6) 

i. Topics covered: climate, environment, ways to adapt local gardens to 

survive with less water, ecosystem, local water resources, water use 

efficiency, water supply and environmental factors that influence the 

growth of organisms in our local area. 

c. Classroom-style; water quality labs (7-8) 

i. Aiming to bridget the gap between the elementary and school and the 

high school programs. 

ii. Hands on water quality workshops – testing water quality at their school 

monitoring levels of dissolved oxygen and discuss chemically treated vs. 

tap water. Discuss water consumption and securing a reliable water 

supply. 

d. ETWD is targeting approximately 802 students for grades 3-6 and 807 students 

for grades 7-8. 



3. Bolsa Chica Conservancy 

a. Grades 9 – 12 

b. Each class recieves 3 classroom visits. 

c. 1st visit includes interactive water quality presentaiton 

d. 2nd visit includes the Windows to Our Wetlands (WOW) mobile learning center 

and water quality comparison lab 

e. 3rd visit includes students presenting findings on water quality testing. 

f. ETWD is targeting 1 high school, El Toro High. 

MWDOC actively engages with the teachers and requests surveys on all the programs.  A 

recent quote from an AP Environmental Science teacher at El Toro High School read as 

follows: “I liked it so much, I asked them back next year.  The watershed and water quality 

information is part of the AP Environmental Science curriculum and was very helpful to the 

students.” 

In 2018, SB 720 was adopted that directs educators to support environmental literacy and 

codifies EP&Cs.  As a result of that bill, MWDOC has been working to incorporate the 

California Environmental Literacy Initiative (CAELI) into the Water Education Program.  This 

new initiative includes discovering and understanding the interdependencies between 

humans nad natural systems – cause and effect, good/bad and neutral, utilize the 3 D NGSS 

learning (inquiry, critical thinking, problem-solving skills) and connecting students to an 

environment around them. This education program will steer away from memorizing 

definitions and procedures and just watching and reading about experiments.  The program 

will include the integration of science content with science and engineering practices, 

activities that include real-world situations that can be investigated and student reasoning and 

argumentation.   

MWDOC will be presenting the revised MWDOC education program goals in and OC roll out 

in April.  MWDOC will also provide formal training for MWDOC school program contractors, 

select OC teachers, and other OC community based organizations. Sherri will be attending 

the program roll out Lunch and Learn on April 16, 2020 from 12:30 pm – 5:00 p.m. at 

MWDOC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by: Sherri Seitz 2/21/20 



Contest Rules

WIN AN IPAD!

ALL Orange County students in grades K-12 are invited
to create posters that reflect the theme:                                         

WATER IS LIFE.

To: MWDOC 
18700 Ward Street 

Poster Contest

One grand prize winner per 
grade divisions: K-2 / 3-5 / 6-8 / 9-12

*All winning students, along with their parents
and teachers, will be invited to attend a special

awards ceremony at the Discovery Cube!
 

WATER AWARENESS

Q U E S T I O N S ?

Contact Traci Muldoon
tmuldoon@mwdoc.com

(714) 593-5004

MAIL OR DROP OFF 
ENTRIES TO:

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY PRESENTS

     ★ Student's Name
★ School Name

  ★ School District
     ★ Teacher's Name
    ★ Teacher's Email

★ Grade Level
     ★ Parent's Name
    ★ Parent's Email

      ★ Parent's Phone

PLEASE CLEARLY WRITE THE FOLLOWING 
INFORMATION ON THE BACK OF YOUR POSTER

Open to all Orange County students in grades K-12.
 
Submissions must reflect the student's own ability.
 
Posters must be drawn horizontally on 8.5 x 11 in.or
12 x 18 in. paper. Paper available upon request.
 
ORIGINAL ARTWORK ONLY. Posters submitted with
copyrighted characters or images (e.g. Mickey Mouse)
will not be accepted. Students are allowed to use the
Ricky Raindrop character in their artwork.
 
★ All posters will be the exclusive property of the Municipal
Water District of Orange County for reproduction or
promotional purposes, and may be published at mwdoc.com

Fountain Valley, CA 92708
Attn: Traci Muldoon 

Submit Artwork

D E A D L I N E :  A P R I L  3 ,  2 0 2 0  

Submit your students' artwork as a
batch to be entered in a drawing for a
class pizza party with Ricky Raindrop!

ATTENTION TEACHERS! 



  

 
EL TORO WATER DISTRICT  
CONSERVATION PROGRAM  

Monthly 
Status Report 

February 27, 2020 
 
 

REBATE PROGRAMS 
 
The following tables are the current device rebate amounts for MET, MWDOC and 
ETWD for the fiscal year 2019/20 from July 1st through June 30th. 
 

Select device purchases are eligible for rebates while devices meet eligibility 
requirements and while funding lasts.  The rebate process is completed online through 
www.ocwatersmart.com.  Customers without computer access can call 888-376-3314 to 
apply. 
 

1) Residential Rebate Program: 
 

Device MET 

Rebate 

MWDOC 

Grant 

ETWD 

Rebate 

Total Rebate 

(up to) 

High Efficiency Clothes 
Washer 
(CEE tier one or better) 

$85  $115 $200 

Premium High Efficiency 
Toilet (4 liter) 

$40  $60 $100 

Rotating Sprinkler 
Nozzles (min 30 per home) 

$2 ea  $1 $3 

Smart Irrigation Timer $80 $100 $100 $280 
 

Turf Removal Program 
(up to 5,000 sq ft)* 

$1 sq. ft. $2 sq. ft.  $3 sq. ft. 

Soil Moisture Sensor 
System 
<1 Acre 
>1 Acre 

 
 

$80 
$35/station 

 
 

$100 

 
 

$100 

 
 

$280 
$35/station 

Rain Barrels 

Cisterns 
(200 -500 gallon) 
(501-999 gallon) 
(1,000 gallon or more) 

$35 
 

$250 
$300 
$350 

 $15 $50 
 

$250 
$300 
$350 

Drip Irrigation (per kit and 
up to 5 kits) 

 $90 base 

plus $85 
 $175 per kit 

*Designated recycled water sites are not eligible for turf removal rebates.  MWDOC Grant funding 

based on availability. ETWD has discontinued funding of synthetic turf rebates. 

 
 
 
 

http://www.ocwatersmart.com/


  

2) Commercial Plumbing/Irrigation Devices Rebate Program: 
 

Device MET 

Rebate 

MWDOC 

Grant 

ETWD 

Rebate 

Total Rebate 

(up to) 

Premium High 
Efficiency Toilet  
(4 liter) 

$40   $40 

Multi-family 
Premium High 
Efficiency Toilet  
(4 liter) 

$40   $40 

Zero Water/Ultra 
Low Water Urinal 

$200   $200 

Plumbing Flow 
Control Valve 
(min. 10) 

$5   $5 

Smart Irrigation 
Timer (weather based 
or central computer) 

$35/station   $35/station 

Rotating Sprinkler 
Nozzles (minimum 
quantity of 15) 

$2  $1 $3 

Rotating Nozzles – 
Large Rotary 

$13   $13 

Turf Removal 
Program (up to 50,000 

sq ft)* 

$1 sq. ft $2 sq. ft.  $3 sq. ft. 

Drip Irrigation (sq. 
ft.)(maximum 45,000 sq. 
ft) 

 $0.20 sq. 
ft. 

 $0.20 sq. ft. 

Soil Moisture Sensor 
System 

 
$35/station 

 
$15/station 

  
$50/station 

*Designated recycled water sites are not eligible for turf removal rebates.  ETWD has discontinued 
synthetic turf rebates.  Additional commercial rebates available online at ocwatersmart.com.  
MWDOC Grant funding based on availability. 

 
WATER USE EFFICIENCY PLAN UPDATE (Water Conservation Plan) 
 
The District Water Budget-Based Tiered Conservation Rate Structure (WBBTCRS) 
pricing structure is the primary plan that gives customers the incentive needed to be 
efficient. The Plan efforts initially will concentrate on those customers continually in the 
Inefficient and Excessive Tiers (Tiers 3 and 4).  As of January 2020 year-to-date sales, 
residential accounted for 62% of the overall Tier 3 usage and dedicated irrigation 
accounted for 58% of Tier 4 usage. 
 
TOTAL CONSUMPTION COMPARISON TO EVAPOTRANSPIRATION (ET) FACTOR 
 
Included in this month’s Conservation Report is a chart comparing the current fiscal year 
2019/20 consumption and ET factor to the fiscal 2018/19 consumption and ET factor. 
The ET factor increased 1% from January 2019 when compared to January 2020.  There 
was a 5.74% increase in consumption reflected in January 2020. 



  

 
MWDOC’s—WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS SAVINGS AND 
IMPLEMENTATION REPORT / ETWD’s—WATER USE EFFICIENCY PROGRAM 
SAVINGS REPORT 
  
The current MWDOC water use efficiency program savings reports were not updated for 
December and not included in this month’s report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By: Sherri Seitz 
Date: February 20, 2020 



El Toro Water District
Water Use Efficiency Program Savings

Program

Program 

Start Year

Program/Total 

Years

Avoided Water Use 

Acre Feet/Annual

Avoided Water Use Million 

Gallons/Annual

Avoided Water Costs 

Based on MWDOC  Rate 

($2.16 CCF) Annual

High Efficiency Toilet (HET) 2005 14 50.0 16.3 $47,055

High Efficiency Clothes Washers--Residential 2001 18 24.8 8.1 $23,339

*SoCal Water Smart Commercial Plumbing Fixtures Rebate Program 

(ULFT's, HET's, Urinals, HECW, Cooling Tower Conductivity 

Controllers) 2002 17 49.4 16.1 $46,490

SmarTimer Program--Irrigation Timers 2004 15 182.0 59.3 $171,280

Rotating Nozzles Rebate Program 2007 12 118.4 38.6 $111,464

Turf Removal Program 2010 9 57.7 18.8 $54,255

**Water Smart Landscape Program - Ended 2016 1997 20 242.9 79.2 $228,594

Synthetic Turf Rebate Program-Ended 2011 2007 8 0.9 0.3 $847

***Ultra Low Flush Toilets (ULFT)--Ended 2009 1992 16 193.2 58.0 $167,487

Computer Controlled Irrigation System--Gate 11--Ended 2006 2001 6 8.9 2.9 $8,357

Totals 928.2 302.5 $873,502

* Formerly the Save Water Save a Buck - Commercial Rebate Program

** Formerly the Landscape Performance Certification Program

*** Correction on date and total

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

rev/ss 2/20/2020



Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

2018-2019 331,098 341,819 354,683 253,007 275,853 202,506 172,911 157,696 135,090 184,628 263,218 262,396

2019-2020 287,207 343,163 337,247 269,666 310,344 179,155 174,596

18/19 ET 7.42 6.85 5.21 4.04 3.17 2.07 2.30 2.29 4.09 4.93 4.84 4.67

19/20 ET 7.11 6.89 5.17 4.92 2.78 1.88 2.44

% 87% 100% 95% 107% 113% 88% 101% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

-1.00

1.00

3.00

5.00

7.00

9.00

11.00

13.00

15.00

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

300,000

350,000

400,000

ET
 F

ac
to

r

C
o

n
su

m
p

ti
o

n
 in

 C
C

F

Total Consumption Comparison



Retrofits and Acre-Feet Water Savings for Program Activity

Interventions
Water 

Savings Interventions
Water 

Savings Interventions
Annual Water 

Savings[4]

 Cumulative 
Water 

Savings[4] 

High Efficiency Clothes Washer Program 2001 December-19 103 0.30 1,047 10.69 120,300 4,150                  33,852

Smart Timer Program - Irrigation Timers 2004 December-19 118 1.03 2,456 40.50 26,390 8,633                  55,228

Rotating Nozzles Rebate Program 2007 December-19 132 0.53 3,163 12.65 570,221 2,787                  21,101

Commercial Plumbing Fixture Rebate 
Program 2002 December-19 719 2.22 3,193 32.59 108,145 5,295                  55,072

Industrial Process/Water Savings Incentive 
Program (WSIP) 2006 December-19 0 0.00 3 171.58 37 1,257 4,416

Turf Removal Program[3] 2010 December-19 74,320 0.87 219,753 4.66 22,612,806 3,166                  16,455

High Efficiency Toilet (HET) Program 2005 December-19 17 0.06 118 5.02 60,491 2,236                  21,863

Water Smart Landscape Program [1] 1997 12,677 10,621                72,668

Home Water Certification Program 2013 312 7.339 15.266

Synthetic Turf Rebate Program 2007 685,438 96                       469

Ultra-Low-Flush-Toilet Programs  [2] 1992 363,926 13,452                162,561

Home Water Surveys [2] 1995 11,867 160                     1,708

Showerhead Replacements [2] 1991 270,604 1,667                  19,083

Total Water Savings All Programs 5               229,733              278             24,843,214         53,527                464,492

(1)  Water Smart Landscape Program participation is based on the number of water meters receiving monthly Irrigation Performance Reports.
(2) Cumulative Water Savings Program To Date totals are from a previous Water Use Efficiency Program Effort.
(3) Turf Removal Interventions are listed as square feet.
[4] Cumulative & annual water savings represents both active program savings and passive savings that continues to be realized due to plumbing code changes over time.

Orange County
Water Use Efficiency Programs Savings  

and

Implementation Report

Month Indicated
Program

Current Fiscal Year  Overall Program 

Program 
Start Date

Retrofits 
Installed in

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by Municipal Water District of Orange County 2/5/2020



Agency FY 12/13 FY13/14 FY14/15 FY15/16 FY16/17 FY17/18 FY18/19 FY19/20 FY20/21  Total 

 Current FY 
Water Savings 

Ac/Ft 
(Cumulative) 

 Cumulative 
Water Savings 

across all 
Fiscal Years 

 15 yr. 
Lifecycle 
Savings 

Ac/Ft 

Brea 93            115          114          76            57           55             53            15            -           1,990          0.13 559.91 1,030          
Buena Park 105          106          91            76            54           50             46            6              -           1,620          0.06 445.10 838             
East Orange CWD RZ 10            8              8              8              3             1               6              2              -           201             0.02 59.47 104             
El Toro WD 134          121          111          65            47           50             40            19            -           1,630          0.19 447.00 843             
Fountain Valley 115          102          110          76            65           48             39            14            -           2,501          0.15 734.08 1,294          
Garden Grove 190          162          165          251          127        87             70            16            -           3,736          0.15 1,053.97 1,933          
Golden State WC 265          283          359          260          138        156           92            38            -           5,301          0.36 1,497.33 2,743          
Huntington Beach 334          295          319          225          180        139           93            56            -           8,534          0.49 2,542.88 4,416          
Irvine Ranch WD 1,763       1,664       1,882       1,521       1,369     1,194        883          268          -           27,007        2.98 7,242.13 13,974        
La Habra 82            114          87            66            53           48             48            18            -           1,441          0.21 391.59 746             
La Palma 34            25            34            29            10           14             7              7              -           486             0.08 135.22 251             
Laguna Beach CWD 38            37            39            32            19           20             18            8              -           978             0.07 279.77 506             
Mesa Water 114          86            89            113          79           53             42            18            -           2,630          0.18 781.43 1,361          
Moulton Niguel WD 442          421          790          688          574        524           357          148          -           10,949        1.46 2,878.07 5,665          
Newport Beach 116          92            95            66            61           51             41            15            -           2,731          0.14 823.60 1,413          
Orange 218          163          160          124          80           73             56            24            -           4,051          0.25 1,213.26 2,096          

 San Juan Capistrano 76            73            92            63            33           32             23            11            -           1,525          0.09 434.95 789             
San Clemente 140          94            141          75            70           83             64            29            -           2,796          0.28 789.10 1,447          
Santa Margarita WD 553          662          792          466          367        271           213          131          -           10,131        1.31 2,772.72 5,242          
Seal Beach 31            29            38            23            9             17             8              11            -           638             0.10 181.28 330             
Serrano WD 13            10            26            8              11           8               2              2              -           369             0.01 109.83 191             
South Coast WD 89            79            68            43            44           36             28            15            -           1,663          0.18 469.17 860             
Trabuco Canyon WD 30            45            47            34            28           22             13            6              -           839             0.07 235.28 434             
Tustin 78            59            80            66            44           48             34            8              -           1,702          0.09 495.33 881             
Westminster 121          82            109          149          84           65             46            16            -           2,713          0.18 771.66 1,404          
Yorba Linda 181          167          156          123          55           66             43            34            -           3,894          0.35 1,163.69 2,015          

MWDOC Totals 5,365       5,094       6,002       4,726       3,661     3,211        2,365       935          -           102,068      9.58 28,512.26 19,719        

Anaheim 331          285          295          266          213        173           135          54            -           11,044        0.55 3,324.20 5,714          
Fullerton 200          186          211          165          107        99             113          48            -           3,955          0.47 1,112.06 2,046          
Santa Ana 163          131          132          259          141        124           128          10            -           3,233          0.09 903.71 1,673          

Non-MWDOC Totals 694          602          638          690          461        396           376          112          -           18,232        1.11 5,339.97 3,522          

Orange County Totals 6,059       5,696       6,640       5,416       4,122     3,607        2,741       1,047       -           120,300      10.69 33,852.23 23,241        

HIGH EFFICIENCY CLOTHES WASHERS INSTALLED BY AGENCY
through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by the Municipal Water District of Orange County 2/5/2020



Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm Res Comm.
Brea 9 8 4 0 43 6 20 4 31 4 32 0 33 0 23 0 219 80 585.35
Buena Park 3 0 0 0 4 10 7 4 10 7 15 3 17 7 15 1 78 52 186.72
East Orange CWD RZ 2 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 11 1 6 0 1 0 0 0 32 1 26.86
El Toro WD 7 2 11 0 8 9 9 17 33 8 29 4 34 0 11 0 189 359 2,729.70
Fountain Valley 3 2 4 0 7 10 13 1 33 12 28 12 36 4 21 (2) 176 54 232.40
Garden Grove 5 2 9 0 10 14 13 11 28 0 27 2 36 3 21 0 185 43 211.61
Golden State WC 9 49 9 25 39 12 35 16 56 37 88 6 85 15 46 (1) 444 212 980.18
Huntington Beach 18 33 20 35 19 2 42 12 88 94 70 30 105 65 42 11 489 374 1,348.19
Irvine Ranch WD 414 135 71 59 67 310 239 207 344 420 416 78 379 105 174 17 2,738 2,486 13,162.63
La Habra 4 7 2 0 4 7 3 1 12 7 8 0 19 3 14 (2) 77 45 237.72
La Palma 1 0 2 0 2 0 3 2 1 0 5 0 7 0 5 0 27 2 8.38
Laguna Beach CWD 76 2 71 0 86 0 86 1 27 0 11 0 8 0 7 0 523 20 272.59
Mesa Water 10 2 15 2 17 28 36 12 149 41 49 0 34 55 18 0 419 209 894.01
Moulton Niguel WD 51 74 40 45 46 95 163 100 236 129 284 33 316 64 141 (31) 1,655 867 4,280.63
Newport Beach 242 26 168 75 11 9 28 43 30 12 24 0 21 0 5 0 1,088 409 2,941.42
Orange 20 24 13 9 18 31 51 13 69 10 61 13 93 26 68 0 507 204 1,095.57

 San Juan Capistrano 14 18 6 11 6 19 20 8 22 8 23 5 20 1 12 9 277 140 746.29
San Clemente 26 7 28 2 28 24 26 3 37 13 38 41 36 0 23 0 1,148 415 3,015.67
Santa Margarita WD 53 171 64 93 53 321 189 136 326 221 273 220 222 37 140 7 1,789 1,636 6,936.47
Seal Beach 1 0 1 36 1 12 2 2,446 2 4 5 0 6 31 6 0 24 2,533 6,825.34
Serrano WD 1 0 0 0 4 0 11 2 4 0 8 0 10 0 6 0 62 2 18.26
South Coast WD 13 16 8 4 104 73 9 11 7 0 15 2 7 7 7 0 307 221 1,312.17
Trabuco Canyon WD 6 0 2 0 6 1 16 50 13 3 20 0 33 0 26 0 182 157 1,063.63
Tustin 8 4 9 1 18 14 33 8 33 23 27 1 37 0 26 0 233 81 404.72
Westminster 1 1 2 0 13 17 7 1 17 12 22 0 24 0 15 0 126 44 232.49
Yorba Linda 20 0 12 5 32 2 61 27 72 71 68 10 74 4 70 2 550 199 990.43

MWDOC Totals 1,017 583 571 402 648 1,026 1,123 3,136 1,691 1,137 1,652 460 1,693 427 942 11 13,544 10,845 50,739.42

Anaheim 19 10 9 26 7 52 30 34 87 10 66 0 142 73 74 3 526 533 2,981.41
Fullerton 9 29 8 0 40 26 32 12 53 7 45 0 77 0 41 8 362 207 1,083.63
Santa Ana 8 19 7 8 9 27 22 26 15 3 16 0 24 20 11 120 133 240 423.47

Non-MWDOC Totals 36 58 24 34 56 105 84 72 155 20 127 0 243 93 126 131 1021 980 4,488.51

Orange County Totals 1,053  641      595      436      704      1,131     1,207   3,208   1,846  1,157   1,779 460    1,936 520    1,068 142    14,565 11,825 55,228           

Agency

SMART TIMERS INSTALLED BY AGENCY
 through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

 Cumulative 
Water Savings 

across all Fiscal 
Years 

Total ProgramFY 13/14 FY16/17FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY18/19FY 12/13 FY19/20FY17/18

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by the Municipal Water District of Orange County 2/5/2020



Large Large Large Large Large Large Large Large

Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm. Res Comm. Comm.

Brea 84 0 0 157 45 0 74 2,484 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 572 2,749 0                62.74 
Buena Park 53 0 0 248 0 0 45 98 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 49 0 0 558 173 2,535              904.56 
East Orange 30 0 0 221 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 781 0 0                22.41 
El Toro 56 3,288 0 1,741 28,714 0 730 4,457 0 55 242 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,405 46,222 890           1,421.25 
Fountain Valley 0 0 0 107 0 0 222 0 0 0 0 0 85 0 0 0 283 0 0 0 0 795 283 0                21.86 
Garden Grove 80 0 0 88 50 0 110 0 0 55 98 0 52 0 0 0 0 0 72 0 0 1,057 299 0                37.86 
Golden State 192 0 0 583 1,741 0 1,088 0 0 207 6,008 0 161 -495 0 35 259 0 63 1,652 0 3,707 12,732 0              299.31 
Huntington Beach 120 0 0 798 1,419 0 1,345 2,836 0 149 3,362 0 -37 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 3,790 12,526 2,681           1,469.75 
Irvine Ranch 11,010 4,257 0 1,421 632 0 1,989 5,047 0 335 9,511 0 356 -215 0 72 0 0 119 0 0 47,684 94,346 2,004           5,382.59 
La Habra 15 0 0 109 338 0 300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 481 1,236 900              404.34 
La Palma 0 0 0 0 0 0 46 505 0 0 2,385 0 33 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 89 2,890 0                38.12 
Laguna Beach 2,948 878 0 2,879 1,971 0 1,390 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 12,139 2,896 0              361.30 
Mesa Water 361 0 0 229 0 0 166 0 0 113 0 0 36 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,066 385 343              217.09 
Moulton Niguel 361 227 0 1,596 4,587 0 5,492 1,441 0 153 5,872 0 893 0 0 713 38 0 347 0 0 13,827 20,553 2,945           1,931.13 
Newport Beach 19,349 6,835 0 460 3,857 0 348 670 0 0 0 0 45 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 46,723 21,413 0           1,856.70 
Orange 245 120 0 304 668 0 631 91 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 30 0 0 67 0 0 3,267 1,072 0              126.33 
San Juan Capistrano 370 0 0 495 737 0 310 593 0 75 123 0 59 0 0 40 1,400 0 58 0 0 5,652 10,252 0              509.09 
San Clemente 415 5,074 0 326 0 0 426 0 0 0 0 0 146 0 0 0 0 0 35 0 0 10,170 7,538 1,343              917.84 
Santa Margarita 389 0 0 1,207 1,513 0 1,820 837 0 15 0 0 224 0 0 30 0 0 194 0 0 16,613 6,921 611              939.56 
Seal Beach 0 0 0 40 5,261 0 0 2,300 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 155 7,852 0              159.45 
Serrano 105 0 0 377 0 0 695 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,405 0 0              106.90 
South Coast 70 0 0 4,993 13,717 0 1,421 2,889 0 16 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,130 18,870 0              580.71 
Trabuco Canyon 0 0 0 56 0 0 130 0 0 0 4,339 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2,086 5,130 0              160.44 
Tustin 329 0 0 408 0 0 317 386 0 65 -341 0 30 0 0 47 0 0 0 0 0 3,448 1,058 0              138.85 
Westminster 0 0 0 54 0 0 73 0 0 105 0 0 50 0 0 42 0 0 0 0 0 556 0 0                13.41 
Yorba Linda 40 990 0 921 0 0 1,715 0 0 213 0 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 0 0 0 6,115 4,359 500              519.44 

MWDOC Totals 36,622 21,669 0 19,818 65,250 0 20,883 24,634 0 1,556 31,599 0 2,199 -710 0 1,043 1,980 0 ### 1,652 0 197,271 281,755 14,752 18,603.02        

Anaheim 338 0 0 498 712 0 794 5,221 0 147 3,953 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,020 49,799 105           1,569.31 
Fullerton 107 0 0 684 1,196 0 521 7,015 0 65 3,034 0 0 0 0 140 0 0 31 0 0 3,081 11,309 1,484              778.09 
Santa Ana 86 2,533 0 310 0 0 0 1,420 0 0 1,106 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 34 0 0 893 5,752 0              150.90 

Non-MWDOC Totals 531 2,533 0 1,492 1,908 0 1,315 13,656 0 212 8,093 0 0 0 0 140 0 0 65 0 0 7,994 66,860 1,589 2,498.29          

Orange County Totals 37,153 24,202 0 21,310 67,158 0 22,198 38,290 0 1,768 39,692 0 2,199 -710 0 1,183 1,980 0 ### 1,652 0 205,265 348,615 16,341 21,101.31        

FY 13/14

SmallSmall

FY 15/16

Small

FY 16/17

Small

FY 14/15 FY 17/18

Small Small

FY 19/20

ROTATING NOZZLES INSTALLED BY AGENCY
 through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

Agency

Total Program  Cumulative Water 
Savings

across all Fiscal 
Years 

Small

FY 18/19

Small

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by Municipal Water District of Orange County 2/5/2020



Brea 234 0 10 91 734 242 0 73 1,680 671
Buena Park 5 23 56 591 133 49 0 94 2,632 1,510
East Orange CWD RZ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
El Toro WD 0 212 6 268 35 737 717 0 2,516 840
Fountain Valley 0 0 1 249 0 895 0 289 2,056 847
Garden Grove 4 1 167 676 410 0 354 331 3,136 1,991
Golden State WC 0 1 0 1,008 53 93 86 80 3,124 2,479
Huntington Beach 104 144 7 783 641 10 208 0 3,172 2,139
Irvine Ranch WD 1,090 451 725 11,100 5,958 1,599 1,000 15 30,480 11,073
La Habra 0 0 0 340 42 0 0 59 984 725
La Palma 0 0 0 0 509 0 0 0 675 187
Laguna Beach CWD 0 27 0 0 0 0 0 0 446 404
Mesa Water 6 0 79 661 782 0 110 19 4,383 2,792
Moulton Niguel WD 0 0 3 413 281 506 4,392 285 6,460 1,473
Newport Beach 0 0 566 0 0 0 1,596 16 3,446 1,804
Orange 1 271 81 275 2,851 458 532 251 6,271 2,539
San Juan Capistrano 0 14 0 0 0 0 0 0 260 488
San Clemente 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 321 753 487
Santa Margarita WD 0 0 2 90 743 598 699 0 2,247 452
Seal Beach 0 0 0 0 184 278 0 0 816 565
Serrano WD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
South Coast WD 148 0 382 0 0 0 0 0 1,320 714
Trabuco Canyon WD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 11 19
Tustin 0 0 75 358 212 2 408 207 2,019 1,134
Westminster 1 28 0 146 177 25 0 0 1,163 1,287
Yorba Linda 1 0 0 226 84 338 0 83 1,016 749

MWDOC Totals 1,594 1,172 2,161 17,275 13,829 5,830 10,102 2,123 81,066 37,368

Anaheim 165 342 463 3,072 309 1,808 686 585 16,832 9,326
Fullerton 94 0 178 476 621 274 384 356 3,792 2,252
Santa Ana 16 17 5 1,293 238 582 7 129 6,455 6,127

Non-MWDOC Totals 275 359 646 4,841 1,168 2,664 1,077 1,070 27,079 17,705

Orange County Totals 1,869 1,531 2,807 22,116 14,997 8,494 11,179 3,193 108,145 55,072

Totals
FY

14/15
FY

17/18
FY

15/16
FY

16/17
FY

18/19
FY

19/20

[1] Retrofit devices include ULF Toilets and Urinals, High Efficiency Toilets and Urinals, Multi-Family and Multi-Family 4-Liter HETs, Zero Water Urinals, High Efficiency Clothes 
Washers, Cooling Tower Conductivity Controllers, Ph Cooling Tower Conductivity Controllers, Flush Valve Retrofit Kits, Pre-rinse Spray heads, Hospital X-Ray Processor 
Recirculating Systems, Steam Sterilizers, Food Steamers, Water Pressurized Brooms, Laminar Flow Restrictors, and Ice Making Machines. 

through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

COMMERCIAL PLUMBING FIXTURES INSTALLED BY AGENCY[1]

Agency

Cumulative Water 
Savings across all 

Fiscal Years

FY
13/14

FY
12/13

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by the Municipal Water District of Orange County 2/5/2020



Agency FY 11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20

Overall 
Program 

Interventions
Annual Water 

Savings[1]

Cumulative 
Water 

Savings 
across all 

Fiscal 
Years[1]

Brea 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Buena Park 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2 54 596
East Orange 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
El Toro 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 9 12
Fountain Valley 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 23 65
Garden Grove 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 2 7 2
Golden State 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 58 44
Huntington Beach 0 2 0 1 2 0 1 0 0 6 180 882
Irvine Ranch 1 1 1 0 2 1 1 0 0 10 119 841
La Habra 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
La Palma 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Laguna Beach 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Mesa Water 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Moulton Niguel 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Newport Beach 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 21 108
Orange 0 0 0 0 1 2 1 0 0 5 97 666
San Juan Capistrano 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
San Clemente 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Santa Margarita 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Seal Beach 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Serrano 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
South Coast 0 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 2 134 381
Trabuco Canyon 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Tustin 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Westminster 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 117 78
Yorba Linda 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 20 27

MWDOC Totals 1 3 1 2 9 5 3 3 2 35 840 3702

Anaheim 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fullerton 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 282 117
Santa Ana 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 135 597

OC Totals 1 3 1 2 10 5 3 3 3 37 1257 4416

[1] Acre feet of savings determined during a one year monitoring period.

If monitoring data is not available, the savings estimated in agreement is used.

INDUSTRIAL PROCESS/WATER SAVINGS INCENTIVE PROGRAM
Number of Projects by Agency



Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm. Res Comm.

Brea 5,697 0 71,981 30,617 118,930 404,411 8,354 479 9,853 27,234 3,180 44,733 2,026 0 228,997 516,940                    511.56 
Buena Park 0 0 11,670 1,626 77,127 16,490 3,741 0 4,586 0 1,230 0 4,754 0 98,354 18,116                      80.42 
East Orange 1,964 0 18,312 0 27,844 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 48,120 0                      36.80 
El Toro 4,582 0 27,046 221,612 63,546 162,548 13,139 48,019 7,273 42,510 12,856 9,895 1,060 0 137,845 557,302                    518.81 
Fountain Valley 4,252 0 45,583 5,279 65,232 0 3,679 0 8,631 0 5,764 28,700 734 0 135,123 41,503                    117.51 
Garden Grove 8,274 0 67,701 22,000 177,408 49,226 11,504 0 4,487 0 0 0 0 0 287,921 117,403                    337.17 
Golden State 32,725 8,424 164,507 190,738 310,264 112,937 0 0 0 0 0 48,595 0 0 581,902 394,867                    780.47 
Huntington Beach 20,642 0 165,600 58,942 305,420 270,303 9,560 21,534 14,236 6,032 9,539 40,135 6,129 0 562,647 461,872                    775.67 
Irvine Ranch 36,584 76,400 234,905 317,999 782,844 2,675,629 231,483 46,725 86,893 61,037 55,346 203,014 19,931 0 1,472,812 3,427,648                 3,374.41 
La Habra 0 0 14,014 1,818 49,691 72,164 0 0 3,003 0 1,504 0 1,682 0 68,212 90,019                    121.15 
La Palma 0 0 4,884 0 10,257 59,760 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,141 59,760                      53.11 
Laguna Beach 4,586 226 13,647 46,850 47,614 0 3,059 0 589 0 0 0 1,217 0 75,670 48,788                    100.20 
Mesa Water 22,246 0 131,675 33,620 220,815 106,896 4,173 77,033 17,373 77,785 3,023 0 5,534 0 416,749 295,334                    483.49 
Moulton Niguel 14,739 40,741 314,250 1,612,845 889,748 1,059,279 220,749 0 98,271 0 106,574 0 55,071 0 1,661,308 2,840,054                 3,389.00 
Newport Beach 894 0 33,995 65,277 76,675 375,404 2,924 0 5,938 6,499 0 90,403 0 0 127,428 539,929                    442.10 
Orange 11,244 0 120,093 281,402 289,990 106,487 12,847 2,366 11,956 0 13,645 1,798 490 0 488,697 400,776                    685.96 
San Clemente 18,471 13,908 90,349 1,137 215,249 438,963 4,267 0 33,083 7,098 6,500 0 3,987 3,064 405,483 474,271                    641.80 
San Juan Capistrano 12,106 0 101,195 32,366 197,290 143,315 2,624 40,748 0 0 0 0 0 0 365,415 347,277                    609.46 
Santa Margarita 17,778 48,180 211,198 514,198 534,048 550,420 17,010 28,094 62,706 25,000 24,616 23,198 6,616 38,074 883,954 1,217,651                 1,551.53 
Seal Beach 0 0 15,178 504 17,349 15,911 1,234 0 752 0 0 0 0 0 38,124 16,415                      41.40 
Serrano 2,971 0 41,247 0 127,877 4,403 5,450 0 555 0 4,000 0 840 0 182,100 4,403                    134.48 
South Coast 15,162 116,719 84,282 191,853 181,102 128,290 14,967 0 13,319 7,806 7,574 0 0 0 332,641 465,387                    641.09 
Trabuco Canyon 2,651 0 14,771 0 42,510 88,272 1,465 0 4,788 0 1,536 0 432 49,533 69,535 110,712                    136.34 
Tustin 1,410 0 71,285 14,137 232,697 33,362 11,173 0 16,926 0 13,189 6,894 7,495 6,936 356,660 54,393                    287.17 
Westminster 0 0 14,040 34,631 71,833 23,902 11,112 0 10,033 0 5,924 0 1,962 0 112,942 58,533                    118.59 
Yorba Linda 0 0 112,136 12,702 360,279 116,985 19,420 0 9,529 3,696 12,590 12,020 2,186 0 525,303 145,403                    476.30 

MWDOC Totals 238,978 304,598 2,195,544 3,692,153 5,493,639 7,015,357 613,934 264,998 424,780 264,697 288,590 509,385 122,146 97,607 9,679,083 12,704,756               16,445.98 

Anaheim 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0                           -   
Fullerton 0 9,214 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,214                        9.03 
Santa Ana 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0                           -   

Non-MWDOC Totals 0 9,214 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,214 9.03

Orange County Totals 238,978 313,812 2,195,544 3,692,153 5,493,639 7,015,357 613,934 264,998 424,780 264,697 288,590 509,385 122,146 97,607 9,679,083 12,713,970 16,455

TURF REMOVAL BY AGENCY[1]

[1]Installed device numbers are listed as square feet

through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

 Cumulative Water 
Savings across all 

Fiscal Years 
Agency

FY 15/16 Total ProgramFY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20



Agency

FY 12-13 FY 13-14 FY 14-15 FY 15-16 FY 16-17 FY 17-18 FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 Total
 Cumulative Water 
Savings across all 

Fiscal Years 

Brea 0 38 146 154 4 6 1 0 0 457 135.98
Buena Park 0 96 153 112 13 3 0 2 0 689 244.67
East Orange CWD RZ 0 13 26 24 0 0 0 2 0 88 27.92
El Toro WD 133 218 869 264 12 6 10 2 0 2,055 699.42
Fountain Valley 0 41 132 220 7 8 1 3 0 835 314.34
Garden Grove 0 63 350 363 7 4 5 0 0 1,493 538.63
Golden State WC 2 142 794 512 9 11 5 6 0 2,812 997.63
Huntington Beach 0 163 1,190 628 4 3 4 2 0 2,910 946.09
Irvine Ranch WD 1,449 810 1,777 2,798 638 239 162 48 0 17,358 6,771.40
Laguna Beach CWD 0 45 112 81 1 4 0 2 0 394 134.95
La Habra 0 37 94 83 5 1 0 0 0 591 241.01
La Palma 0 21 59 52 4 2 4 3 0 231 76.14
Mesa Water 0 147 162 162 7 3 3 1 0 1,625 719.42
Moulton Niguel WD 0 400 2,497 1,939 49 38 21 14 0 5,763 1,590.90
Newport Beach 0 49 168 243 11 6 0 0 0 731 239.39
Orange 1 142 978 416 17 10 5 2 0 2,196 702.57
San Juan Capistrano 0 35 140 202 3 9 4 0 0 536 162.75
San Clemente 0 72 225 246 11 6 10 1 0 889 294.17

Santa Margarita WD 0 528 997 1,152 114 33 11 6 0 3,359 937.49

Seal Beach 2 17 50 69 -1 0 0 0 0 857 458.19
Serrano WD 0 2 40 55 3 0 3 0 0 124 34.09
South Coast WD 64 102 398 235 11 7 0 0 0 1,028 310.30
Trabuco Canyon WD 0 10 108 169 2 3 2 0 0 344 92.48
Tustin 0 64 132 201 12 10 4 4 0 1,524 654.64
Westminster 0 35 161 359 3 4 0 0 0 1,335 517.35
Yorba Linda WD 0 40 280 379 12 8 2 1 0 1,262 442.53

MWDOC Totals 1,651 3,330 12,038 11,118 958 424 257 99 0 51,486 18,284.44

Anaheim 0 156 1,188 614 70 19 5 7 0 5,896 2,444.42
Fullerton 0 61 293 286 14 9 8 5 0 1,077 360.31
Santa Ana 0 33 602 293 20 0 4 3 0 2,028 774.15

Non-MWDOC Totals 0 250 2,083 1,193 104 28 17 15 0 9,001 3,578.88

Orange County Totals 1,651 3,580 14,121 12,311 1,062 452 274 114 0 60,487 21,863.32

HIGH EFFICIENCY TOILETS (HETs) INSTALLED BY AGENCY

through MWDOC and Local Agency Conservation Programs

P&O Tbls - Katie.xlsx Prepared by Municipal Water District of Orange County 2/5/2020

























1 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

Jointly with the 
PLANNING & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 

February 3, 2020, 8:30 a.m. 
Conference Room 101 

 
 

P&O Committee:     Staff:  R. Hunter, K. Seckel, J. Berg, 
Director McVicker, Chair    H. De La Torre, K. Davanaugh, 
Director Dick      D. Harrison 
Director Yoo Schneider 
 
Ex Officio Member:  Director Tamaribuchi 
 

 
MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board 
of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion.  Each 
Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate 
committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be 
adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those 
Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the 
Committee should be made at this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate action 
on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- Pursuant to 
Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session agenda items 
and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be 
available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 Ward Street, 
Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these public records 
will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
1. FY 2019-20 WATER USE EFFICIENCY RESEARCH ACTIVITIES 
 
DISCUSSION ITEM 
 
2. REGIONAL SYSTEM PLANNING & LOCAL WATER SUPPLY INTEGRATION 

UPDATE  



P&O Committee Meeting  February 3, 2020 
 

2 

INFORMATION ITEMS (The following items are for informational purposes only – 
background information is included in the packet.  Discussion is not necessary unless a 
Director requests.) 
 
3. STATUS REPORTS 

a. Ongoing MWDOC Reliability and Engineering/Planning Projects 
b. WEROC 
c. Water Use Efficiency Projects 

 
4. REVIEW OF ISSUES RELATED TO CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS, WATER USE 

EFFICIENCY, FACILITY AND EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE, WATER STORAGE, 
WATER QUALITY, CONJUNCTIVE USE PROGRAMS, EDUCATION, DISTRICT 
FACILITIES, and MEMBER-AGENCY RELATIONS 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly 

listed for action, may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those 
items designated for Board action, the Committee reviews the items and makes a 
recommendation for final action to the full Board of Directors; final action will be taken by the 
Board of Directors.  Agendas for Committee and Board meetings may be obtained from the 
District Secretary.  Members of the public are advised that the Board consideration process 
includes consideration of each agenda item by one or more Committees indicated on the Board 
Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the Board meeting considering an item 
consequently is advised. 

 
 Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 

modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public 
meeting by telephoning Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to 
Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A 
telephone number or other contact information should be included so that District staff may 
discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation 
should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide the 
requested accommodation. 



1 

WORKSHOP MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS WITH MET DIRECTORS 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
18700 Ward Street, Board Room, Fountain Valley, California 

February 5, 2020, 8:30 a.m. 
 

AGENDA 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ROLL CALL 
 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION/COMMENTS 
At this time members of the public will be given an opportunity to address the Board concerning items 
within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  Members of the public may also address the Board 
about a particular Agenda item at the time it is considered by the Board and before action is taken. 
 
The Board requests, but does not require, that members of the public who want to address the Board 
complete a voluntary “Request to be Heard” form available from the Board Secretary prior to the meeting. 
 

ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED 
Determine need and take action to agendize item(s), which arose subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda.  (ROLL CALL VOTE: Adoption of this recommendation requires a two-thirds vote of the Board 
members present or, if less than two-thirds of the Board members are present, a unanimous vote.) 

 

ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 
Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these 
public records will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at 
http://www.mwdoc.com. 

(NEXT RESOLUTION NO. 2093) 

 
 

PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION/INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

1. INPUT OR QUESTIONS ON MET ISSUES FROM THE MEMBER AGENCIES/MET 

DIRECTOR REPORTS REGARDING MET COMMITTEE PARTICIPATION 
 

Recommendation:  Receive input and discuss the information. 
 

2. GOVERNOR’S DRAFT WATER RESILIENCE PORTFOLIO 

 
Recommendation: Review and discuss the information presented. 
 

3. ORAL UPDATE REGARDING COLORADO RIVER SALINITY CONTROL ISSUES 
 
Recommendation: Receive and file the information presented. 

http://www.mwdoc.com/


Workshop Board Agenda February 5, 2020 

2 

 
 

4. WATER SUPPLY CONDITION UPDATE 

 
Recommendation: Review and discuss the information presented. 
 

5. DELTA CONVEYANCE PROJECT ACTIVITIES UPDATE 
 

Recommendation: Review and discuss the information presented. 
 

6. MET ITEMS CRITICAL TO ORANGE COUNTY (The following items are for 
informational purposes only – a write up on each item is included in the packet.  
Discussion is not necessary unless requested by a Director) 

 
a. MET’s Water Supply Conditions 
b. MET’s Finance and Rate Issues 
c. Colorado River Issues 
d. Bay Delta/State Water Project Issues 
e. MET’s Ocean Desalination Policy and Potential Participation in the Doheny 

and Huntington Beach Ocean (Poseidon) Desalination Projects 

f. South County Projects 
 

Recommendation: Review and discuss the information presented. 
 

7. METROPOLITAN (MET) BOARD AND COMMITTEE AGENDA DISCUSSION 

ITEMS 
 

a. Summary regarding January MET Board Meetings 
b. Review items of significance for MET Board and Committee Agendas   

 
 Recommendation: Review and discuss the information presented. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 

 

8. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL- ANTICIPATED LITIGATION – 

SIGNIFICANT EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION - Pursuant to Paragraph (2) 
Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9, Claim of Rosemary Ramirez Against the 
Municipal Water District of Orange County for personal injury, Date of Claim January 
14, 2020 
 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
Note: Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Maribeth 
Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 
20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728. Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of 
accommodation requested. A telephone number or other contact information should be included so that District staff 
may discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodations should make the 
request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide the requested accommodations. 



1 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 

Jointly with the 
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE 

February 12, 2020, 8:30 a.m. 
Conference Room 101 

 
 
A&F Committee:     Staff:  R. Hunter, K. Seckel, J. Berg, 
Director Thomas, Chair    H. De La Torre, K. Davanaugh, C. Harris, 
Director Finnegan      H. Chumpitazi 
Director Dick 
 
Ex Officio Member:  Director Tamaribuchi 
 

 
MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board 
of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion.  Each 
Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate 
committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be 
adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those 
Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS - Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the 
Committee should be made at this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate action 
on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of the 
Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- Pursuant to 
Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session agenda items 
and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be 
available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 18700 Ward Street, 
Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, these public records 
will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
PROPOSED BOARD CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS 
 
1. TREASURER'S REPORT 

a. Revenue/Cash Receipt Report –  January 2020 
b. Disbursement Approval Report for the month of  February 2020 
c. Disbursement Ratification Report for the month of January 2020 2019 
d. GM Approved Disbursement Report for the month of January 2020 
e. Water Use Efficiency Projects Cash Flow – January 31, 2020 
f. Consolidated Summary of Cash and Investment – December 2019 
g. OPEB and Pension Trust Fund monthly statement 

 
2. FINANCIAL REPORT 

a. Combined Financial Statements and Budget Comparative for the Period 
ending December 31, 2019 



A&F Committee Meeting  February 12, 2020 
 

2 

b. Quarterly Budget Review 
 
DISCUSSION ITEM 
 
3. FIRST DRAFT OF THE FY 2020-21 BUDGET 
 
4. MWDOC DRAFT LETTER ON THE PARADOX VALLEY UNIT OF THE 

COLORADO RIVER BASIN SALINITY CONTROL PROGRAM DEIS 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
5. CONSIDER AUTHORIZING ATTENDANCE AT ASCE’S WORLD 

ENVIRONMENTAL & WATER RESOURCES CONGRESS, MAY 17-21, 2020, 
HENDERSON, NV 

 
6. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT AWARD FOR OWNER’S 

REPRESENTATIVE SERVICES 
 
7. ATTENDANCE AT THE CALIFORNIA WATER ENVIRONMENT ASSOCIATION 

(CWEA) ANNUAL CONFERENCE 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS – (THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL 
PURPOSES ONLY – BACKGROUND INFORMATION IS INCLUDED IN THE PACKET.  
DISCUSSION IS NOT NECESSARY UNLESS REQUESTED BY A DIRECTOR.) 
 
8. SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT WITH MUNICIPAL RESOURCE GROUP 
 
9. LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES OPEN PURCHASE ORDERS 
 
10. SEMI-ANNUAL DIRECTORS ACTIVITIES REPORT 
 
11. SEMI-ANNUAL OVERTIME REPORT 
 
12. ANNUAL AUTO ALLOWANCE REPORT 
 
13. ANNUAL REVIEW OF COASTAL MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT ISSUES 
 
14. DEPARTMENT ACTIVITIES REPORTS 

a. Administration 
b. Finance and Information Technology 

 
15. MONTHLY WATER USAGE DATA, TIER 2 PROJECTION, AND WATER SUPPLY 

INFORMATION 
 
OTHER ITEMS 
 
16. REVIEW ISSUES REGARDING DISTRICT ORGANIZATION, PERSONNEL 

MATTERS, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS FINANCE AND INSURANCE 
 



A&F Committee Meeting  February 12, 2020 
 

3 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly 

listed for action, may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those 
items designated for Board action, the Committee reviews the items and makes a 
recommendation for final action to the full Board of Directors; final action will be taken by the 
Board of Directors.  Agendas for Committee and Board meetings may be obtained from the 
District Secretary.  Members of the public are advised that the Board consideration process 
includes consideration of each agenda item by one or more Committees indicated on the Board 
Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the Board meeting considering an item 
consequently is advised. 

 
 Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related 

modification or accommodation needed for that person to be able to participate in the public 
meeting by telephoning Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, at (714) 963-3058, or writing to 
Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A 
telephone number or other contact information should be included so that District staff may 
discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation 
should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide the 
requested accommodation. 



 

MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT OF ORANGE COUNTY 
Jointly with the 

PUBLIC AFFAIRS AND LEGISLATION COMMITTEE 
February 18, 2020, 8:30 a.m. 
Conference Room 101 

 
Teleconference site: 

Director Yoo Schneider will participate  
via teleconference at the following location: 

675 N Washington St #200, Alexandria, VA 22314 
949/278-5761 

 
(Members of the Public may attend and participate in the meeting at both locations.) 

 
Committee: 
Director Yoo Schneider, Chair  Staff: R. Hunter, K. Seckel, H. Baez, 
Director Barbre     D. Micalizzi, K. Davanaugh, T. Baca 
Director McVicker 
 
Ex Officio Member:  Director Tamaribuchi 
 
 
MWDOC Committee meetings are noticed and held as joint meetings of the Committee and the entire Board 
of Directors and all members of the Board of Directors may attend and participate in the discussion. Each 
Committee has designated Committee members, and other members of the Board are designated alternate 
committee members.  If less than a quorum of the full Board is in attendance, the Board meeting will be 
adjourned for lack of a quorum and the meeting will proceed as a meeting of the Committee with those 
Committee members and alternate members in attendance acting as the Committee. 
 
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
Public comments on agenda items and items under the jurisdiction of the Committee should be made at 
this time. 
 
ITEMS RECEIVED TOO LATE TO BE AGENDIZED - Determine there is a need to take immediate 
action on item(s) and that the need for action came to the attention of the District subsequent to the posting of 
the Agenda. (Requires a unanimous vote of the Committee) 
 
ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO MEETING -- 
Pursuant to Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open session 
agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the 
meeting will be available for public inspection in the lobby of the District’s business office located at 
18700 Ward Street, Fountain Valley, California 92708, during regular business hours.  When practical, 
these public records will also be made available on the District’s Internet Web site, accessible at 
http://www.mwdoc.com. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
1. LEGISLATIVE ACTIVITIES 

a. Federal Legislative Report (Barker) 
b. State Legislative Report (BBK) 
c. County Legislative Report (Lewis) 
d. Legal and Regulatory Report (Ackerman) 



PAL Committee Meeting February 18, 2020 

2 

e. MWDOC Legislative Matrix 
f. Metropolitan Legislative Matrix 

 
2. SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA WATER ISSUES CONGRESSIONAL DELEGATION 

BRIEFING LUNCHEON 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
3. TRAVEL TO WASHINGTON, DC TO COVER FEDERAL ADVOCACY INITIATIVES 
 
4. TRAVEL TO SACRAMENTO TO COVER STATE ADVOCACY INITIATIVES 
 
5. CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION (CSDA) CALL FOR 

NOMINATIONS:  SEAT B – SOUTHERN NETWORK 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS (THE FOLLOWING ITEMS ARE FOR INFORMATIONAL 
PURPOSES ONLY – BACKGROUND INFORMATION IS INCLUDED IN THE PACKET.  
DISCUSSION IS NOT NECESSARY UNLESS REQUESTED BY A DIRECTOR.) 
 
6. WATER POLICY FORUM & DINNER SPEAKERS SERIES 
 
7. 2019 OC WATER SUMMIT 
 
8. SCHOOL PROGRAM UPDATE 
 
9. EDUCATION PROGRAM INITIATIVES 
 
10. PUBLIC AND GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS ACTIVITIES REPORT 
 
OTHER ITEMS 
 
11. REVIEW ISSUES RELATED TO LEGISLATION, OUTREACH, PUBLIC 

INFORMATION ISSUES, AND MET 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
NOTE: At the discretion of the Committee, all items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly listed for action, 
may be deliberated, and may be subject to action by the Committee.  On those items designated for Board action, the 
Committee reviews the items and makes a recommendation for final action to the full Board of Directors; final action will be 
taken by the Board of Directors.  Agendas for Committee and Board meetings may be obtained from the District Secretary. 
 Members of the public are advised that the Board consideration process includes consideration of each agenda item by 
one or more Committees indicated on the Board Action Sheet.  Attendance at Committee meetings and the Board meeting 
considering an item consequently is advised. 
Accommodations for the Disabled.  Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation 
needed for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Maribeth Goldsby, District Secretary, 
at (714) 963-3058, or writing to Municipal Water District of Orange County at P.O. Box 20895, Fountain Valley, CA 92728.  
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  A telephone number or other 
contact information should be included so that District staff may discuss appropriate arrangements.  Persons requesting a 
disability-related accommodation should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the District to provide 
the requested accommodation. 























































NOTICE OF ADJOURNMENT 
 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
ORANGE COUNTY 

2677 North Main Street, Suite 1050 
Santa Ana, CA 92705 

(714) 640-5100  FAX (714) 640-5139 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

Wednesday, February 12, 2019 
8:15 a.m.  

 
Planning Commission Hearing Room 

Hall of Administration 
333 W. Santa Ana Blvd. 

10 Civic Center Plaza, Santa Ana, CA 92701 
 
 

 
 
The February 12, 2020 Regular Commission Meeting has been cancelled.  The next scheduled meeting 
of this Commission will be Wednesday, March 11, 2020 at 8:15 a.m. at the Planning Commission 
Hearing Room – Hall of Administration (HOA) located at 333 W. Santa Ana Blvd., 10 Civic Center 
Plaza, Santa Ana, CA 92701. 
 
For more information, please contact Cheryl Carter-Benjamin, Clerk of the Commission, at (714) 640-
5100.  
 
 
NOTICE REGARDING ITEMS DISTRIBUTED TO THE COMMISSION LESS THAN 72 HOURS PRIOR TO THE 
LAFCO REGULAR MEETING: 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5 public records that relate to open session agenda items that are distributed to 
a majority of the Commission less than seventy-two (72) hours prior to the meeting will be available to the public at Orange 
County LAFCO offices at 2677 North Main Street, Suite 1050, Santa Ana, CA 92705 during regular business hours.  These 
records when possible will also be made available on the OC LAFCO website at http://www.oclafco.org. 
 
NOTICE: State law requires that a participant in a LAFCO proceeding who has a financial interest in a decision and who 
has made a campaign contribution of more than $250 to any commissioner in the past year must disclose the contribution.  
If you are affected, please notify the Commission’s staff before the hearing.  
 
LAFCO Agendas and supporting documentation are available on the Internet at http://oclafco.org. 

http://www.oclafco.org/
http://www.oclafco.org/


SOCWMA Management Committee | February 3, 2020 

 

 SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WATERSHED MANAGEMENT AREA 
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

AGENDA  
February 3, 2020 

1:30 PM – 3:30 PM 
 

City of Laguna Hills, City Hall – Council Chambers 
24035 El Toro Road 

Laguna Hills, CA  92653 
Map 

  
Shaun Pelletier 
    City of Aliso Viejo 
Lisa Zawaski 
    City of Dana Point 
Mary Vondrak 
    City of Laguna Beach 
Ken Rosenfield 
    City of Laguna Hills 
Hal Ghafari 
    City of Laguna Niguel 
Rebecca Pennington 
    City of Laguna Woods 
Devin Slaven 
    City of Lake Forest 
Joe Ames 
    City of Mission Viejo 
Hazel McIntosh 
    City of Rancho Santa Margarita 
David Rebensdorf 
    City of San Clemente 
Norris Brandt 
    San Juan Basin Authority 

Joe Parco 
    City of San Juan Capistrano 
Grant Sharp 
    County of Orange  
Dennis Cafferty 
    El Toro Water District 
Mark Tettemer 
    Irvine Ranch Water District 
Rodney Woods 
    Moulton Niguel Water District 
Charles Busslinger 
    Municipal Water District of OC 
Dan Ferons    
    Santa Margarita Water District 
Rick Shintaku 
    South Coast Water District 
Betty Burnett 
    South OC Wastewater Authority 
Fernando Paludi 
    Trabuco Canyon Water District 
David Youngblood 

Laguna Beach County Water District 
 
 
 
 

http://goo.gl/maps/fVqT5


SOCWMA Management Committee | February 3, 2020 

 

 
1. Welcome & Introductions 
 
 

2. Update: Aliso Creek Watershed Collaboration Group 
Jenna Voss & Andrew McGuire, County of Orange 

 

3. Updates: Water Resilience Portfolio & Roundtable of Regions 
Jenna Voss 

 

4. Updates: Proposition 1 IRWM & Stormwater Grants 
Jenna Voss 

 

5. Updates & Discussion: Water Quality Improvement Plan (WQIP) 
Cindy Rivers, County of Orange 

a) Implementation of the Comprehensive Human Waste Source 
Reduction Strategy (CHWSRS) Work Plan and Human Waste 
Abatement Group’s Roles – Michael Trapp, Vada Moon & Vanessa 
Thulsiraj, MBI 

b) Flow Ecology Study – Cindy Rivers 
 

6. MC Member Roundtable 
Committee 
 

7. Next Executive Committee Meeting:  March 2, 2020 
 Next Management Committee Meeting: February 6, 2020 

 

8. Closing and Adjourn  

 



AGENDA  
SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WATERSHED MANAGEMENT AREA 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
February 6, 2020 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 

 
 
 

Debbie Neev, Chair 
Laguna Beach County Water District 

Saundra Jacobs 
Santa Margarita Water District 

Sandy Rains 
City of Laguna Niguel 

Paul Wyatt 
City of Dana Point 

Kay Havens 
El Toro Water District 
Mary Aileen Matheis 

Irvine Ranch Water District 
Bob Whalen 

City of Laguna Beach 
Erica Pezold 

City of Laguna Hills 
Carol Moore 

City of Laguna Woods 
Trish Kelley 

City of Mission Viejo 
Scott Voigts 

City of Lake Forest 
 

Tiffany Ackley, Vice Chair 
City of Aliso Viejo 

Bill Moorhead 
Moulton Niguel Water District 

Megan Yoo Schneider 
Municipal Water District of OC 

Lisa Bartlett 
County of Orange 

Brad McGirr 
City of Rancho Santa Margarita 
David Rebensdorf (Alternate) 

City of San Clemente 
Derek Reeve 

San Juan Basin Authority 
Doug Erdman 

South Coast Water District 
Rick Erkeneff 

South OC Wastewater Authority 
Ed Mandich 

Trabuco Canyon Water District 
Jack Hunt 

City of San Juan Capistrano 
 

The Watershed Management Area Executive Committee welcomes you to this meeting and 
encourages your participation.   
 

This agenda contains a brief general description of each item to be considered.  Except as 
otherwise provided by law, no action shall be taken on any items not appearing in the following 
agenda.  However, items may be taken up in a different sequence.   
 

Any member of the public wishing to speak on non-agenda items under the jurisdiction of the 
Executive Committee may do so during Public Comments (Item 2) after completing a speaker 
request card.  Those wishing to speak on agenda items may do so following the item by 
completing a speaker request card. 
 

All persons addressing the Executive Committee are requested to limit their comments to three 
minutes.   
 

Agenda Materials: www.ocwatersheds.com  

February 6, 2020 
2:30 – 4:30 p.m. 

 
Laguna Niguel Council Chambers 

30111 Crown Valley Parkway 
Laguna Niguel, CA  92677 

Map 

http://www.ocwatersheds.com/
http://g.co/maps/bxv46


_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
February 6, 2020 

WELCOME AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
ITEM # 1 INTRODUCTIONS  
  
ITEM # 2 PUBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS)  
  
ITEM # 3 APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
  

Recommended Action:  Approve the minutes of the November 7, 2019 meeting.  
  

ITEM # 4 SALT AND NUTRIENT MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE 
 AMBER BAYLOR, SOCWA   
  

Recommended Action:  Receive and file.  

  
ITEM # 5 SOCWA RECREATIONAL WATER QUALITY RESEARCH UPDATE 

AMBER BAYLOR, SOCWA 

  

Recommended Action:  Receive and file.  

 
ITEM # 6 DRAFT WATER RESILIENCE PORTFOLIO RECOMMENDATIONS 

JENNA VOSS, COUNTY OF ORANGE  
  

Recommended Action:  Receive and file.  

  
ITEM # 7 STATE UPDATES AND POTENTIAL WATER BOND 

JENNA VOSS 

  

Recommended Action:  Receive and file.  

   
ITEM # 8 EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT  
  
ITEM # 9 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS  
  
ITEM # 10 ADJOURNMENT   

Next meeting date: May 14, 2019 



 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
February 6, 2020 

AGENDA STAFF REPORTS 

 

ITEM # 1. INTRODUCTIONS 
 
 

ITEM # 2. PUBLIC COMMENTS, NON-AGENDA TOPICS 
 
Any member of the public wishing to speak on non-agenda items under the jurisdiction of the 
Executive Committee may do so during Public Comments by submitting a completed speaker 
request card to the Committee staff.  Those wishing to speak on agenda items may do so following 
the item by completing a speaker request card. 

All persons addressing the Executive Committee are requested to limit their comments to three 
minutes. 
 

ITEM # 3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 7, 2019 FOR APPROVAL 
 

Date and Location: November 7, 2019 2:30 – 4:30 p.m.  
Laguna Niguel Council Chambers 
30111 Crown Valley Parkway 
Laguna Niguel, CA  92677 

 
**Audio recording for the November 7, 2019 meeting is available here. Recording times noted in the 

minutes correspond to that item on the recording. ** 

ITEM # 1 Roll Call/Self-Introductions  

Debbie Neev, Chair, Laguna Beach County Water District  

Tiffany Ackley, Vice-Chair, City of Aliso Viejo 

Elaine Gennawey, City of Laguna Niguel 

Rick Erkeneff, South OC Wastewater Authority 

Jack Hunt, City of San Juan Capistrano 

Erica Pezold, City of Laguna Hills 

Carol Moore, City of Laguna Woods 

Kay Havens, El Toro Water District 

Bill Moorehead, Moulton Niguel Water District 

Paul Wyatt, City of Dana Point 

Norris Brandt, for Derek Reeve, San Juan Basin Authority 

Rich Schlesinger, for Trish Kelley, City of Mission Viejo 

Ed Mandich, Trabuco Canyon Water District 

Mark Tettemer, for Mary Aileen Matheis, Irvine Ranch Water District 

https://ocgov.box.com/s/2s20zine7qpudxlrldwr9mgdbvbyrajw


_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
February 6, 2020 

Wayne Rayfield, for Doug Erdman, South Coast Water District 

Saundra Jacobs, Santa Margarita Water District 

Megan Yoo Schneider, Municipal Water District of OC 

Brendan Dugan, for Brad McGirr, City of Rancho Santa Margarita 

Bob Whalen, City of Laguna Beach 

ITEM # 2 Public Comments (Non-Agenda Items)  

There were no public comments on non-agenda items.  

ITEM # 3 Approval of Minutes  

The minutes of the August 8, 2019 meeting were presented to the Executive Committee for approval.  

Recommended Action: Approve the minutes of the August 8, 2019 meeting. 

Motion:  Approve minutes   
First/Second:     Tiffany Ackley/Saundra Jacobs 
Abstained:    None  
Outcome:    Approved unanimously 
 
ITEM # 4 2020 Meeting Dates (Recording: 00:04:50)  
 
The 2020 meeting dates of February 6, May 14, August 6 and November 5 were presented to the Executive 
Committee for approval.   

Recommended Action:  Approve the proposed 2020 meeting dates of February 6, May 14, August 6 and 
November 5. 

Motion:  Approve proposed 2020 meeting dates 
First/Second:     Saundra Jacobs/Wayne Rayfield 
Abstained:  None  
Outcome:    Approved unanimously 
 
ITEM # 5 Proposition 1 IRWM Implementation Grant Project Slate Final Approval (Recording: 

00:05:27) – Presenter: Jenna Voss, County of Orange County 
 
Ms. Jenna Voss, County of Orange provided an overview of the slate of projects recommended for funding 
by the stakeholders at the August 8, 2019 meeting and requested re-approval after receiving and 
considering feedback on the project slate by the state Department of Water Resources (DWR) to move 
forward with submitting the final application due to DWR in December. The $2.33 million in projects and 
County administration approved by the stakeholders and Committee will be submitted collectively in one 
comprehensive application. 
 
Ms. Debbie Neev, Ms. Megan Yoo Schneider, and Mr. Rick Erkeneff, asked Ms. Voss asked about next steps 
after the final application is submitted, whether or not we could replace a project rejected by DWR, and if 
there was a match cap requirement for projects in the proposal. Ms. Voss replied that after application 
submittal, the state will provide a draft recommendation for funding, followed by a formal offer of funding 
and drafting of agreements. Regarding replacing a project not accepted by DWR, we may have the 
opportunity to put a different project in its place but most likely we would need to wait for the next round 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
February 6, 2020 

of funding. Regarding a funding cap, Ms. Voss clarified that DWR requires the full project slate to have a 50 
percent match, and each project included in the slate meets or exceeds this standard.  
 
Recommended Action: Re-approve recommended project slate for submittal of a $2.33 million Proposition 
1 Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Implementation Grant Final Application Package to the 
California Department of Water Resources for the four projects recommended for funding consideration 
from the IRWM Plan. 
 
Motion:  Re-Approve the recommendation staff at the $2.33 million Proposition 1 funds for 

the projects outlined. 
First/Second:     Tiffany Ackley/Saundra Jacobs 
Abstained:  None  
Outcome:    Approved unanimously 
 
ITEM # 6  Data Management System Website Update (Recording: 00:13:23) – Presenters: Jenna Voss & 

Andrew McGuire, County of Orange 
 
Ms. Voss and Mr. Andrew McGuire provided an update and a brief demonstration of the South Orange 
County Data Management System (DMS) website. For more information about the site, please visit 
www.southocirwm.org.  
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file.  

ITEM # 7 Water Quality Improvement Plan Studies & Updates (Recording: 00:22:41) – Presenter: 
Grant Sharp, County of Orange 

 
Mr. Sharp provided a brief overview of the South Orange County Watershed Management Area (WMA) 
Water Quality Improvement Plan (WQIP) and the status on the Comprehensive Human Waste Source 
Reduction Strategy (CHWSRS) Work Plan and the Flow Ecology Special Study. For more information about 
these efforts, please visit the WQIP website at: 
http://www.ocwatersheds.com/documents/south_oc_water_quality_improvement_plan_(wqip) 
 
 a) Comprehensive Human Waste Source Reduction Strategy Work Plan (Recording: 00:30:48) – 

Presenters: Cindy Rivers, County of Orange & Clint Bosschen, Tetra Tech 
 
Ms. Rivers provided an overview of the Comprehensive Human Waste Source Reduction Strategy (CHWSRS) 
Work Plan, the first step in addressing pathogen health risk, a key commitment of the WQIP. Inter-agency 
coordination is essential to the plan, so the cities and County have actively engaged the SOCWMA 
Management Committee. Mr. Clint Bosschen provided an overview of the tiered monitoring and assessment 
framework outlining a step-by-step process for assessing current conditions in the WMA and prioritizing 
areas for investigation and abatement activities. Mr. Bosschen provided an overview of a catchment 
prioritization approach developed to help target monitoring/abatement efforts and focus resources. 
 
Several Committee members discussed this item, and asked Ms. Rivers clarifying questions ranging from the 
definition of a dry weather source, to how the plan will ensure coordination with cities or other groups 
working on similar issues, to how areas will be re-prioritized once all of the identified areas have been 
addressed or if the finding was related to a transient source of human waste. Ms. Rivers responded to 
Committee member inquiries, noting that the Permittees collectively are working together, including the 
San Clemente pier task force, and that as other areas are investigated based upon monitoring results, 
special teams of experts relevant to that area will coordinate on the investigation. 

http://www.southocirwm.org/
http://www.ocwatersheds.com/documents/south_oc_water_quality_improvement_plan_(wqip)


_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
February 6, 2020 

 
Additional Committee questions pertained to education and outreach and the stakeholder group working 
with the Permittees on the CHWSRS Work Plan.  Ms. Rivers clarified that education and outreach efforts are 
identified in the Work Plan and will be developed in collaboration with representatives from the 
Management Committee, where applicable. Several Committee members recommended stakeholders to 
include in the process, such as private organizations adjacent to areas of concern. 
 
Mr. Rayfield and Chair Neev requested updates on the CHWSRS Work Plan, including as agenda items at 
future Committee meetings.  
 
For the full Committee discussion, please listen to the audio recording for the November 7, 2019 meeting 
available here. 
 
Public Comment (7a) (Recording: 01:06:41): 
Ms. Amber Baylor, South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA), thanked the County and staff for 
working with them on the CHWSRS Work Plan. Ms. Baylor also updated the Committee on research they are 
conducting at SOCWA, including an eight-week research project focused on identifying bacteria present in 
surface water. Committee members thanked Ms. Baylor for her update. A request for more information at a 
future Committee meeting was recorded by staff. 
 

 b) South Orange County Flow Ecology Special Study (Recording: 01:25:44) – Presenters: Aaron Poresky, 
Geosyntec & Kris Taniguchi-Quan, SCCWRP   

 
Mr. Poresky and Ms. Taniguchi-Quan provided an overview of the South Orange County Flow Ecology Special 
Study, including progress to date, methodology, and next steps. The study seeks to identify urban impacts 
on in-stream flows to best guide management actions and project development to meet the milestones of 
the WQIP. Ms. Taniguchi- Quan provided an overview of flow ecology, which considers flow related to 
biology and in-stream habitat. She went over the types of data being collected to prioritize flows for further 
management actions, and to inform future projects and watershed planning efforts. 
 
Several Committee members asked clarifying questions on both the study and the stakeholder engagement 
process to develop and implement the study. Mr. Poresky described the broad-ranging stakeholder advisory 
group advising the process, which is inclusive of many of the agencies represented by the Committee. Ms. 
Taniguchi-Quan added that additional representatives with expertise in flow ecology and ecological 
communities are also engaged (e.g. California Department of Fish and Wildlife).  
 
In response to questions from Committee members regarding data sources and intent of the study, 
Mr. Poresky clarified that the team developing the study are considering other agency/organization data 
sets, such as the San Juan Basin Authority’s San Juan Creek modeling. Also, Mr. Poresky clarified that the 
study itself will not produce projects, but rather be used as a baseline tool to evaluate projects for their 
potential impact and benefit on flow balance, not to assess whether or not projects will happen.  Additional 
clarification was provided regarding how the study will consider climate scenarios. 
 
For the full Committee discussion, please listen to the audio recording for the November 7, 2019 meeting 
available here. 
 
Public Comment (7b) (Recording: 02:06:09): 
Ms. Betty Burnett, SOCWA recognized the progress the South OC IRWM Group has made over the last 15 
years of collaboration, and noted that consideration should also be made while working collaboratively, for 

https://ocgov.box.com/s/2s20zine7qpudxlrldwr9mgdbvbyrajw
https://ocgov.box.com/s/2s20zine7qpudxlrldwr9mgdbvbyrajw


_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
February 6, 2020 

investments individual agencies are making respective of their goals, mandates and available resources.  Ms. 
Burnett also requested that the group consider how we are communicating with the San Diego Regional 
Water Quality Control Board. 
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file. 
 
ITEM # 8 Executive Officer’s Report (Recording: 02:08:45) – Presenter: Amanda Carr, County of Orange  
 
Ms. Amanda Carr, County of Orange provided updates on the Aliso Creek Watershed Project Collaboration 
Group meetings, water resilience portfolio effort from the governor's office, and memorial service for Nancy 
Palmer. Additionally, Ms. Carr noted that Count of Orange staff organized a meeting of resource and 
regulatory agencies to open dialogue about potential conflicts between NPDES and resource agency permit 
requirements.  
 
Ms. Neev asked if the intent was to hold regular meetings with these entities; Ms. Carr confirmed.  

ITEM # 9 Executive Committee Member Comments (Recording: 02:12:34)  

Ms. Schneider stated, regarding the CHWSRS Work Plan discussed today, State Water Resources Control 
Board member Tam M. Doduc mentioned she is interested in this topic and looking for resources statewide.  

Ms. Jacobs asked the County to bring the Salt Nutrient Management Plan update to a future meeting of the 
Committee. Ms. Carr informed her that will be covered in the February meeting. 

ITEM #10  Adjournment (Recording: 02:15:06)  



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
February 6, 2020 

Non-Committee Attendees: 
Hal Ghafari City of Laguna Niguel 
Shawn Pelleffier City of Aliso Viejo 
Moy Yahya City of Aliso Viejo 
Mark Mountford Moulton Niguel Water District 
Laura Rocha Moulton Niguel Water District 
Betty Olson San Diego Regional Board 
Henry Abarbanel San Diego Regional Board 
Hal Schielenger Bio Clean Environmental 
Afnann Alseraji College Student 
Denise Vivas College Student 
Roger Butow Clean Water Now 
Steve Dishon South Coast Water District 
Dennis Cafferty El Toro Water District 
Christopher Regan Laguna Beach County Water District 
Aaron Poresky Geosyntec Consultants 
Clint Bosschen Tetra Tech 
Kris Taniguchi-Quan SCCWRP 
Amber Baylor SOCWA 
Don Bonts Santa Margarita Water District 
Justin McCluster Santa Margarita Water District 
Hasan Nouri Fluvial Tech Inc. 
Betty Burnett SOCWA 
  
County Staff: 
Amanda Carr, Grant Sharp, Jenna Voss, Andrew McGuire, Cindy Rivers, 
Maria Tamez, Ryane Staley 
 

END MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 7, 2019 FOR APPROVAL 

 
Recommended Action:   Approve the minutes of the November 7, 2019 meeting. 
 

ITEM # 4.  SALT AND NUTRIENT MANAGEMENT PLAN UPDATE  
 
The Salt and Nutrient Management Plan (SNMP) describes how water and wastewater agencies will 
collaboratively manage salts, nutrients, and other significant chemical compounds on a watershed- or basin-
wide basis.  These plans are intended to streamline permitting of new recycled water projects while 
ensuring compliance with water quality objectives and protection of beneficial uses.  SOCWA received IRWM 
funds through the Proposition 84 IRWM Planning Grant, to ensure compliance with Proposition 84 IRWM 
Plan Standards requiring completion and inclusion of an SNMP in the South OC IRWM Plan. The SNMP 
remains a key component of the 2018 IRWM Plan, included in summary as Section 13, and in full as 
Appendix G. 
  
The SNMP was submitted to the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board (SDRWQCB) for approval 
on July 25, 2014 in compliance with the State Water Resources Control Board 2009 update to the Recycled 
Water Policy. The SNMP committed to seven implementation actions to support recycled water reuse within 
the San Juan Creek Watershed portion of the South Orange County Wastewater Agency (SOCWA) service 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
February 6, 2020 

area.  Implementation measure number six in the SNMP required a Five-Year update to assess the recycled 
water usage and impacts to the groundwater basins within the San Juan Basin hydrologic sub-areas.   
 
The SNMP identified required adjustments to total dissolved solids (TDS) water quality objectives in the 
basin plan that are accomplished by the SDRWQCB’s triennial review process, the development and 
implementation of an SNMP monitoring program to assess water quality trends, addressing any changes 
realized but not projected in the 2014 modeling efforts due to limited availability of SNMP specific data, and 
performing updates to assess water quality trends and recycled water usage impacts in the groundwater 
basins within the San Juan Basin hydrologic sub-areas. The first five-year update was initiated earlier this 
year. Overlap monitoring locations are included in the SOCWA Master Recycled Water Permit which will aid 
in the updated modeling and planning for SNMP related efforts. 
 
This update provides a snap shot of the monitoring activities and associated work conducted associated with 
the SNMP. Amber Baylor, Director of Environmental Compliance at SOCWA, will provide the committee with 
an update of the SNMP next steps. 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and file. 
 

ITEM # 5.  SOCWA RECREATIONAL WATER QUALITY RESEARCH UPDATE 
 
Following on a request at the November 2019 Committee meeting, Ms. Amber Baylor, Director of 
Environmental Compliance at the South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA), will provide an 
overview of the Recreational Water Quality Research Plan currently underway. 
 
To address the fundamental human health risk questions related to bacterial Total Maximum Daily Loading 
(TMDL) compliance, SOCWA began initial investigation of false positives in the EPA 1600 Method test. The 
EPA Method 1600 is an EPA-approved approach for quantifying Enterococci in water samples, providing a 
direct count based upon the growth of colonies on the surface of a membrane filter.  False positives are 
considered sources from environmental bacteria that do not pose a risk to human health. In March 2019, 
SOCWA’s laboratory began speciation of Enterococcus species from colonies growing on membranes using 
EPA Method 1600 and expanded the project through assistance with an intern over the summer of 2019 
period.   
 
SOCWA conducts weekly sampling of the shoreline between Laguna Beach and San Clemente as required by 
the Unified Beach Monitoring Program in the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
permits.  The research builds on the question of human health risk utilizing traditional fecal indicator 
bacteria (FIB) methods that are tied to compliance criteria established by AB 4111 and the bacterial TMDLs 
applicable to South Orange County per REC-1 (recreational contact) standards.  The results of the eight week 
program conducted by the SOCWA intern over the summer period indicate a large concentration of 
naturalized bacteria present and not of human origin.  SOCWA will expand upon the research to assist the 
County in meeting compliance needs. For a more detailed description of this research, please refer to the 
SOCWA Engineering Committee Meeting staff report of November 14, 20192 linked in the footnote below. 
 

                                                           
1 AB 411 chaptered into law in 1997 added to the California Health and Safety Code specifications for the California 
beach water quality monitoring program that samples FIB and provides public notification if it is safe to swim at any of 
the 476 California beaches.  The US EPA Recreational Water Quality Criteria are intended to protect human health in 
inland and coastal waters by protecting primary contact recreation, such as swimming or surfing. 
2 SOCWA Engineering Committee Meeting on November 14, 2019 (Agenda Item 5): http://www.socwa.com/wp-
content/uploads/2019/11/Complete-Engr-Comm.-Packet_11.14.19.pdf 

https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.socwa.com%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2019%2F11%2FComplete-Engr-Comm.-Packet_11.14.19.pdf&data=02%7C01%7CJenna.Voss%40ocpw.ocgov.com%7Cb77146cdbc894082da2e08d7a03b4bee%7Ce4449a56cd3d40baae3225a63deaab3b%7C0%7C1%7C637154048856729759&sdata=FrlOKZvmaAF2oWRdP9AVDHvHzdle5HHNf3D7pd1086g%3D&reserved=0
https://gcc01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.socwa.com%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2019%2F11%2FComplete-Engr-Comm.-Packet_11.14.19.pdf&data=02%7C01%7CJenna.Voss%40ocpw.ocgov.com%7Cb77146cdbc894082da2e08d7a03b4bee%7Ce4449a56cd3d40baae3225a63deaab3b%7C0%7C1%7C637154048856729759&sdata=FrlOKZvmaAF2oWRdP9AVDHvHzdle5HHNf3D7pd1086g%3D&reserved=0


_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
February 6, 2020 

Ms. Baylor will provide the committee with an update of the findings and the next steps. 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and file. 
 

ITEM # 6.  DRAFT WATER RESILIENCE PORTFOLIO RECOMMENDATIONS 
  
Ms. Jenna Voss will provide the Committee an update on the IRWM Roundtable of Regions (Roundtable) - 
an ad hoc group of representatives from IRWM regions around the State – which will again be providing 
input on local, regional and state-wide water resource planning priorities at in a comment letter to the 
California Natural Resources Agency regarding the Governor’s Draft Water Resiliency Portfolio (Draft 
Portfolio) released for public comment on January 3, 2020.  Comments are due February 7, 2020. 
 
The Roundtable provides a forum for people working on IRWM to discuss those interests and to share their 
successes and challenges. It also provides a coordinated mechanism for collaborating on providing input to 
the State on the IRWM program, including developing consensus responses to State agency information 
requests. Per the latter, Ms. Voss, as a member of the Roundtable Steering Committee, is working with 
representatives from several State agencies to respond to the draft Portfolio recommendations.  
 
Ms. Voss will provide an overview of the Draft Portfolio, including how the recommendations included 
therein address the comments submitted on behalf of the SOCWMA IRWM Group on September 20, 2019. 
The SOCWMA comment letter is included as Appendix A for your reference.  
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and file. 
 

ITEM # 7.  STATE UPDATES AND POTENTIAL WATER BOND 
 
Ms. Jenna Voss will provide an update on relevant State legislative activity for Committee and stakeholder 
reference, including several water bond bills currently going through committees.  Additionally, Ms. Voss will 
provide an overview of the climate resilience portion of Governor Newsom’s FY 2020-21 Budget Summary 
released in mid-January 2020.  Included in the governor’s proposed budget is a Climate Resilience section 
tied very closely with implementation of the Draft Portfolio. Ms. Voss will provide an overview of this 
portion of the budget, including the proposed $4.75 billion Climate Resilience Bond that would fund $2.925 
billion for drinking water, flood, and drought preparedness. 
 
The Roundtable is working closely with Nancy Vogel, California Natural Resource Agency, and primary 
author of the Draft Portfolio. This close coordination is intended to ensure comments submitted for the 
Draft Portfolio, and input provided to the State Legislature on water bonds, are supportive of IRWM Grant 
funding and other technical assistance for IRWM Regions necessary for implementing the recommendations 
of the Draft Portfolio. Ms. Voss will update the Committee on coordination between the Roundtable, Nancy 
Vogel, the California Stormwater Quality Association (CASQA) and the Association of California Water 
Agencies (ACWA). 
 
Recommended Action: Receive and file.  
 

ITEM # 8.  EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT  
 
Ms. Amanda Carr, County of Orange, will provide an update on several ongoing projects and efforts within 
the South Orange County Watershed Management Area.   

 

http://waterresilience.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/California-Water-Resilience-Portfolio-2019-Final2.pdf


_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
February 6, 2020 

Recommended Action: Receive and file.  

 

ITEM # 9.  EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS  
 
 

ITEM # 10.  ADJOURNMENT 
  
Next meeting date:  May 14, 2020 
 

  



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

South Orange County Watershed Management Area Executive Committee     
February 6, 2020 

Appendix A: SOCWMA IRWM Group Water Resilience Portfolio Comment Letter 
 
 
 



SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY 
IRWM GROUP 

September 20, 2019 

Ms. Nancy Vogel 
California Natural Resources Agency 
1303 10t h St., Suite 1173 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

Submitted electronically to: input@waterresilience.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: California Water Resilience Portfolio Initiative Input from South Orange County Watershed 
Management Area (SOCWMA) Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Group 

Dear Ms. Vogel: 

The County of Orange1 on behalf of the South Orange County Watershed Management Area (SOCWMA) 
Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) Group comprising 22 Member Agencies2 and other 
regional stakeholders submit the following comments on the California Water Resilience Portfolio 
Initiative (Portfolio) for your consideration. In addition to soliciting feedback from stakeholders at a 
public discussion of the Portfolio at an August 8, 2019 meeting, SOCWMA IRWM Group representatives 
coordinated with the IRWM Roundtable of Regions (Roundtable), and California Stormwater Quality 
Association (CASQA), and drew from collaborative efforts with the Association of California Water 
Agencies (ACWA) in developing this letter. 

IRWM represents a construct for collaborative water resource management, holistically addressing the 
issues and differing perspectives of all entities involved in water management through mutually 
beneficial solutions. The IRWM Program is managed by the Department of Water Resources, and 
implemented at regional and local scales state-wide. The SOCWMA IRWM Group takes pride in the 
collaborative efforts initiated and consistently supported in the San Diego Funding Area and South 
Orange County IRWM Region. To date, the SOCWMA IRWM Group has successfully applied for and 
received approximately $36 million in IRWM Grant funds, supporting a total local investment of almost 
$216 million in 24 multi-benefit water resource projects in the region. 

1 The County of Orange administers the IRWM Group on behalf of regional stakeholders, representing the staff for 
the DWR-recognized SOCWMA IRWM Region. 

2 County of Orange, Cities of Aliso Viejo, Dana Point, Laguna Beach, Laguna Hills, Laguna Niguel, Laguna Woods, 
Lake Forest, Mission Viejo, Rancho Santa Margarita, San Clemente, and San Juan Capistrano, as well as El Toro 
Water District, Irvine Ranch Water District, Laguna Beach County Water District, Moulton Niguel Water District, 
Municipal Water District of Orange County, San Juan Basin Authority, Santa Margarita Water District, South Coast 
Water District, South Orange County Wastewater Authority, and Trabuco Canyon Water District. 

601 N. Ross Street. Santa Ana, CA 92701 

P.O. Box 4048, Santa Ana, CA 92702-4048 

www.ocpublicworks.com 

714.667.8800 I lnfo@OCPW.ocgov.com 

https://water.ca.gov/Programs/Integrated-Regional-Water-Management


Ms. Nancy Vogel 
September 20, 2019 
Page 2 of 8 

Echoing the comments provided by the Roundtable3, the SOCWMA IRWM Group agrees that the IRWM 
approach should be considered as the foundation for Governor Newsom's Water Resilience Portfolio. 
IRWM provides a stakeholder-driven structure that comprises local project planning and prioritization, 
involvement by under-represented communities, resource-based management, and has been field-
tested for more than a decade in locations stretching from the North Coast to the Imperial Valley. State 
staff and stakeholders are thinking broadly about how to build climate-resilient water systems and 
healthy waterways that tackle the multi-dimensional problems surrounding water resources. Over the 
past few months, discussions in water circles around the state have focused on how to develop a 
collaborative process that addresses the issues of water supply resiliency, flood risk management, 
surface and groundwater quality, and needs of natural resources in a holistic manner in the face of 
climate change. IRWM provides such a process, and represents a solid structure for operationalizing 
the Water Resilience Portfolio. 

The SOCWMA IRWM Group considers IRWM an implementable framework for the Portfolio and in 
support of this recommendation submits for your consideration the following: 

1) The State should adopt the IRWM approach as the foundation for the Portfolio and utilize
IRWM Regions as a means to execute the local and regional resilience planning specifics of the 
Portfolio.

IRWM is the only suitable state-wide program for which significant resources have already been 
utilized to see realized multi-benefit projects and multi-stakeholder coordination. This is 
evidenced in areas of the state where IRWM has successfully promoted IRWM concepts, 
generated meaningful partnerships, and created efficiencies through collaboration that would 
not have existed in a silo-driven approach. The SOCWMA believes strongly that IRWM 
represents an appropriate, goal-oriented planning framework and requests that the State not 
"re-create the wheel" by developing new programs to meet the intent of the Portfolio that are 
already being met by IRWM. 

We request that the State make IRWM a priority, providing resources for intra-regional 
coordination, relationship-building, and project development; this is especially important for 
areas ofthe state where IRWM and other regional resilience planning efforts face significant 
challenges such as lack of staffing and funding, greater distance to participate, etc. Specifically, 
the SOCWMA IRWM Group requests baseline funding be added to the budget for DWR 
administration of the IRWM Program - a  recommendation echoed by IRWM Regions throughout 
the State in the DWR-published Stakeholder Perspectives - Recommendations for Sustaining and 
Strengthening Integrated Regional Water Management4. 

The SOCWMA IRWM Group has demonstrated significant local investment in both project 
implementation and the social capital involved in commiting to a stakeholder-driven process. 
To build the list of goals, measurable objectives and strategies for multi-benefit projects in our 
Region, the South OC IRWM Plan represents a compendium of resiliency planning elements 
required of the Portfolio, including (but not limited to): 

a) OC Water Reliability Study 

3 Roundtable of Regions letter was submitted for consideration on September 4, 2019. 
4 https://water.ca.gov/LegacyFiles/irwm/docs/lRWM Recommendations.pdf 

601 N. Ross Street, Santa Ana, CA 92701 

P.O. Box 4048, Santa Ana, CA 92702-4048 

www.ocpublicworks.com 

714.667.8800 I lnfo@OCPW.ocgov.com 

http://waterresilience.ca.gov/
https://water.ca.gov/LegacyFiles/irwm/docs/IRWM_Recommendations.pdf


Ms. Nancy Vogel 
September 20, 2019 
Page 3 of 8 

b) San Juan Basin Groundwater Facilities Management Plan & Optimization Plan 
c) Water Quality Improvement Plan (WQIP) for the San Juan Hyrdologic Sub-Unit 
d) South Orange County Salt and Nutrient Management Plan (SNMP) 
e) Orange County Stormwater Resource Plan (OC SWRP) 
f) 2015 Urban Water Management Plans 
g) Southern Subregion Natural Communities Conservation Plan (NCCP) 

Further, the SOCWMA IRWM Group has produced a GIS-based websites to connect project 
planners and stakeholders to the data underlying the 2018 IRWM Plan, past funded project 
benefits, and future project planning. Data from sites like this could easily be rolled up to similar 
State databases. The agencies responsible for each of these planning documents and the data 
included in the GIS-based website have collectively invested significant resources in their 
development and integration through participation in the SOCWMA IRWM Planning process. 
These local agencies/entities are the most knowledgeable on the data inputs and resultant 
management objectives - this should be recognized by the state as a resource for funneling local 
resiliency planning up to the state from a bottom-up approach. 

2) State agencies should focus on regulatory alignment to recognize the benefit of a holistic 
Portfolio, breaking down silos between departments and agencies with separate authorities 
over natural and water resources to fund multi-benefit projects and to support regional multi-
sector project planning. 

The SOCWMA IRWM Group reiterates the Roundtable insistance that IRWM Regions are an 
appropriate, locally-driven means to implement the requested elements of the Portfolio, and 
that the State should look to IRWM Regions successfully implementing multi-benefit projects 
through stakeholder-driven processes. The SOCWMA IRWM Group feels strongly that their
2018 IRWM Plan showcases a considerate, balanced approach to project prioritization
supportive of local water resource portfolio planning. For example, the measurable objectives
for assessing progress with meeting regional water resource management goals are pulled from 
water supply portfolio planning, directly relating project priority to identified water supply 
needs for the region6• Similarly, protecting surface water quality is a key goal for the IRWM 
Group - as such, the WQIP developed as an accepted alternative compliance document for the 
San Diego Regional Permit was the source of measurable objectives drawn from goals 
established for the highest priority water quality conditions in the SOCWMA7• Appendix K of the 
2018 IRWM Plan summarizes all applicable measurable objectives8• 

Local agencies and organizations in the SOCWMA have spent the past 15 years developing the 
relationships necessary to break down sector-driven silos and bring together all of these 
planning priorites into one, cohesive IRWM Plan. However, the SOCWMA IRWM Group echos 
the Roundtable request for greater support from State agencies to address areas of overlapping 

5 South OC IRWM website: www.southocirwm.org 
6 OC Water Reliability Study, 2016 and 2018: https://www.mwdoc.com/your-water/water-supply/local-water-

supply/orange-county-water-supply-reliability-study/ 
7 South Orange County Watershed Management Area Water Quality Improvement Plan (WQIP): 

http://www.ocwatersheds.com/documents/south oc water quality improvement plan (wqip} 
8 South o c  IRWM Plan - see Appendix K: 

https://ocgov.app.box.com/s/2k07qmfo79qbls7kr26888m67bnnlcyz/file/297781378864 

601 N. Ross Street, Santa Ana, CA 92701 

P.O. Box 4048, Santa Ana, CA 92702-4048 

www.ocpublicworks.com 

714.667.8800 I lnfo@OCPW.ocgov.com 

http://www.ocwatersheds.com/documents/south_oc_water_quality_improvement_plan_(wqip)
https://ocgov.app.box.com/s/2k07qmfo79qbls7kr26888m67bnn1cyz/file/297781378864
www.southocirwm.org
https://www.mwdoc.com/your-water/water-supply/local-water-supply/orange-county-water-supply-reliability-study/
https://www.mwdoc.com/your-water/water-supply/local-water-supply/orange-county-water-supply-reliability-study/


Ms. Nancy Vogel 
September 20, 2019 
Page 4 of 8 

jurisdiction. For example, protection and enhancement of natural resources is one of the four 
primary goals for the 2018 IRWM Plan. In order to develop truly integrated projects, conflicts 
between WQIP priorites to reduce dry weather flows to comply with the San Diego Regional 
NPDES Permit9 and state and federal resource agency (CDFW, USFWS) requirements to maintain 
flows for recognized habitat must be addressed at both the local and state levels. 

The SOCWMA IRWM Group requests that regulatory alignment be a focus of the Portfolio - truly 
integrated projects are stymied by mis-aligned or conflicting regulatory drivers that could be 
alleviated though state-level coordination. Speaking a common language through an IRWM 
approach for local resource prioritization presents an opportunity for state agencies to support 
integrated projects whilst meeting regulatory requirements. The SOCWMA IRWM Group 
requests that the Portfolio recommendations direct state agencies responsible for water 
resource regulation and project review to examine opportunities to meet their objectives 
through an integrated planning approach - this should include coordination with local 
practitioners, the Roundtable, California Stormwater Quality Association (CASQA), Association of 
California Water Agencies (ACWA), etc. 

3) The IRWM approach provides significant benefits that can be best utilized at a state-wide level
by working closely with interested stakeholders and looking to successful IRWM Regions like 
the SOCWMA IRWM Group. 

a) Dynamic stakeholder representation and engagement: The SOCWMA IRWM Group 
represents entities responsible for groundwater, surface water (stormwater), water supply, 
wastewater, and habitat (including mitigation). Engaged stakeholders represent elected 
officials, resource agencies, non-profits/NGOs, and residents of impacted communities. 
Local IRWM Groups like the SOCWMA IRWM Group represent the level at which project-
based planning collaboration takes place; this should be supported by State actions taken as 
a result of Portfolio recommendations. 

b) Local, stakeholder-driven outreach through local IRWM Regions is necessary to continue to 
address the needs of under-represented communities: In partnership with the San Diego 
Funding Area partners, collectively representing the Tri-County Funding Area Coordianting 
Committee (Tri-FACC), the SOCWMA IRWM Group completed the San Diego Funding Area 
Disadvantaged Community (DAC) Water Needs Assessment (WNA) in mid-2019; a
companion Orange County-wide version is still in development. During the process to 
develop the WNAs, it was apparent that grassroots, community-level engagement was the 
best approach to soliciting DAC community feedback- a realization that will improve the 
South Orange County portion of both WNAs through extended outreach to community and 
Tribal organizations. Relationship building is a long, and intensive process. DAC and Tribal 
engagement must be conducted at localized scales to best address the specific needs of
communities; a state-wide top-down, one-sized fits all approach will not be successful. This 

9 South Orange County Watershed Management Area Water Quality Improvement Plan (WQIP} - Unnatural water 
balance fact sheet: http://prg.ocpublicworks.com/Docmgmtlnternet/Download.aspx?id=14 76 

601 N. Ross Street, Santa Ana, CA 92701 

P.O. Box 4048, Santa Ana, CA 92702-4048 

www.ocpublicworks.com 

714.667.8800 I lnfo@OCPW.ocgov.com 

http://prg.ocpublicworks.com/DocmgmtInternet/Download.aspx?id=1476


Ms. Nancy Vogel 
September 20, 2019 
Page 5 of 8 

is similarly echoed in a comments submitted by the San Diego IRWM. 10 

The SOCWMA IRWM Group feels strongly that IRWM Regions illustrating successful 
engagement of diverse stakeholders should be utilized for establishment of best practices 
state-wide. The IRWM Program represents one of the only state-wide, regionally-based 
programs that integrates DAC and Tribal outreach into programmatic documents and 
required project prioritization considerations. As such, the SOCWMA IRWM Group requests 
state consideration for using IRWM Regions successfully engaging DAC and Tribal 
communities as models for other IRWM Regions to emulate. Guidance developed from a 
local perspective based upon years, sometimes decades of work, should serve as the basis 
for meeting the requested elements of the Portfolio related to under-represented 
communities. To this end, the SOCWMA IRWM Group also requests that the state consider 
the IRWM Program as the implementing arm of the Safe and Affordable Drinking Water 
Fund (SB 200). 

c) Established governance for multi-benefit project planning: A multi-stakeholder process to 
establish regional resiliency project planning and funding priorities is necessary for the 
required elements of the Portfolio. The SOCWMA IRWM Group has established an extensive, 
stakeholder-driven project review process to prioritize state IRWM Grant funds11• This
process relies heavily on the regional planning documents cited in comment 1, including 
water supply resiliency goals (QC Water Reliability Study), surface water quality targets 
(WQIP), and groundwater optimization (San Juan Basin Optimization Plan). Similarly, the 
SOCWMA IRWM Group echoes the ACWA IRWM Policy Principles12(Principles), which 
identify IRWM as a hub for diverse, regional, stakeholder engagement with established 
governance structures to support the balance of diverse interests in a region. Additionally, 
the Principles articulate that projects developed and funded through IRWM result in 
measurable local and regional benefits and that benefits and regional data associated with 
these projects should be integrated with statewide water resource management. 

Local project prioritization in the South QC IRWM Plan supports other local project planning, 
prioritization and funding. The Management Objectives of the OC SWRP reflect the IRWM 
Plan goals, measurable objectives and strategies that form the basis of project prioritization 
for the region. Reflective of comments on the Portfolio submitted by CASQA13, the 
Roundtable is working closely with CASQA leadership, DWR and SWRCB staff to better 
incorporate stormwater into IRWM Plan prioritization processes. Indeed, the SOCWMA 
IRWM Group feels that the South OC IRWM Plan is already reflective of the integration 
needed between stormwater and other water resource management in resiliency planning 
and requests that the state consider examples like the South OC IRWM Plan in developing 
their specific Portfolio recommendations. 

10 San Diego Integrated Regional Water Management Program letter submitted by Mark Stadler on September 9, 
2019. 

11 South QC 2018 IRWM Plan - Section 6, Appendix K 
12 https://www.acwa.com/resources/integrated-regional-water-management-policy-principles/ 
13 California Stormwater Quality Association {CASQA) comment letter submitted by Daniel Apt September 9, 2019. 

601 N. Ross Street, Santa Ana, CA 92701 

P .0. Box 4048, Santa Ana, CA 92702-4048 

www.ocpublicworks.com 

714.667.8800 I lnfo@OCPW.ocgov.com 

https://www.acwa.com/resources/integrated-regional-water-management-policy-principles/


Ms. Nancy Vogel 
September 20, 2019 
Page 6 of 8 

d) Regional resiliency and climate change planning: IRWM Plans are required to consider 
climate change in project planning, including integrating climate change considerations into 
their plan goals, objectives and strategies - the building blocks of integrated project 
prioritization14• The South OC IRWM Plan meets and exceeds these standards; the IRWM 
Plan goals, measurable objectives and weighted strategies developed through a stakeholder-
driven process to prioritize projects for funding- have been modified in the 2018 IRWM Plan 
to explicitly recognize climate change. 

The SOCWMA IRWM Group has a documented track record of supporting local water 
resiliency through project planning and setting regional priorities for collaborative efforts
and resource allocation. Indeed, a majority of the 24 projects funded through the IRWM 
Grant program for SOCWMA have supported local resiliency goals. Central to these efforts 
are also extensive studies identifying key supply portfolio diversification needs, including 
(but not limited to): water use efficiency research (e.g. updating Water Use Classification of
Landscape Species database for plant classifications), education and financial incentives to 
change public perception and behavior; beneficial use of stormwater through capture and 
use; support for direct potable reuse and the need for raw water augmentation regulations 
reflective of SOCWMA's limited resources for groundwater or surface water capacity as 
environmental buffers; and calls for further State engagement in salinity control efforts in 
the Colorado River Basin to reduce impacts on local treatment systems15. 

e) Project tracking and data management: The SOCWMA IRWM Group has invested in an ESRI 
GIS-driven website to best integrate geospatial water resource data with regional project 
planning efforts; we request that the state look to successful models like ours as a blueprint
for rolling up project planning data to state-wide databases. Echoing the Roundtable letter, 
the SOCWMA IRWM Group requests that state support and implement the Water 
Sustainability Atlas16 supportive of better state-wide data integration, looking to local IRWM 
Regions for stakeholder input on the process. Also, IRWM Regions need resources for 
consistent data management, technical assistance to utilize GIS as a ubiquitous format, and 
support for collecting data that is now provided on a volunteer basis unless required 
expressly by the grant reporting structure. The SOCWMA IRWM Group recommends that the 
state look to the Roundtable to assist in further refining data management state-wide. 

14 Vulnerability analyses are required in the IRWM Plan Standards, at a minimum these must be equivalent to the 
equivalent assessment in the DWR Climate Change Handbook for Regional Water Planning, Section 4 and 
Appendix B. This is further described in the IRWM Proposition 1 IRWM Program Guidelines- Volume 2 - IRWM 
Planning Standards (pgs 42-43, 69-72). 

15 Includes requests by SOCWMA Member Agencies to fill California appointee positions on the Colorado River 
Basin Salinity Control Forum to support water resiliency planning for areas reliant on imported water. 

16 https://water.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-Pages/Programs/California-Water-
Pla n /Docs/U pdate2018/Fi na I/Su pporti ngDocs/Re port-on-the-Water-Sustain a bi I ity-Atl as-Pi lot-Project-with-
Reco mm endati o ns. pdf 

601 N. Ross Street, Santa Ana, CA 92701 

P.O. Box 4048, Santa Ana, CA 92702-4048 

www.ocpublicworks.com 

714.667.8800 I lnfo@OCPW.ocgov.com 

https://water.ca.gov/-/media/DWR-Website/Web-Pages/Programs/California-Water-Plan/Docs/Update2018/Final/SupportingDocs/Report-on-the-Water-Sustainability-Atlas-Pilot-Project-with-Recommendations.pdf


Ms. Nancy Vogel 
September 20, 2019 
Page 7 of 8 

4) Recognition for significant local investment has driven water resilience and water resource
project planning, IRWM has leveraged state funding at a ratio of 4:1 - a great ROI for state
funds. 

The SOCWMA IRWM Group reiterates Roundtable assertion that IRWM Regions have done 
assessments and multi-year planning estimates of water demands and supplies, and feels that
resiliency planning is locally-driven. Indeed, a "one size fits all" approach would not capture the
nuanced challenges with marrying multi-jurisdictional, multi-sector, prioritization efforts.
Examples of successful local models should be referenced in developing the Portfolio
recommendations. Holistic views are easier taken with a smaller perview.

As noted previously, the SOCWMA IRWM Group has already invested considerable time,
resources, and funds in multi-benefit, regional, resilience projects. As noted in the Roundatble
comments, IRWM Regions across the state have invested in 3-4 times the state investment in 
regional projects supportive of Portfolio goals; the South OC IRWM Planning approach has 
successfully matched $35.9 million in state IRWM Grant funds with $179.8 million local 
investment - representing a total investment of $215.7 million in 24 projects. SOCWMA 
Member Agencies feel this is indicative of significant local investments in time, funding, and 
project planning that should be recognized, and IRWM planning efforts like those showcased in 
the SOCWMA be upheld as examples for how IRWM can and should be the implementing
framework for the Portfolio.

5) State agencies preparing the Portfolio should review the successes, barriers, and direct
feedback from IRWM Regions in their consideration of IRWM as a preferred platform for the
Portfolio

Echoing the Roundtable letter summarizing survey results from across the state, the SOCWMA 
IRWM Group feels it is imperative that this feedback be reviewed to identify what's working and 
the barriers to success in other areas of the state. IRWM Regions cover 87% ofthe land area 
and 99% of the population of the state - this level of planning is not reflected in other state-
wide programs and should be improved upon, better resourced, and further supported by state
agencies to best realize the requested elements of the Portfolio. IRWM as a planning framework
fosters cooperative decision-making, efficient use of resources, conflict reduction/resolution,
financial leveraging, and increased regional self-reliance - all imperative to execution ofthe
Portfolio in order to achieve statewide balance of water resource priorities.

The SOCWMA IRWM Group appreciates your consideration of these comments. If you have any 
questions or would like any clarifications on our recommendations, please contact me at (714) 955-
0630. 

Sincerely, 

Amanda Carr 
Deputy Director, OC Public Works - County of Orange 
Executive Officer, SOCWMA IRWM Group 

601 N. Ross Street, Santa Ana, CA 92701 

P .0. Box 4048, Santa Ana, CA 92702-4048 

www.ocpublicworks.com 

714.667.8800 I lnfo@OCPW.ocgov.com 



Ms. Nancy Vogel 
September 20, 2019 
Page 8 of 8 

CC via email: SOCWMA IRWM Group, San Diego Funding Area Tri-FACC 
Erik Eckdahl, SWRCB Deputy Director (Erik.Ekdahl@waterboards.ca.gov) 
Arthur Hinojosa, DWR IRWM Division Chief (Arthur.Hinojosa@water.ca.gov) 
Carmel Brown, DWR IRWM Division Financial Assistance Branch Chief 

(Carmel.Brown@water.ca.gov) 
Wade Crowfoot, Secretary for Natural Resources, California Natural Resources Agency 

(secretary@resources.ca.gov) 
Karen Ross, Secretary of Agriculture, California Department of Food and Agriculture 

(secretary.ross@cdfa.ca.gov) 
Jared Blumenfeld, Secretary for Environmental Protection, California Environmental 

Protection Agency (jared.blumenfeld@calepa.ca.gov) 
Kristopher Tjernell, Deputy Director of DWR IRWM Program 

(Kristopher.Tjernell@water.ca .gov) 

601 N. Ross Street, Santa Ana, CA 92701 

P.O. Box 4048, Santa Ana, CA 92702-4048 

www.ocpublicworks.com 

714.667.8800 I lnfo@OCPW.ocgov.com 



 
 
 

 
 

Mailing Address 
 

P.O. Box 20895 
Fountain Valley, CA  92728 
 
 
Meeting Location 
 

MWDOC/OCWD 
18700 Ward Street 
Fountain Valley, CA  92708 
 
 
(714) 963-3058 
(714) 964-5930 fax 
 
www.mwdoc.com/isdoc 
 
 
 

Executive Committee 
 
President  
Hon. Saundra Jacobs  
Santa Margarita Water District  
 
1st Vice President  
Hon. Mark Monin 
El Toro Water District  
 
2nd Vice President  
Hon. Arlene Schafer 
Costa Mesa Sanitary District 
 
3rd Vice President  
Hon. Mary Aileen Matheis 
Irvine Ranch Water District 
 
Secretary 
Hon. William “Bill” Green 
South Coast Water District  
 
Treasurer 
Hon. Joan C. Finnegan 
Municipal Water District of  
Orange County 
 
Immediate Past President 
Hon. James Fisler 
Mesa Water District  
 
Staff Administration 
 
Heather Baez  
Municipal Water District of Orange 
County 
 
Christina Hernandez  
Municipal Water District of Orange 
County  
 
 

Executive Committee Meeting 
Tuesday, February 4, 2020 

7:30 a.m. 
Municipal Water District of Orange County, Conference Room 101 

 

AGENDA 
 

 

I. Welcome, Introductions – 7:30 am 
[Please silence cell phones] 

II. Approval of Minutes – 7:35 am 
• Consider approval of the minutes for the January 7, 2020 meeting. 

III. Public Comments on items not on the agenda- 7:40 am 
IV. New Business – 7:45 am 

A. Dues Formula for LAFCO – Discussion from Ad Hoc Committee 
V. Treasurer’s Report – 7:50 am – Director Finnegan 

• December report of accounts. 
VI. CSDA Report – 8:00 am – Director Schafer 

• Receive, discuss and file the CSDA Report 
VII. LAFCO Report – 8:05 am – Director Fisler 

• Receive, discuss and file the LAFCO report 
VIII. ACWA Report – 8:10 am – Director Jacobs 

• Receive, discuss and file the ACWA report.   
IX. OCCOG Report – 8:15 am – Director Scheafer 

A.  Receive, discuss and file OCCOG report 
        X. Orange County Operational Area Report - 8:20 am – Director Monin 

B. Receive, discuss and file OCOA report 
XI. Subcommittee Reports – 8:25 am  

• Programs 
o 2020 Quarterly Luncheons 

• Membership  
• Legislative  

o Discuss and consider taking action on proposed legislation of 
interest to Special Districts. 

XII. Adjourn – 8:30 am 
Next Executive Committee Meeting:  Tuesday, March 3, 2020 
Next Quarterly Luncheon:  Thursday, April 30 ,2020 

 



 
 
 

1 
 

 
 

ISDOC Executive Committee 
January 7, 2020 

 
Minutes 

 
I. Welcome 

President Saundra Jacobs called the meeting to order at 7:30 a.m. 
 
Saundra Jacobs, President (SMWD) 
Mark Monin (ETWD) 
Arlene Schafer (CMSD) 
Mary Aileen Matheis (IRWD) 
Bill Green, Secretary (SCWD) 
Joan Finnegan, Treasurer (MWDOC) 

 

Others Present: 
 

Gavin Centeno (OC LAFCO) 
Doug Davert (EOCWD) 
Mike Gaskins (ETWD) 
Greg Mills (Serrano WD) 
Chris Palmer (CSDA) 
Mike Scheafer (CMSD) 
Karl Seckel (MWDOC) 
Stacy Taylor (Mesa WD) 
Heather Baez (MWDOC) 
Jody Brennan (SCWD) 
 

II. Minutes 
 

The minutes of the December 10, 2019 meeting were reviewed.  Upon a motion by Bill Green 
and second by Mary Aileen Matheis, the minutes were unanimously approved. 
 

III. Public Comments 
 
None. 
 



 
 
 

2 
 

IV. New Business 
 

A. LAFCO Dues Formula 
 
President Saundra Jacobs reported the Ad Hoc Committee would be meeting on Friday, 
January 10, 2020.  

 
V. Treasurer’s Report 

 
Joan Finnegan reported a balance of $12,789.76.  

 
VI. CSDA Report 
 

Arlene Schafer provided the following update: 
 

• A CSDA “Take Action” brief will be out next week 
• The CSDA/ISDOC Form 700 workshop will be held on March 17 at MWDOC 
• A decision on the vacant Section B seat will be made by March 27, 2020 

 
Chris Palmer distributed the new CSDA Professional Development catalogue. 

 
VII. LAFCO Report 

 
Doug Davert reported the next meeting will be on January 8 at 8:15 and agenda items include 
election of officers, review of work plan, review of communications plan, legislative report 
and renewal of annual Professional Service Agreements.  Doug also reported that the 
February 2020 LAFCO meeting has been cancelled. 

 
VIII. ACWA Report 

 
Saundra Jacobs reported on the following: 
 

• The President is Steve Lamar (IRWD) and Vice President is Pam Tobin (San Juan Water) 
• The Committee selections have been announced for 2020 
• JPIA Executive Committee has a vacancy and the deadline to apply is January 14 
• ACWA is moving their offices 
• The Spring Conference will be held in May in Monterey 
• A focus of ACWA will be PFAS issues 
 

IX. OCCOG Report 
 

Mike Scheafer reported OCCOG did not meet in December.  The November meeting topics 
included the RHNA and legislative issues. 

 



 
 
 

3 
 

X. Orange County Operational Area Report 
 

Karl Seckel reported that Victoria Osborn from the County of Orange will be replacing Kelly 
Hubbard with WEROC.  Karl will ask Victoria to attend the next ISDOC Executive Committee 
meeting and the January Quarterly Luncheon. Karl also reported the final OA Agreement is 
still in the works and expects it in the next few months. 

 
XI. Subcommittee Reports 

 
• Programs:  Mark Monin reported that Neal Kelley, OC Registrar of Voters will be the 

speaker for the January 30 Quarterly Luncheon.  Ideas for speakers on future luncheons 
include Victoria Osborn, WEROC, Cheryl Brothers, President of OC LAFCO, and a speaker 
on RHNA. 

• Membership: None 
• Legislative Update: The new legislative session started yesterday; deadline to introduce 

new legislation is February 21. 
 

XII. Adjourn  
 

The meeting adjourned at 8:28 in memory of Trudy Ohlig-Hall and Michael Healy.  
 

 





 

 
 

  

 

 

   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Mailing Address 
P.O. Box 20895 
Fountain Valley, CA  92728 
 
Meeting Location 
18700 Ward Street 
Fountain Valley, CA  92708 
 
(714) 378-8232 
(714) 963-0291 fax 
 
www.mwdoc.com/waco 
www.ocwd.com/news-events/events/waco   
 

 
Officers 
 
Chair 
Hon. Jim Atkinson 
Mesa Water District 
 
Vice Chair 
Hon. Cathy Green 
Orange County Water District 
 
 
Staff Contacts: 
 
Alicia Dunkin 
Orange County Water District 
 
Heather Baez 
Municipal Water District of Orange County 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
Stay Connected with WACO  
on Facebook, Twitter and YouTube! 

 
WACO Planning Committee 
Tuesday, February 18, 2020 

7:30 A.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. Confirm meeting title and talking points for March and April meetings 
o March 6: Water Loss – Speaker: Joe Berg, MWDOC 
o April 3: Ducks Unlimited – Speaker: Mark Biddlecomb, Ducks Unlimited 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. Select topic for May 1 meeting 
o Potential topics previously brought forth: 

• The future of power – Dr. Michael Binderbauer, Tri Alpha Energy 
(Howard Hull) 

• Urban Water Management Plan (Bob McVicker) 

• Contaminants of emerging concern / basin salt balance (Peer Swan / 
Fred O’Callaghan) 

• Dissolution of Sativa Water District - Daniel Lafferty (Karl Seckel) 

• Water Solutions Network (Larry McKenney) 

• The future of 5G w/Crown Castle (Sat Tamaribuchi) 

• Affordability of water & human right to water (Stacy Taylor) 

• International view of water (Ahmad Zahra) 

• Species in the river - Dept. of Fish & Wildlife (Peer Swan) 

• The challenges of wholesalers (Jim Atkinson) 

• Update on Prop 1 funding for storage projects/ status of projects gaining 
matching funds (Larry Dick) 

 
2. Feedback of February 7 meeting  

o What Increased Housing Means for Water 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 

https://www.facebook.com/pages/Water-Advisory-Committee-of-Orange-County-WACO/111827158907574
http://www.twitter.com/WACO_H2O
http://www.youtube.com/user/orangecountywater


DATES TO REMEMBER  

FEBRUARY/MARCH 2020 

 

1. Feb 28 – 7:30 a.m. – South Orange County Economic Coalition Meeting 

2. Feb 28 – 8:00 a.m. – TV-6 (Freshley) 

3. Feb 28 – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

4. Feb 28 – Mar 2 – Monin Vacation 

5. Mar 2 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC Planning/Operations Meeting 

6. Mar 2 – 1:30 p.m. – SOCWMA Management Committee Meeting 

7. Mar 3 – 7:30 a.m. – ISDOC Executive Committee Meeting 

8. Mar 3 – 10:00 a.m. – RRC Meeting 

9. Mar 3 – 10:30 a.m. – SOCWA Finance Committee Meeting 

10. Mar 4 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC/MET Directors Workshop 

11. Mar 5 – 8:30 a.m. – SOCWA Board Meeting 

12. Mar 6 – 7:30 a.m. – WACO Meeting 

13. Mar 6 – 11:30 a.m. – Chair/GM Meeting 

14. Mar 11 – 8:30 a.m. – LAFCO 

15. Mar 11 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC Admin/Finance Meeting 

16. Mar 12 – 8:30 a.m. – SOCWA Engineering Committee Meeting 

17. Mar 13 – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

18. Mar 15-17 – WateReuse Conference (San Francisco) 

19. Mar 16 – 7:30 a.m. – Agenda Review 

20. Mar 16 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC Public Affairs Meeting 

21. Mar 17 – 7:30 a.m. – WACO Planning Meeting 

22. Mar 18 – 8:30 a.m. – MWDOC Board Meeting 

23. Mar 19 – 8:00 a.m. – SAC Meeting (IRWD) 

24. Mar 19 – 5:30 p.m. – Lake Forest State of the City Address 

25. Mar 20 – 11:30 a.m. – Chair/GM Meeting 



26. Mar 23 – 7:30 a.m. – Regular Engineering/Finance Committee Meeting 

27. Mar 24 – 10:30 a.m. – SOCWA Special Finance Meeting 

28. Mar 24 – 12:00 noon – SOCWMA Management Committee (TCWD) 

29. Mar 26 – 7:30 a.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

30. Mar 27 – 7:30 a.m. – South Orange County Economic Coalition 

31. Mar 27 – 8:00 a.m. – TV-6 (Havens) 

32. Mar 27 – DISTRICT OFFICE CLOSED 

33. Mar 31 – 10:00 a.m. – RRC Meeting 

 


























	February 27, 2020 Board Agenda
	Item #1 - Minutes and Conferences
	Item #1 - part one - January 23, 2020 - Board Minutes
	Item #1 - part two

	Item #2 - 401(k) Report
	Item #4 - Res No 20-2-1 - Form 806
	Item #4 - page one - Res No 20-2-1 Form 806
	Item #4 - page 2 - Res No 20-2-1 Form 806
	Item #4 - page 3 - Res No 20-2-1 Form 806
	Item #4 - page 4 - Res No 20-2-1 Form 806
	Item #4 - page 5 - Res No 20-2-1 Form 806
	Item #4 - page 6 - Res No 20-2-1 Form 806
	Item #4 - page 7 - Res No 20-2-1 Form 806

	Item #5 - CSDA Seat B
	Item #6 - CSDA Seat C
	Item #7 - GM report
	GM - page one
	GM - Potable and RW sales report
	GM - Customer service activity report
	GM - Fluoride charts
	ETWDSITEMAPB
	Sheets and Views
	ETWDSITEMAPB-Layout 1


	ETWDSITEMAPC
	Sheets and Views
	ETWDSITEMAPC-Layout 1


	ETWDSITEMAPN
	Sheets and Views
	ETWDSITEMAPN-Layout 1


	ETWDSITEMAPF
	Sheets and Views
	ETWDSITEMAPF-Layout 1



	GM - Weekly wtr quality system status
	GM - Wtr supply conditions report
	GM - Total Recycled Water Production
	GM - Water Use Slides - 2013
	GM - Monthly Wtr Usage Data-MWDOC
	tables.pdf
	Water Data Item for Feb-2020 AF mtg
	WACO 2.2020
	O.C. Water Usage 19-20
	Precip
	Storage
	SWP
	OCWD
	Nor Cal
	Cra
	Powell
	Mead
	Mead II



	GM - Collection System Activity report
	GM - Monthly Potable Wtr Quality report
	GM - Will Serve
	GM - Spill Summary.
	GM - Battery Storage Update
	GM - Special Districts Dialogue-Davert Fisler

	Item #8 - Legislative reports
	Item #9 - Public Outreach Wtr Conserv reports
	Public Outreach - part one
	Public Outreach - part two

	Item #10 - SOCWA
	SOCWA - Feb 6, 2020
	SOCWA - Feb 13, 2020
	SOCWA - Feb 20, 2020

	Item #11 - MWDOC
	MWDOC - Feb 3, 2020
	MWDOC - Feb 5, 2020
	MWDOC - Feb 12, 2020
	MWDOC - Feb 18, 2020
	MWDOC - Feb 19, 2020
	MWDOC - Feb 20, 2020

	Item #12 - LAFCO
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
	Wednesday, February 12, 2019
	Wednesday, February 12, 2019
	8:15 a.m.
	8:15 a.m.


	Item #13 - SOCWMA
	SOCWMA - Feb 3, 2020
	SOCWMA - Feb 6, 2020

	Item #14 - ISDOC
	ISDOC - page one
	ISDOC - part two

	Item #15 - WACO
	WACO - Feb 7, 2020
	WACO - Feb 18, 2020

	Item #17 - DATES TO REMEMBER
	ETWD Glossary of Water Terms - Acronyms

	pg1-2 appts/agcy bds & comms: 
	0: WACO PlanningMWDOC BoardMWDOC Finance
	1: ISDOCETWD Agenda Review Committee
	2: ETWD Audit Committee
	3: MWDOC Public Affairs

	pg1-2 name of appt person: 
	0: Mark L. Monin
	1: Mark L. Monin
	2: Mark L. Monin
	3: Mike Gaskins

	pg1-2 name of alternate: 
	0: Jose Vergara
	1: Mike Gaskins
	2: Kathryn Freshley
	3: Kay Havens

	pg1-2 appt date/mm: 
	0: 1
	1: 1
	2: 1
	3: 1

	pg1-2 appt date/dd: 
	0: 23
	1: 23
	2: 23
	3: 23

	pg1-2 appt date/yy: 
	0: 20
	1: 20
	2: 20
	3: 20

	pg1-2 length of term: 
	0: 1 Year
	1: 1 Year
	2: 1 Year
	3: 1 Year

	pg1-2 per mtg salary: 
	0: 219.00
	1: 219.00
	2: 219.00
	3: 219.00

	pg1-2 est ann'l salary/0-1,000: 
	0: Off
	1: Off
	2: Yes
	3: Off

	pg1-2 est ann'l salary/2,001-3,000: 
	0: Yes
	1: Yes
	2: Off
	3: Yes

	pg1-2 est ann'l salary/1,001-2,000: 
	0: Off
	1: Off
	2: Off
	3: Off

	pg1-2 est ann'l salary/other: 
	0: Off
	1: Off
	2: Off
	3: Off

	pg1-2 est ann'l salary/other txt: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 

	Print Page: 
	pg1-1 of#: 6
	pg1-1 agcy name: El Toro Water District
	pg1-1 date posted: 2/27/20
	pg2-2 appts/agcy bds & comms: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 

	pg2-2 name of appt person: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 

	pg2-2 name of alternate: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 

	pg2-2 appt date/mm: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 

	pg2-2 appt date/dd: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 

	pg2-2 appt date/yy: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 

	pg2-2 length of term: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 

	pg2-2 per mtg salary: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 

	pg2-2 est ann'l salary/0-1,000: 
	0: Off
	1: Off
	2: Off
	3: Off
	4: Off
	5: Off

	pg2-2 est ann'l salary/2,001-3,000: 
	0: Off
	1: Off
	2: Off
	3: Off
	4: Off
	5: Off

	pg2-2 est ann'l salary/1,001-2,000: 
	0: Off
	1: Off
	2: Off
	3: Off
	4: Off
	5: Off

	pg2-2 est ann'l salary/other: 
	0: Off
	1: Off
	2: Off
	3: Off
	4: Off
	5: Off

	pg2-2 est ann'l salary/other txt: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 

	Reset Page: 
	pg1-1 div, dept, region: Dennis P. Cafferty, General Manager/Board Secretary
	pg1-1 desig agcy contact: 
	pg1-1 area code/ph#: (949) 837-7050
	pg1-1 email: dcafferty@etwd.com
	pg1-1 page#: 1
	pg1-3 print name: Dennis P. Cafferty
	pg1-3 title: General Manager
	pg1-3 date: 
	pg1-3 comment: 
	Reset Page 2: 
	pg2 page#: 


